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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

XI ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE

ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission File Number: 001-35619

STEMLINE THERAPEUTICS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its arart

Delaware 45-0522567
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No

750 Lexington Avenue
Sixth Floor
New York, New York 10022
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(646)-502-2310
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area fode

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(thefct:

Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per sha NASDAQ Capital Market
(Title of Class) (Name of Each Exchange on Which Registe

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(gh@”ct:None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantusei-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Ruleod@be Securities Ac1 Yes
No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Actd Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Secti@ or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (orsiach shorter period that the registrant was reduodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the past@g@s.]1 Yes No

Indicate by check mark where the registrant hasnéttdd electronically and posted on its corporatebdite, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRile 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this ¢bgpduring the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such file€XI Yes O No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (8205 of this chapter) is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the beskgistrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or infeation statements incorporated by reference
in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendmenthéstForm 10-K.OO  Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @aocelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller reportircompany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check One):

Large-accelerated fileOd Accelerated fileld

Non-accelerated fileX] Smaller reporting compard
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the AEl) Yes No

The aggregate market value of voting common stettt hy non-affiliates of the registrant (assumifog,purposes of this calculation,
without conceding, that all executive officers atigtctors are “affiliates”) was $53,375,306 as afrivh 27, 2013, based on the closing sale
price of such stock as reported on the NASDAQ Ghpiarket. The registrant has provided this infation as of March 27, 2013 because its
common stock was not publicly traded as of thebasiness day of its most recently completed sefisodl quarter.



There were 7,458,561 shares of the registrant’snommstock outstanding as of March 27, 2013.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’'s Proxy Statement fer2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorfaatdoy reference in Part 11l of this
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SPECIAL CAUTIONARY NOTICE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report on Form 10-K (“Form 10-K”) indles statements that are, or may be deemed, “forl@akihg statements.” In some cases,
these forward-looking statements can be identifigthe use of forward-looking terminology, includithe terms “believes,” “estimates,”
“anticipates,” “expects,” “plans,” “intends,” “mdy,could,” “might,” “will,” “should,” “approximately” or, in each case, their negative or other
variations thereon or comparable terminology, altfonot all forward-looking statements contain ¢he®rds. They appear in a number of
places throughout this Form 10-K and include stat@siregarding our intentions, beliefs, projectjanglook, analyses or current expectations
concerning, among other things, our ongoing andn#d discovery and development of drugs targetimger stem cells, the strength and
breadth of our intellectual property, our ongoimgl @lanned preclinical studies and clinical trisif® timing of and our ability to make
regulatory filings and obtain and maintain regutgtapprovals for our product candidates, the degfedinical utility of our products,
particularly in specific patient populations, exiaions regarding clinical trial data, our resat®perations, financial condition, liquidity,
prospects, growth and strategies, the length of timat we will be able to continue to fund our @beig expenses and capital expenditures, ou
expected financing needs and sources of finandiegindustry in which we operate and the trendstritay affect the industry or us.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involisks and uncertainties because they relate toteveompetitive dynamics, and healthcare,
regulatory and scientific developments and depenthe economic circumstances that may or may nmirda the future or may occur on
longer or shorter timelines than anticipated. Althlo we believe that we have a reasonable baseafdr forward-looking statement contained
in this Form 10-K, we caution you that forward-ldug statements are not guarantees of future pedocemand that our actual results of
operations, financial condition and liquidity, aif development of the industry in which we operasy differ materially from the forward-
looking statements contained in this Form 10-Kadidlition, even if our results of operations, finahcondition and liquidity, and the
development of the industry in which we operatecamsistent with the forward-looking statementstaomed in this Form 10-K, they may not
be predictive of results or developments in fujpeeods.

Some of the factors that we believe could causgahotsults to differ from those anticipated ordicged include:

» the success and timing of our preclinical studias @inical trials;

« our ability to obtain and maintain regulatory apgoof our product candidates, and the labelingeurahy approval we may obtain;
« our plans to develop and commercialize our prodantidates;

« the loss of key scientific or management personnel;

« the size and growth of the potential markets farmpoduct candidates and our ability to serve thoaekets;

* regulatory developments in the United States areida countries;

« the rate and degree of market acceptance of aayrgiroduct candidates;

* our available cash;

« the accuracy of our estimates regarding expensesefrevenues, capital requirements and needslftitional financing;
« our ability to obtain additional funding;

« our ability to obtain and maintain intellectual pesty protection for our product candidates;

« the successful development of our sales and matketipabilities;

« the performance of third-party manufacturers; and

« our ability to successfully implement our strategy.

Any forward-looking statements that we make in #osm 10-K speak only as of the date of such stat#nand we undertake no obligation to
update such statements to reflect events or cinauoss after the date of this FormKOYou should also read carefully the factors diéesct ir
the “Risk Factors” section of this Form 10-K toteetunderstand the risks and uncertainties inhénemdir business and underlying any
forward-looking statements. As a result of thestdiss, we cannot assure you that the forward-lapkiatements in this Form 10-K will prove
to be accurate. Furthermore, if our forward-lookatgtements prove to be inaccurate, the inaccuregybe material. In light of the significant
uncertainties in these forward-looking statemeyus, should not regard these statements as a repaéiea or warranty by us or any other
person that we will achieve our objectives and planany specified timeframe, or at all.
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This Form 10-K includes statistical and other irtduand market data that we obtained from indugtriglications and research, surveys and
studies conducted by third parties. Industry patians and third party research, surveys and stugbeerally indicate that their information
been obtained from sources believed to be reliaitleough they do not guarantee the accuracy optaeness of such information. While we
believe these industry publications and third peggearch, surveys and studies are reliable, we haindependently verified such data.

We qualify all of our forward-looking statements tyese cautionary statements. In addition, witpeesto all of our forward-looking
statements, we claim the protection of the safbdrdior forward-looking statements contained in Bmevate Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995.
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Unless the context requires otherwise, referencekis report to “Stemline, us” and “our” refer to Stemline

Therapeutics, Inc.

Company,” “we,

ltem 1. Business
Overview

We are a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical compaoydged on discovering, acquiring, developing androercializing proprietary therapeutics
that target both cancer stem cells, or CSCs, amditbbulk. We are currently developing two cliniséhge product candidates, SL-401 and SL
701. SL-401 is a biologic targeted therapy dirdd¢teCSCs and tumor bulk, and is currently beingettgped for orphan indications: blastic
plasmacytoid dendritic cell neoplasm, or BPDCNai@ thematologic cancer, and third-line acute mgdkmikemia, or AML. SL-701 is a
subcutaneously-delivered therapeutic cancer vaazingrised of synthetic peptides, and is curreliyng developed for use in advanced
pediatric and adult brain cancer. In completedsBHa?2 clinical trials, both SL-401 and SL-701 hdeenonstrated single agent activity,
including durable complete responses, or CRs, @mgelr overall survival, or OS, in heavily pretreapatients compared with that achieved in
the past with traditional therapies. We plan tmptete a pivotal Phase 2b single-arm trial of Si-#0patients with BPDCN, with overall
response rate as the primary endpoint. We alsotpladvance SL-401 into a registration-directedicemized Phase 2b clinical trial to treat
adult relapsed or refractory AML patients who fditevo previous treatments (i.e., third-line AML)tWwIiCR rate and OS as co-primary
endpoints. We plan to advance SL-701 into a PRhagdinical trial to treat pediatric patients withalignant brainstem and non-brainstem
glioma. In addition, we plan to advance SL-70b iatPhase 2b clinical trial in adult recurrentefractory glioblastoma multiforme, or GBM.
We have an extensive intellectual property porfcdi deep preclinical pipeline, and an innovatisseavery platform which we believe
establishes us as a leader in the CSC field.

The field of CSCs is an emerging area of cancdogjowith the potential to fundamentally alter dggproach to oncology drug development.
CSCs have been identified in virtually all majomior types, including leukemia and cancers of tlhibreast, colon, prostate and pancreas.
CSCs are the highly malignant “seeds” of a tumat Helf-renew and generate more mature cells trapase the bulk of the tumor, or “the
tumor bulk.” As such, we believe that CSCs areaasible for tumor initiation, propagation, and n&ésis. Many of the characteristics of
CSCs, such as their slow growth, presence of rdultiy resistance proteins, anti-cell death mechasiamd increased activity of cellular
mechanisms that repair damaged DNA, may enable @S@sist therapeutic agents traditionally usetldat cancer. Further, while standard
therapies may initially shrink tumors by targetthg tumor bulk, which excludes CSCs, we believedli®a body of evidence indicating that
treatment failure, tumor relapse and poor survvallargely the result of the failure of conven#ibcancer treatments to eradicate CSCs.
Accordingly, we believe that targeting CSCs, initidd to the tumor bulk, may represent a major ambeain the fight against cancer. This
premise has formed the basis of our drug developsteategy, as illustrated below.
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Since our inception, we have leveraged our knovdeafgCSCs to anticipate and establish a leademdsjiion in this new field of oncology.
During this time, we have developed or strategydallicensed key intellectual property, built avalidated a drug discovery platform and
developed clinically active drug candidates. Wedwel that our early and comprehensive effort toettgya new generation of oncology
therapeutics that target CSCs as well as the tilo&rprovides us with a competitive advantage.
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Our Company

We were incorporated under the laws of the Stafeeddware in August 2003. Our principal executifiices are located at 750 Lexington
Avenue, Sixth Floor, New York, New York 10022 angt ¢elephone number is (646) 502-2310.

Our website address is www.stemline.com. We wikmavailable free of charge through our Interngbsite our annual reports on Form 10-
K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reppon Form 8-K, and any amendments to these re@stsoon as reasonably practicable
after we electronically file such material with,farnish such material to, the SEC. We are notuidiclg the information on our website as a
of, nor incorporating it by reference into, thipogt. You may read and copy any materials we filtha SECS Public Reference Room at 10!
Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549 on officiasiness days during the hours of 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-
0330 for information on the Public Reference Roéwiditionally, the SEC maintains a website that eimg annual, quarterly, and current
reports, proxy statements, and other informatia igsuers (including us) file electronically witite SEC. The SEC’s website address is
http://www.sec.gov.

Management
We are led by a team with extensive experienceanaging biopharmaceutical companies and in oncadogyg development, including:

e lvan Bergstein, M.D. — Chairman, Chief Executivei@dr and President, Dr. Bergstein, founded Steendind has advanced the
Company from concept to late-stage clinical devedlept. He was previously Medical Director of Acc€sxology Inc., a private
clinical stage oncology-focused biotechnology compavhich was subsequently acquired. Prior to thatBergstein was a
biopharmaceuticals industry research analyst. ideipusly completed a residency and fellowship terinal medicine and
hematology-oncology at the New York Presbyteriaspital — Weill Medical College of Cornell Univergit

»  Eric K. Rowinsky, M.D. — Chief Medical Officer artdead of Research and Development, Dr. Rowinsky,weagiously the
Chief Medical Officer for ImClone Systems, Inc. BRowinsky has more than 25 years of experience giaga&linical trials and
developing drugs in oncology, including leading Ei2A approval of Erbitu® for head and neck andoettal cancers.

Dr. Rowinsky currently serves on the Board of Diogs of Biogen Idec Inc., as well as several ofhéslic biopharmaceutical
companies.

Strategy

Our goal is to maintain and fortify a leadershigition in the discovery, acquisition and developtr&movel oncology therapies that target
CSCs. The fundamental components of our businestegy to achieve this goal include the following:
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*  Be the first anti-CSC-focused company to commeézeial CSC-directed oncology drugs the most clinically advanced anti-
CSC-focused company, we aim to fortify our leadigrglosition and be the first to commercialize a G@8@cted oncology drug.

«  Develop and commercialize SL-401 in multiple hetogtoal cancers.We plan to complete a pivotal Phase 2b single-asiahdf
SL-401 in patients with relapsed or refractory BPD@iith overall response rate as the primary endpbdif.also plan to advan
SL-401 into a registration-directed randomized BHas clinical trial, with CR rate and OS as co-m@ignendpoints, in AML
patients as a third-line treatment. BPDCN and ANé& arphan indications, i.e., rare diseases or tiondi affecting fewer than
200,000 people in the United States and each repras unmet medical need. The SL-401 targetRLi8 expressed on a wide
variety of hematologic cancers including AML, BPDOBML, MDS, and acute lymphoid leukemia, as wellyasphomas, such
as non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma and Hodgkin’s diseasd,ranltiple myeloma. Accordingly, we believe that-801 should be active
in multiple hematologic cancers. These indicatiomsld represent significant market opportunitiasSa-401.

e Develop and commercialize SL-701 in brain candafe plan to advance SL-701 into a Phase 2b clinilfor the treatment of
pediatric patients with brainstem and non-brainsgéipma. We also plan to initiate a Phase 2b diihidal in adult second-line
GBM.

» Leverage our proprietary drug discovery platforrtei8Screef® , to identify new therapeutigge intend to utilize our
proprietary discovery platform to identify new C$geted drug candidates. We may conduct somessétifforts internally
and/or leverage our platform to forge strategidadmirations. To date, we have utilized StemScfe&midentify a number of drug
candidates.

«  Develop commercialization capabilities in North Aica and Europe.We believe that the infrastructure required to
commercialize our oncology products is relativétyited, which may make it cost-effective for usniternally develop a
marketing effort and sales force. If SL-401 and&ll- are approved by the FDA and other regulatotiyaities for first use, we
plan to commercialize these drugs ourselves intiNamerica and Europe through direct sales andibigton. However, we will
remain opportunistic in seeking strategic partripssin these and other markets when advantageaus to

»  Continue to both leverage and fortify our CSC ietual property portfolio.We believe that we have a strong intellectual
property position relating to the development aochimercialization of CS@argeted therapeutics, diagnostics, and drug déesgc
We plan to continue to leverage this portfolio teate value. In addition to fortifying our existirgellectual property position, v
intend to file new patent applications, in-licemsav intellectual property and take other stepsrengthen, leverage, and expand
our intellectual property position.

Clinical Pipeline
The following table summarizes key information abour two most advanced product candidates:
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SL-401 — An IL-3R-Directed Compound Targeting CSCsand Tumor Bulk
Overview

SL-401 is a clinically active biologic targeted thpy directed to the interleukin-3 receptor, ordR; which is overexpressed on CSCs and 1
mature cancer cells derived from CSCs (i.e., tubutk) of multiple hematologic cancers. In AML, fexample, IL-3R is overexpressed on
both CSCs and tumor bulk of leukemia (i.e., bla&disg. In a completed Phase 1/2 clinical triapatients with advanced hematologic cance
single cycle of SL-401 alone demonstrated anti-tuawndivity, including durable CRs, in relapsed efractory patients. Specifically, a single
cycle of SL-401 induced four durable CRs in relabgerefractory patients: two CRs in BPDCN and tRs in AML. Notably, a single cycle
of SL-401 also improved the median OS of the 35trheavily pretreated AML patients who had failedeatst two previous therapies

(i.e., third-line or greater) by more than two-faldmpared with historical data. Moreover, a singlele of SL-401 administered at
therapeutically relevant doses (i.e., the maximalerated dose, or MTD, or one or two dose levelewéhe MTD) improved the median OS
by more than three-fold compared with the histdngadian OS. Further, SL-401 was shown to be naitto bone marrow, which is a key
differentiating feature relative to many other héotagic cancer therapies and which we believe stduhe lack of IL-3R expression on
normal bone marrow stem cells. Currently, theeelianited effective treatment options for patiewith relapsed or refractory hematologic
cancers including BPDCN and AML. We believe that@or reason for the failures of traditional treants to provide long term benefit is t
these traditional treatments target tumor bulkeathan CSCs, and are often toxic to the bone marrccordingly, by pursuing hematologic
cancer indications with SL-401, a therapeutic thatuely targets both CSCs and tumor bulk and igmadc to the bone marrow, we hope to
provide benefit to patients who historically haweeb difficult to treat with traditional therapies.

We plan to complete a pivotal Phase 2b single-aiahih patients with relapsed or refractory BPDGMth overall response rate as the primary
endpoint. We also plan to advance SL-401 into &stegion-directed randomized Phase 2b clinical tivith CR rate and OS as co-primary
endpoints, in AML patients as a third-line treatin&le also plan to evaluate the potential of SL-#0additional hematologic cancer
indications, including earlier stages of AML as had other leukemia, lymphomas, and multiple myelom

In February 2011, SL-401 received Orphan Drug dedign from the FDA for the treatment of AML.
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Blastic Plasmacytoid Dendritic Cell Neoplasm (BPDE

BPDCN is a rare and aggressive hematologic cahe¢icarries a poor prognosis. BPDCN was previodslysified by the World Health
Organization, or WHO, as blastic NK cell lymphoragranular CD4+/CD56+ hematodermic neoplasm, arsindaytoid dendritic cell cancer.
BPDCN most commonly affects middle-aged and oldgiiepts and is approximately three times more comimanen than women. BPDCN
derives from plasmacytoid dendritic cells, whick apecialized immune cells that express high lesfels-3R, the target for SL-401. This
malignancy most typically presents with skin lesioas well as extracutaneous manifestations thaimeaude the bone marrow, blood, lymph
nodes, and spleen. BPDCN growth in the bone mareswits in decreased blood cell counts, therebging serious infections, bleeding, and
invariably death. Although BPDCN can be controlfedbrief periods with standard chemotherapy,udaig high dose chemotherapy with
bone marrow transplantation, used to treat otherdt@logic cancers, durable clinical responsesaeand overall prognosis remains poor.
There are currently no approved therapies for BPD&d an optimal therapeutic regimen for BPDCNinatsyet been established.

Acute Myeloid Leukemi

AML is a hematologic cancer characterized by dysiatgd maturation of myeloid cells and failure loé hone marrow to properly function.
AML is the most common type of acute leukemia inleed Approximately 14,000 new AML cases occurually in the United States, and
approximately 16,000 to 18,000 new cases occurallynn Europe. The average age of an AML patisr@7 years. The National Cancer
Institute estimated in 2007 that the one-year sahriate for adult patients with AML was approximigt34%. The one-year survival rate for
AML after first relapse is approximately 20%, arfttasecond relapse is approximately 8%. The nme@3 for AML patients after failing
second-line treatment, based on two large sedgdsbimonths. Current first-line treatments for Aliclude chemotherapy drugs such as
cytarabine, daunorubicin and mitoxantrone. Inaiartircumstances, bone marrow transplantatiotss @sed. In second-line AML, while
there are currently no approved treatments, typiedapies include additional chemotherapy, oftgarabine again at various dosages and
regimens. In third-line AML, there are currently approved treatments, and these patients frequesnie depressed bone marrow function
and are often no longer optimal candidates fortamdil chemotherapy. As such, third-line AML cohstes an unmet medical need.

Myelodysplastic Syndrom

Myelodysplastic syndrome, or MDS, is a group of héstogic malignancies characterized by dysfunctibthe blood and bone marrow,
resulting in decreased peripheral blood counts antiines, evolution into AML. Approximately 16 0@ew cases of MDS are reported
annually in the United States and approximatelpd®to 25,000 new MDS cases are reported annumlyirope. MDS occurs most
commonly in males 70 years or older. Five-yeavisat rates for MDS patients vary significantly égjling on disease severity and prognosis
and range from approximately 55% for low-risk pat to 7% to 35% for intermediate-risk patiersrtually all high-risk MDS patients die
within five years. Treatment paradigms for MDSigatls vary depending on disease classificationrehkdcategory. Current first-line
treatments include azacitidine (VidaZza ), decitakfibacoger® ), lenalidomide (Thalonfid ), growth ¢ast chemotherapy, and stem cell
transplantation in certain cases. We believedHatge number of patients either do not responélapse following first-line treatment, and
there are no approved therapies and limited effedteatment options in this high-risk setting.
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Chronic Myeloid Leukemia

Chronic myeloid leukemia, or CML, is a hematopaietiem cell disease resulting in impaired bone ovafunction. Annually, approximately
5,000 new cases are reported in the United Statdsyear and approximately 4,000 to 9,000 new caseseported each year in Europe. The
five-year OS rate for CML patients is 57%. When I[CMtlvances to an accelerated or blastic phasendéugan OS is less than one year. In
patients who have failed or are intolerant to timeskinase inhibitors (or TKIs), a relapsed or aefory setting, the median OS is four to

11 months. Current first-line treatments for CMiclude three TKIs: imatinib (Gleevéc ), nilotinibasigna® ) and dasatinib (Spryé€el ). In
cases of relapse, second- and third-line treatnieciisde a TKI not previously used in that patidntcertain circumstances, interferon or bone
marrow transplantation is also used.

Design of SI-401 and Mechanism of Action

SL-401 is a biologic targeted therapy directechmIt -3R. SL-401 consists of IL-3, genetically latkto a truncated diphtheria toxin payload.
Mechanistically, the IL-3 domain of SL-401 diretite cytotoxic payload to IL-3R+ cells. SL-401 igthinternalized by target cells, leading to
intracellular release of the payload, inhibitionpobtein synthesis and cell death, or apoptosiscoAdingly, the targeting and mechanism by
which SL-401 kills cells differs from therapeutittgt are commonly used to treat hematologic matfigies including BPDCN and AML.
Traditional therapies, such as chemotherapy, largeget rapidly dividing cells, whether malignamtnormal, by interfering with DNA
replication and other processes. SL-401, in ceftisa targeted therapy that specifically recogsiand binds to cells expressing IL-3R, a
target which is overexpressed on leukemia celtixg to normal cells. Thus, SL-401 preferentiddlsgets malignant, not normal cells, a
feature expected to result in fewer toxicities tietato traditional therapies. Moreover, by inhiibg protein synthesis, we believe that 801 i<
able to kill not just rapidly dividing cells, bulsa slower-growing cells such as CSCs. In addjtiba SL-401 payload does not appear to be
subject to multi-drug resistance highly expresse€8Cs and tumor bulk. Therefore, unlike trad#ilctherapies which largely target and kill
tumor bulk only, SL-401 is designed to target aiticbloth CSCs and tumor bulk.

IL-3R is normally expressed on certain maturing htpoietic cells, including maturing myeloid ceBscells and dendritic cells, but not
normal hematopoietic stem cells, and is involveddt maturation, differentiation, and survival -8R is overexpressed on multiple
hematological malignancies including AML, BPDCN, IDCML, B cell acute lymphoid leukemia, hairy delilkemia, Hodgkirs disease, ar
certain aggressive Non-Hodgkin’s lymphomas. Initamliito expression on tumor bulk, IL-3R is alsgpesssed on the CSCs of multiple
hematologic cancers including AML, CML, MDS, ancc&H acute lymphoid leukemia. Elevated IL-3R expies has been correlated with
poor patient prognosis. For example, as desciilyedergez inHaematologicdn 2011, a higher percentage of IL-3R-expressingdl ¢8R+,
CSCs within a patient’s entire tumor correlateswgibor outcome. In particular, AML patients with3R+ CSCs that comprise greater than o
equal to 1% of their entire leukemia were fountiaoe a worse prognosis than patients with IL-3R€E®at comprise less than 1% of their
entire leukemia. We believe that these findingthter validate that IL-3R is an important oncoldgyget.

SL-401 Preclinical Activity and Safety

SL-401 has demonstrated preclinicalkitro andin vivoactivity against both leukemia blasts (i.e., turholk) and CSCs of a variety of human
leukemia cell lines and primary leukemia cells frpatients. In particular, SL-401 demonstrated piodgtotoxicity against leukemic celis
vitro in a dose-dependent fashion withg(concentration that inhibits the growth of 50%efkemia cells) values in the low picomolar rar
Notably, normal bone marrow progenitor cells weslatively insensitive to S-401. SL-401 also exhibited anti-CSC activity. brfcular, SL-
401 inhibited AML colony formation, an assay foerst cell activity, compared with normal human boranow. As further validation of an
anti-CSC effect, SI401 reduced the incorporation and growth (i.e.,drigenicity) of AML cells, relative to normal humémne marrow, whe
treatedex vivoand reimplanted into immunodeficient mice — indiegtactivity at the level of the CSC. In additi®L,-401 prolonged the
survival of mice implanted with human leukemia xgredts compared with untreated mice. In addit®i;401 demonstrated high potency
against BPDCN cells from patients, with ans}C  hie femtomolar range.

To support first-in-man clinical studies, repeasé@nimal safety studies were conducted in micenamkeys. Toxicokinetic studies were
performed to evaluate the relationships betweeititgxand exposure to SL-401. Additionally, dogmiting toxicity, or DLT, and maximum
tolerated dose, or MTD, were determined from trstgdies to inform the subsequent Phase 1/2 hunivaoatltrial.
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SL-401 has also demonstrated preclinical activifgiast a variety of additional hematologic cancédrsparticular, SL-401 has shown potént
vitro anti-leukemia activity against CML tumor bulk antMC CSCs, and increased survival in mouse modeluaian CML. SL-401 has also
demonstrated poteit vitro anti-tumor activity against several lymphoid cangges, including lymphoid leukemia, Hodgkin’s amzh-
Hodgkin’s lymphoma, and multiple myeloma.

Completed Phase 1/2 Clinical Trial — Advanced Hemilatgic Cancers
Overview

SL-401 was evaluated in a completed multi-centersBH./2 clinical trial of patients with advancednlagologic cancers, which we refer to as
the 401 AHC Study. As described below, SL-401 destrated single agent anti-tumor activity, includohgrable CRs, and was well-tolerated
at clinically active doses. Specifically, a singlele of SL-401 induced four durable CRs in relapserefractory patients: two CRs in BPDCN
and two CRs in AML. Although the study was desigeedhat all patients received only a single cpéISL-401 treatment, the median OS wa:
improved in the 35 most heavily pretreated AML eats who had failed at least two previous therafpies third-line or greater) by more than
two-fold compared with historical data. Moreovesimgle cycle of SL-401 administered at therapailliicelevant doses (i.e., the maximum
tolerated dose, or MTD, or one or two dose levelsw the MTD) improved the median OS by more thaeé-fold compared with the
historical median OS of similar patients receiviragitional treatments. Of note, we intend to adster multiple cycles of SI401 in our future
trials, which we believe may increase the efficaith respect to both clinical response and survikatther, SL-401 was shown to be rnoric

to bone marrow, which we believe is a key diffeiaitig feature relative to other hematologic cartherapies.

The 401 AHC Study was undertaken in 80 patienth milvanced hematologic cancers, including relapseefractory AML patients (n=59),
AML patients who were poor risk and not candiddéesshemotherapy (n=11), high risk MDS patients{-or patients with blastic
plasmacytoid dendritic cell neoplasm (BPDCN) (na@th “n” representing the number of patients. Thedian patient age was 66 years, with
a range of seven to 84 years of age. Patientsvextai single cycle of SL-401 of doses ranging frbfhto 22.1 pg/kg/day, consisting of a 15-
minute intravenous infusion on either an every-cthay schedule for up to six treatments, or dailyd five-day schedule.

Dr. Arthur E. Frankel was the sponsor of the 401CAStudy and the principal investigator at the Santt White Cancer Research
Institute/Texas A&M (Temple, TX). The other prinalpgnvestigators and co-investigators of the 401CAStudy have been Dr. Hagop M.
Kantarjian and Dr. Marina Konopleva at MD Andergdancer Center (Houston, TX), Dr. David A. RizzigriDuke University (Durham, NC),
and Dr. Donna E. Hogge at the British Columbia @amgency (Vancouver, Canada). Updated 401 AHC5tedults were presented at the
American Society of Hematology (ASH) Annual Confage in December 2012.

Well-Tolerated at Clinically Active Doses

SL-401 was well-tolerated at clinically active desélhe side effect profile of SL-401 was similathat of denileukin diftitox (OntaR ), a
compound comprised of human interleukin-2 linkea hortened form of diphtheria toxin, which is FBpproved and has been marketed for
certain forms of cutaneous T-cell ymphoma for caefecade. Similar to Ont&k , the SL-401 profilasisted of mild to moderate fever and
chills, which were manageable and not dose-limitiMpderate to severe adverse events includeddineyme elevations, which were mostly
transient and not dose limiting, and manifestatioinsarly capillary leak syndrome (e.g., reducduialin, edema and weight gain) in fewer
than 10% of patients. It is important to note tiat side effects of Ontdk decrease over time gaith successive cycle administered. In
contrast, the anticancer activity of Onfak isiretd, and at times augmented, with each succesgole in patients receiving multiple cycles.
In particular, patients who partially responde@minitial or early cycle have been shown capaboaverting to complete responders in
subsequent cycles, and patients who do not resipamlinitial cycle have also been shown to resparidter cycles. In fact, Ontdk is
approved on a daily for five-day schedule for uitgtht cycles due to the improved safety and amtituactivity associated with multiple
cycles.

The MTD of SL-401 was 16.6 pg/kg/day, with toleebhd active (i.e., therapeutically relevant) dageks.6 |g/kg/day as well as one and t
dose levels below the MTD (12.5 and 9.4 pg/kg/day).

10




Table of Contents
Nor-Toxic to Bone Marrow

SL-401 was not toxic to the bone marrow, which kg distinguishing feature relative to other hest@gic cancer chemotherapies, such as
nucleoside inhibitors and anthracyclines. Priostanting treatment with SL-401, the majority ofipats in the 401 AHC Study had pre-existing
bone marrow suppression, likely due to the extétheair disease and/or previous exposure to myelo®ssive therapies. During and after SL-
401 treatment, these patients exhibited largelylstaone marrow function relative to their pre-treant condition, as determined by mean
absolute neutrophil, hemoglobin and platelet cooh&valuable patients. As a result, we expect#at#01, in contrast to traditional
chemotherapy, may not increase a patient’s susiiytto infection, anemia, or bleeding, or incseahe frequency of red blood cell or platele
transfusions or growth factor infusions. Furthegdéuse SL-401 does not appear to have overlapmungty with traditional hematologic
cancer therapies, SL-401 may be potentially contbimi¢h more traditional agents, without the needeuce the doses of any of the agents, i
future studies involving earlier-stage AML.

Anti-Tumor Activity

In the 401 AHC Study, one cycle of SL-401 administealone demonstrated anti-tumor activity, inahgdieductions in leukemia blast cells in
the bone marrow (i.e., reductions in tumor bulkjiizease stabilizations, in approximately halflbfraated patients, the majority of whom w
heavily pretreated, as summarized below. More §ipalty, reductions in leukemia blasts or diseasdifizations were seen in 46% of patients
with relapsed or refractory AML, 55% of AML who wepoor risk and thus not candidates for chemotlyerg#s of high-risk MDS patients
and 67% of relapsed or refractory BPDCN patientgable CRs were induced in two patients with redapsr refractory AML. There were al
multiple additional cases of robust blast reduciomresponse to a single cycle of SL-401 treatnibmb additional CRs occurred after a single
cycle of SL-401 in heavily pre-treated patientsmBPDCN.

SL-401 Clinical Anti-Tumor Activity in Patients wit h Advanced Hematological Cancers
After Only a Single Cycle of SL-401 Therapy

AML
AML AML (Not chemo MDS

(Relapsed refractory) (> 3rd line) Candidate) (High Risk) BPDCN

(n=59) (n=35%) (n=11) (n=7) (n=3)

Blast reductions/ diseas: 46% 43% 55% 43% 67%

stabilization

Blast reductions 25% 23% 27% 29% 67%

2 Durable CR! 1 Durable CF 2 CRs

AML = Acute myeloid leukemia; MDS = Myelodysplasticsyndrome; BPDCN = Blastic plasmacytoid dendritic ell neoplasm.
CR = Complete response
*Subpopulation of relapsed, refractory

Of the two AML patients who sustained durable C&Bfving a single cycle of SL-401 treatment, oneswagpatient refractory to standard
induction chemotherapy, and the other was a folimthAML patient. SL-401 induced a CR in an AML jeatt who failed standard induction
chemotherapy prior to entry into the 401 AHC Studgillowing SL-401 treatment, this patient’s leukeralast count decreased from 30% to
undetectable levels and peripheral blood countsmalized. This CR was durable and lasted eight nsr8h-401 also induced a CR in a
fourth-line AML patient who had failed three pren®treatment regimens, including two previous bmaerow transplantations prior to entry
into the 401 AHC Study. Following SL-401 treatmehts patient’s leukemic blast count decreased @%b to undetectable levels and
peripheral blood counts normalized. This CR cutyestceeds 25 months in duration. It is notablé tblowing only a single cycle of SL-401,
both of these patients achieved durable CRs witmablization of blood counts and bone marrow exationa.

In addition, a single cycle of SL-401 induced CR$wo patients with heavily pre-treated BPDCN, i@ r@nd aggressive hematologic
malignancy that highly overexpresses IL-3R. ThetiBPDCN patient was thirlilke, having received several prior intensive tmeait regimen
including high-dose chemotherapy and bone marransfrlantation. Following SL-401 treatment, thiseyats leukemic blasts, which had be
in the bone marrow and bloodstream before treatmesre no longer detectable. Additionally, thisigat's peripheral blood counts
normalized. Furthermore, this patient’'s enlargddep
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and lymph nodes, which were enlarged due to iafittn by malignant cells, also normalized. This i€Rngoing and currently exceeds
four months.

The second BPDCN patient was fourth-line, havireyjmusly been treated with three intensive reginwrhemotherapy, including high-dose
chemotherapy with bone marrow transplantation. Jditeent had malignant disease involving the skid lamne marrow, resulting in multiple
cutaneous lesions and low blood counts. Followibgl81 treatment, the patient achieved a CR witkevidence of BPDCN in the skin, bone
marrow, or bloodstream. In addition, the patisfiifood cell counts returned to normal levels amderious side effects were observed. This
is ongoing and currently exceeds two months.

Anti-CSC Effect

In addition to SL-401’s clinical activity, SB01 was also shown to have activity against leukegd8Cs collected from three patients enrolle
the 401 AHC Study. In this translational study twas coordinated with the 401 AHC Study, bone marsamples collected from several
patients both before and after SL-401 treatmenéeuested for CSC activity in a colony formationas&n assay that measures the ability of
CSCs to form colonies). As demonstrated by KonapieBloodin 2010 describing a study of samples collectethfpatients enrolled in the
401 AHC Study, and as illustrated below, a sub&thanti-CSC effect by SL-401 was observed, as detmated by considerable decreases in
bone marrow CSC activity at 15 and 30 days afted81 treatment. At 30 days pdstatment, CSC activity decreased by an averad8%f of
that measured at pretreatment. We believe tha¢ thteslies also provided preliminary evidence thatiteneficial clinical effects noted in some
patients in the 401 AHC Study may have been dugait) to the anti-CSC activity of SA081. In particular, reductions in leukemic CSCatti
30 days post-treatment of 79% and 84% were obsénveb patients, both of whom outlived the histatimedian OS of heavily pretreated
AML patients of 1.5 months by multiple fold, witiverall survival values of 7.2 months and 13.6 menthspectively. We intend to follow-up
on these positive preliminary data in future clalitrials.

SL-401 Demonstrates Clinical Anti-CSC Effect
(adapted from Konopleva et al. Blood 2010; 116:2bstract #3298)(1)

120

100

ad -

&0 —

% Colonies
(CSC Azaay)

20 —

Pra-SL-401 Day 15 Post-5L-401 Dy 30 Post-31-401

(1) The study was conducted as a collaboration amondlilsAnderson Cancer Center and Scott and White dMiadnHospital
and was completed after we licensed SL-401 frortt Sod White Memorial Hospital in 2006.

Survival Benefit

In the 401 AHC Study, SL-401, after only a singyele of therapy, demonstrated an improvement ina/survival, or OS, of the 35 most
heavily pretreated AML patients compared with higtl survival results. In particular, in AML patits who had failed at least two previous
therapies (i.e., third-line or greater), the med® following a single cycle of SL-401 was 3.6 nfemtwhich is more than double the historical
median OS of 1.5 months. Notably, the median Ol8vidhg a single cycle of SL-401 was 5.6 months,ahkhis more than three times the
historical median OS of 1.5 months, in a cohort®patients who received SL-401 at therapeutigalgvant doses. The six-month and 12-
month OS were also longer relative to comparablieps in a large contemporary series reported ibgs@t al. inCancerin 2005 and another
large series reported by Keating et al., indbarnal of Clinical Oncologyn 1989. These results are illustrated below.
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SL-401 (Single Cycle): Overall Survival
Survival benefit in AML patients ( > 3rd line) treated with
only a single cyclgall doses, n = 35 patients)
(Konopleva et al. American Society of Hematology28bstract #3625)

Median OS Median OS
(historical) {all doses)

1.5 mo 3.6 mo
(95% Cl: 2.3, 6.1 mo)

Survival (%)

Meonths

SL-401 (Single Cycle): Overall Survival
Survival benefit in AML patients ( > 3rd line) treated with
only a single cycldtherapeutically relevant doses*; n = 16 patients)
(Konopleva et al. American Society of Hematology28bstract #3625)

100 -
) -
-
gL
= -
B wl Median OS5 Median OS
£ (historical) (all doses)
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20+ (95% Cl: 2.5, 10.8 moj)
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o T T

Months

*Patients received the MTD (16.6 pg/kg/d) or ondéven doses below the MTD (9.4 and 12.5 pg/kg/d)

Notably, these results are based on the 401 AH@ySrgimen of only one cycle of -401. We believe that multiple-cycle administratiafn
SL-401 will further increase the clinical benefit®l -401. Accordingly, to maximize the potentianedits of SL-401, we plan to administer
multiple cycles of SL-401 in our planned Phase [Rbaal trials, as well as in other clinical evatizas of SL-401.

Planned Pivotal Program in BPDCN and Registrati-Directed Program in Third-Line AML and Regulatorgtrategy

We plan to complete a pivotal Phase 2b single-aahdf patients with relapsed or refractory blagtiasmacytoid dendritic cell neoplasm, or
BPDCN, with overall response rate as the primagpemt. BPDCN, a rare hematologic cancer for wi8th401 has demonstrated clinical

activity, is an orphan disease for which theredsapproved or standard treatment. Accordingly, eléeelie that a registration path based on a
relatively small nonrandomized trial with a surrtggandpoint can be pursued to potentially obtagekecated approval of SL-401 in BPDCN.

While we plan to enroll up to between 40 and 50ep&s in the trial, if during the course of thetrthe results are sufficiently robust, we will
seek approval with even fewer patients.

13




Table of Contents

We also plan to advance SL-401 into a registrativeeted randomized Phase 2b clinical trial tottrelapsed or refractory AML patients who
failed two previous treatments (i.e., third line AMPatients with relapsed or refractory AML in ttherd-line setting will be randomized to
treatment with either SL-401 or “physician’s chdjoghich consists of either an available, non-irtigetional (i.e., “standard”) therapeutic
agent or combination regimen. The primary endpdmtshe study will be CR rate and OS. Up to 24fignts will be randomized in a 2:1
manner whereby two patients will be treated with4BlI1 for every one patient treated with physiciastisice. The CR rate and OS will be
evaluated in the course of various interim analysesughout this study. Interim analyses are péeiegtaluations throughout a clinical study to
assess for efficacy and safety. If the study treatris determined to be highly beneficial or fytilee study could be stopped early.

In contrast to the 401 AHC Study, which was dedigee that all patients received only one cycleaedtment, multiple cycles of SL-401 will
be administered in the planned trials to maximifieacy. We believe that multiple cycle administosit of SL-401 may increase the rate and
duration of disease stabilization and response @tichately, further improve survival.

We also plan to evaluate the potential of SL-40additional hematologic cancer indications, inchgdearlier stages of AML as well as other
leukemias, lymphoma, and multiple myeloma.

SL-701 — A Multi-Epitope Brain Cancer Vaccine
Overview

SL-701, a clinically active therapeutic cancer iaecomprised of synthetic peptides, is designed teatlithe immune system to targets pre
on the CSCs and tumor bulk of brain cancer. Higidgrgliomas, or HGGs, are the most aggressive bamicers and have a poor prognosis.
Treatment options are limited, particularly for @dc patients with newly diagnosed HGG, includimrginstem glioma, or BSG, and adult
patients with recurrent or refractory HGG, inclugliglioblastoma multiforme, or GBM. In two completedase 1/2 clinical trials, SL-701
demonstrated uncommon single agent anti-tumorigctivthese indications, inducing tumor shrinkagedisease stabilization in 86% (19/22)
of HLA-A2+ (as defined below) pediatric glioma patts (the 701 Ped-G Study), and 59% (13/22) of 2% adult patients with recurrent or
refractory HGG (the 701 Adult-RHGG Study). To ddtere have been seven major objective tumor resgsofi.e., tumor regressions) in these
two studies, consisting of two CRs and five parnigponses, or PRs.

Dr. Hideho Okada of the University of Pittsburgth8al of Medicine was the sponsor of both the 70d-8eStudy and the 701 Adult-RHGG
Study. The principal investigators of the 701 Pe&tGdy were Dr. Okada, Dr. Regina Jakacki of th#d@dn’s Hospital of Pittsburgh and

Dr. lan Pollack of the University of Pittsburgh ®cdhof Medicine. Dr. Okada was the principal invgator of the 701 Adult-RHGG Study.
Trial results were delivered via oral presentaibthe American Society of Clinical Oncology (ASCA)nual Conference in June 2011. Trial
results were also presented at the American Astsocifor Cancer Research (AACR) Annual Meeting iprih2012.

We plan to advance SL-701 into a Phase 2b clitizdlto treat HLA-A2+ pediatric patients with mgifiant brainstem and non-brainstem
glioma. We plan to fund this trial primarily througovernment funding, if available. We also platnitiate a Phase 2b clinical trial in HLA-
A2+ adult patients with second-line GBM.

High-Grade Glioma (Including Adult Glioblastoma and Pedric Non-Brainstem and Brainstem Glioma)

Gliomas are histologically heterogeneous tumorsahaderived from glial cells in the brain. Gliosnare graded from 1 to 4, based on WHO
classifications, with grade 4 glioma (i.e., gliaktlama, or GBM) and grade 3 glioma (i.e., anaplastcocytoma, or AG) as the most aggressiv
gliomas and referred to as high-grade gliomas,®Gd. GBM makes up the majority of HGG cases, witlaianual incidence in adults of
approximately 10,000 in the United States and 16t0QL8,000 in Europe.

The standard of care for newly diagnosed adult GBksection, if operable, followed by a combinatds radiation and temozolomide

(i.e., the Stupp regimen). Although this combinaticeatment has improved patient outcomes, 85%9% 8f patients ultimately relapse, witt
median OS from diagnosis of 15 months. Ava&tin apigroved as a second-line therapy for adult GBM:tas response. However, most
recurrent patients receiving Avasfin  ultimatellapse, and the median OS for these second-linergatis approximately eight to

nine months. Currently, no therapies have beenoapprfor third-line treatment of GBM, which carri@snedian OS of three to four months.

14




Table of Contents

Pediatric HGG, which includes non-brainstem HGG BB, is a highly malignant disease with very pogicomes. The annual incidence of
pediatric HGG is approximately 1,600 to 2,000 ie United States and approximately 3,400 in Eurbjoetherapy has been shown to have a
favorable outcome in this population and almospatients relapse after receiving first-line treatitn Pediatric patients with newly diagnosed
HGG are typically treated with surgery, chemothgrapd/or radiation and have an expected mediarr@8 diagnosis of less than one year.

Design of SI-701 and Mechanism of Action

SL-701 is a therapeutic cancer vaccine comprisesthoit synthetic peptides that correspond to epgay the brain cancer targets IL-13R
and EphA2. The IL-13&2 synthetic peptide is a mutant specifically des@jto be highly immunogenic to amplify the vaccamahti-tumor

immune response.

Both the IL-13Ri2 and EphA2 targets are overexpressed on brairecarlls. We determined that EphA2 was overexptess® only on brain
tumor bulk, but also on brain CSCs. In particulgphA2 was found to be overexpressed on the sudiBlsrain cancer cells expressing CD133,

a marker of brain CSCs.

EphA2 Over-Expression on CSCs of GBM By Flow Cytontey
(Stemline Therapeutics, Inc.; unpublished data)
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SL-701, like other cancer vaccines, is combinedhadditional elements designed to promote an immesgonse, including a helper peptide
and an adjuvant. A helper peptide helps activatetayic T-cells, and is mixed with SL-701 prioradministration. An adjuvant similarly helps

stimulate the immune system, and is injected inéogatient concurrently with SL-701 administration.

Immune response analyses, including enzyme-linkedunosorbent spot, or ELISPOT, and tetramer assaye, used to assess peripheral
blood immune responses of patients to SL-701 aditnation.

Completed Phase 1/2 Clinical Trial — Pediatric Girea

In a completed Phase 1/2 trial, SL-701 was evalLimt@ediatric patients with glioma. We refer testhrial as the 701 Ped-G Study. The 701
Ped-G Study was undertaken in 27 HIBR&+ pediatric patients with glioma. Sixteen of thgmtients had newly diagnosed brainstem gliom
BSG, five had newly diagnosed non-brainstem HG&gelhad recurrent non-brainstem HGG and three héiipig recurrent low-grade
glioma, or LGG. Patients received a direct subcnag injection of SL-701 in the right or left upems associated with intact draining
auxiliary lymph nodes once every three weeks fotoup4 weeks with a separate concurrent injecticencadjuvant. The 701 P&al-Study wa:
a single-arm trial whose objectives were to deteenthe general safety, dosage and efficacy of SL-&6cordingly, all patients were treated
with SL-701 and there was no comparative arm of patiegtsvieg a control treatment or placebo. As sucis, tifial design was not intended
generate prospective comparative results conducigalculating their statistical significance aadgordingly, no p-values were generated.
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Well-Tolerated at Clinically Active Doses

SL-701 was well-tolerated at clinically active desAdverse effects included local injection sitaations and low grade fevers in almost all
patients, which were generally mild and controlkgth analgesics.

Clinical Activity

In the 701 Ped-G Study, SL-701 demonstrated siaggat clinical activity. Eighty-six percent (19/28)evaluable patients sustained durable
tumor reductions or disease stabilizations, inclgdhree patients who experienced durable PRs.obtiese PR patients is a child with newly
diagnosed BSG whose PR demonstrated greater tarilsor shrinkage and was 15 months in duratioe. S¢tond PR occurred in a child
with newly diagnosed non-brainstem HGG and was &#ths in duration. The third PR occurred in a chilth multiply recurrent LGG and
was nine months in duration. An additional childhwmewly diagnosed non-brainstem HGG had prolortisglase-free status of 20 months
following surgery. In addition, there were fourldadisease patients who survived at least 13 nsonth

In four cases, tumor pseudoprogression was seenoiTpseudoprogression is believed to represensiiy@sign, or surrogate marker, of anti-
tumor activity. Tumor pseudoprogression is mandddity edema and contrast enhancement on MRI antlazggiently mimic tumor
progression prior to regression and thus must befldéy monitored. Pseudoprogression has been naetidthe introduction of effective
treatments for brain tumors, such as stereotaatiotherapy, which have led to tumor responsesaiNgtthe PR patient whose response laste
15 months is believed to have experienced tumardug@Eogression prior to the PR.

Positive immunological assays (both ELISPOT anciteér assays) were demonstrated in six of sevdnade children, including the newly
diagnosed BSG pediatric patient who sustained abiePR that lasted 15 months. We believe thaetdat indicate that SL-701 treatment
stimulated the immune system in a highly specdighion.

Completed Phase 1/2 Clinical Trial — Adult, Recurrg High-Grade Glioma

In a completed Phase 1/2 clinical trial, 301 was evaluated in adult patients with recuroemefractory HGG. We refer to this study as thé&
Adult-RHGG Study. The 701 Adult-RHGG Study enrol@2l HLA-A2+ adult patients with recurrent or reffay HGG, 13 of which had
refractory or recurrent GBM, and nine of which feahplastic glioma, or AG. 50% of patients were sda@lapse or greater and two of the
refractory or recurrent GBM patients had receivedrgreatment with Avastifi . SL-701 was loadedvivoonto dendritic cells that had been
removed from the patient, which were then re-irgddhtra/perinodally back into the patient with a separate comreu injection of an adjuval
This delivery method contrasts with that used en701 Ped-G Study, in which SL-701 was administésgzhtients and demonstrated robust
antitumor activity as a direct subcutaneous ingectiThe 701 Adult-RHGG Study was a single-arm triabse objectives were to determine the
general safety, dosage and efficacy of SL-701. Adiogly, all patients were treated with SL-701 dnére was no comparative arm of patients
receiving a control treatment or placebo. We ind®aaluated the results against published histiodit@ for available therapies in the same
indication. As such, this trial design was not imtted to generate prospective comparative resulidummve to calculating their statistical
significance and, accordingly, no p-values wereegated.

Well-Tolerated at Clinically Active Doses

SL-701 was weltolerated at clinically active doses. Injectioresiéactions were the most common adverse eventgeaatally resolved withi
24 hours. These side effects do not overlap witisethof radiation, chemotherapy agents, and antegagic agents like Avastih , which are
mainstay therapies used to treat adult HGG. Wiewthat this implies that the development of Sl1-based combination regimens will
likely be feasible.

Clinical Activity

In the 701 Adult-RHGG Study, SL-701 demonstratedjls agent clinical activity. Forty-six percenti8) of refractory or recurrent GBM and
78% (7/9) of recurrent AG patients sustained airtantor response or disease stabilization. Thituthed two durable CRs, one of which
occurred in a 62-year-old male GBM patient who wedgactory to prior surgical resection, radiatiberapy and temozolomide. Following SL-
701 treatment, this patient’s gadolinium enhancedor mass
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disappeared, and the patient was determined toswstained a durable CR that exceeded 23 monthiabNpin this patient there was also a
significant increase in target-specific T-cellsvogek 29 as determined by a tetramer assay, comisvgiih a positive immune response to SL-
701. A recurrent AG patient with anaplastic olignasytoma sustained a CR that exceeded nine mantlasidition to the two durable CRs,
there were also three PRs. One PR was sustainagatient with recurrent GBM (second salvage, térd-line) and lasted seven months.
Notably, a po-SL-701 brain biopsy from this PR patient demoristiahe presence of macrophages and CD8+ T lympémoyhich are cells
of the immune system, within the tumor. We belithis indicates that SL-701 induced the immune systnd cytotoxic T-cells in particular,
to migrate to the area of the brain tumor and ieduenor shrinkage by targeting specific antigenringaCSCs and tumor bulk, and that this
patient experienced a tumor pseudoprogression farithre PR. This activity is consistent with theposed mechanism of action of SL-701
wherein SL-701 induces the immune system, and axiof cell in particular, to home to the tumor drpssing the blootbrain barrier and the
attacking the tumor. A second PR was sustainedpatiant with recurrent GBM whose PR exceeded lathsoin duration. The third PR was
seen in a recurrent AG patient.

Eighty-one percent (13/16) of evaluable patients dideast one positive immunological assay. Weetbelthis indicates that SL-701 treatment
stimulated the immune system in a highly specdihion.

Survival Benefit

SL-701 improved the median, six-month, and 12-m@hof adult patients with refractory or recurr&BM as well as recurrent AG,
compared with historical data. In refractory oringent GBM patients treated with SL-701, medianv@8 13 months, six-month OS was 80%
and 12month OS was 55%, as illustrated in the figure Wwelbhese rates represent improvements over therttiak median OS of five to sew
months, the historical six-month OS of 38% to 53%d the historical 12-month OS of 14% to 25%. RexurAG patients treated with SL-701
also experienced an improvement in OS comparedhistiorical results.

Kaplan-Meier Survival Curve
of Recurrent or Refractory Adult HGG Patients Treated with SL-701
(Okada et al., Journal of Clinical Oncology 20118:330-336)
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Low-Grade Glioma Trial in Adult Patients

There is currently a study of SL-701 open in agatients with LGG. 24 HLA-A2+ patients have beerodiad, including 13 with newly
diagnosed high-risk LGG without prior radiotherapge with newly diagnosed high-risk LGG with priadiotherapy and ten with recurrent
LGG. Patients were treated with SL-701 via diredicitaneous injection every three weeks for upghteourses. SL-701 was well tolerated
and demonstrated immune responses in high-risk pdtients with LGG. Side effects were minimal withe grade 3 fever. Sustained and
specific immune responses, as assessed by ELISBSaysa were observed in the majority of evaluahteepts. Although a thorough
evaluation of progression-free survival requirdsraer observation period, among 17 patients whopdeted eight courses, 10 had stable
disease. Dr. Hideho Okada of the University ofsBitirgh School of Medicine is the sponsor of thel\stand Dr. Frank Lieberman of the
University of Pittsburgh School of Medicine is thieéncipal investigator.
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Planned Phase 2b Clinical Trials and Regulatory Stegy
Pediatric Trial

We have collaborated with the Pediatric Brain Tui@onsortium, or PBTC, to apply for funding from tRational Cancer Institute, or NCI, f
the SL-701 trial in pediatric patients with maligné&rainstem and non-brainstem glioma. The lettémtent that we and the PBTC submitted
for the pediatric trial was approved by the NCOaotober 2012. We must still obtain approval offilleprotocol, which we are pursuing now,
before this pediatric trial may begin. If the firmbtocol is approved, we and the PBTC plan to sseiexecution of the trial and manageme
clinical trial sites. In addition, we plan to prdei SL-701 drug supply and submit a corporate INfze PBTC was formed by the NCI and
consists of participating academic centers andiddil's hospitals that are responsible for the diagnand treatment of children with primary
brain tumors in the United States. The PBTC's printbjective is to rapidly conduct novel clinicaladuations of new therapeutic drugs and
treatment strategies in pediatric patients froraniafy to 21 years of age with primary central nesveystems tumors.

Adult Trial

We also plan to initiate a Phase 2b clinical tinahdult patients with second-line GBM. In thisatriwhich may include up to 30 patients, we
plan to administer SL-701 in combination with thenslard of care in this indication, which curren#iypevacizumab (Avastiti ).

The Cancer Stem Cell Opportunity
Limitations of Current Cancer Therapie

According to the National Cancer Institute, carisghe second leading cause of death in the UStates and is responsible for nearly one
quarter of all deaths in the United States. Theddat Institutes of Health estimated that the totadt of treating cancer in 2010 was

$125 billion. Current cancer treatments, which mfteclude chemotherapy and radiation as well asen¢argeted therapies, have shown a
limited overall survival benefit when used in advad stages of the most common cancers. Moreovemipact of current treatments on many
other cancers, including AML, brain malignancied anultiple other cancer types has also been gmitlsif any. We believe that it is
becoming increasingly accepted within the oncolfiglg, based on a progressively increasing bodsupfportive data, that a major reason for
such failures is that available therapeutics fagffectively eliminate CSCs, which continue toopplate the cancer despite these standard
treatments.

Cancer Stem Cell Overview

The field of CSCs is a rapidly emerging new areeaasfcer biology that we believe may fundamentdtigrahe approach to oncology drug
development. CSCs comprise a highly malignant;resléwing subpopulation of cancer cells within mdu, often slow-growing, that is both
highly tumorigenic, or tumor-producing, as wellrasistant to traditional anti-cancer therapiestingdato the rest of the largely fast-growing
tumor bulk to which it gives rise.

CSCs have been identified in virtually all of thajor tumor types including most of the common saldi hematologic cancer types. As shu
in several examples below, researchers have ightiimerous tumor types that harbor CSCs, inctutinkemia and cancers of the brain,
breast, colon, prostate, pancreas, and others.
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Tumor Types
Harboring CSCs

Examples of Tumor Types with CSCs

Published Studies

Acute myeloid leukemi
Breast cance

Brain cance

Acute lymphoblastic leukem
Myeloma

Chronic myeloid leukemi
Prostate canct

Lung cance

Melanoma

Ovarian cance
Pancreatic canct
Myelodysplastic syndrom
Liver cancel

Colon cance

Bladder cance

CSCs are Tumorigenic

Bonnet et alNat Med1997; 3:73-737
Al-Hajj et al.PNAS2003; 100:398-3988
Singh et alNature2004; 432:39-401

Cox et alBlood2004; 104:291-2925
Matsui et alBlood2004; 103:233-2336
Eisterer et alLeukemiz2005; 19:43-441
Collins et al.Cancer Re2005; 65:1094-10951
Kim et al.Cell 2005; 121:82-835

Fang et alCancer Re2005; 65:932-9337
Bapat et alCancer Re:2005; 65:302-3029
Li et al. Cancer Re2007; 67:103-1037
Nilsson et alBlood2007; 110:300-3014
Ma et al.Oncogene2008; 27:174-1758
O'Brien et al.Nature2007; 445:10-110
He et al.Stem Cell2009; 27:148-1495

CSCs are a small subpopulation of highly maligreatis within a tumor that many within the oncoldigid believe are responsible for the
tumorigenicity, meaning the source of growth, @ #ntire cancer. CSCs typically comprise approxéget% to 5% of the entire cancer and
give rise to, or “seed”, the tumor bulk that corsps the remaining 85% of the tumor. In particular, isolated CSCs, tuator bulk, have been
shown capable of reconstituting the entire tum@vawhen transplanted into immunocompromised mick emportantly, are able to do so
upon repeated serial retransplantation.

CSCs are Relatively Resistant to Traditional Therep

In addition to being highly tumorigenic, CSCs alsoaesistant, relative to tumor bulk, to convengibanticancer therapies. This may be du
the many challenging characteristics of CSCs, tfialgi slow growth, presence of multi-drug resistapiegeins, anti-cell death mechanisms,
and increased activity of cellular mechanisms tapair damaged DNA. As shown in several examplé&siheesearchers have shown that
CSCs are resistant to chemotherapy, radiatiogrgeted therapy relative to tumor bulk.
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Examples of CSC Resistance to Traditional Therapies

CSC Type Resistance to Therapy Published Studies

Acute leukemie Daunorubicin, Mitoxantron Woulf et al.Blood2001; 98:116-1173

Acute leukemie AraC Guzman et alBlood2001; 98:230-2307
Brain cance BCNU Kang and KangStem Cells De2007; 16:83-847
Brain cance Radiation Bao et alNature2006; 444:75-760

Breast cance Radiation Phillips et alJNCI2006; 98:177-1785
Chronic leukemit Gleeve® Graham et aBlood2002; 99:31-325

Colon cance 5-FU, Oxaliplatin Todaro et alCell Stem Cel2007; 1:38-402
Liver cancel Doxorubicin, -FU Ma et al.Oncogene2008; 27:174-1758
Lung cance Cisplatin Bertolini et al.PNAS2009; 106:162€-16286
Myeloma Velcad® Matsui et alCancer Re2008; 68:19-197
Pancreatic canct Gemcitabine Hermann et alCell Cycle2008; 7:18-193

Not only have CSCs been shown to resist tradititmadapies, but in some cases CSCs have also beem $o increase, as a percentage of
tumor cells, as a result of exposure to a traditidinerapy. For example, as described by Bao @t Blaturein 2006, CSCs of brain tumors
increase as a percentage of the entire cancewialjporadiation treatment. Similarly, as shown byridann et al. irCell Stem Celin 2007,
pancreatic CSCs increase following gemcitabindimeat inin vivoxenograft models.

CSCs Correlate with Prognosis

Consistent with their pivotal role in the developrhef tumors and relapse, higher amounts of CS@siient tumors as a percentage of their
entire cancer have been shown to correlate with paxgnosis. For example, CSC fractions greater $18% and 1% of the entire cancer
correlate with poor survival outcomes in patienihvAML and brain cancer, respectively, as showrvag Rhenen et al. i@linical Cancer
Researclin 2005 (for AML) and Zeppernick et al. @®linical Cancer Researcim 2008 (for brain cancer).

Stemline's Anti-CSC Drug Development Opportunity

While standard therapies may initially shrink tusby targeting the tumor bulk, we believe it isrgasingly accepted within the oncology fi
that the failure of these therapies to eradicat€<S a major contributor to treatment failure, tumrelapse and poor survival. Accordingly, we
believe that targeting CSCs, in addition to tumalkbmay represent a major advance in the fightreg@ancer. This premise has formed the
basis of our drug development strategy, as illtstrdelow.
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Since our inception, we have leveraged our knovdeafgCSCs to anticipate and establish a leadedsjiion in this new field of oncology.
During this time, we have developed or strategycaHllicensed key intellectual property, built avalidated a drug discovery platform, and
developed clinically active drug candidates. Wedyel that our early and comprehensive effort toettigy the next generation of oncology
therapeutics that target CSCs, as well as the tlml&y provides us with a significant competitivdvantage.

Our Platform Technologies

We have developed an innovative platform technalogiled StemScreéh |, currently consisting of Stene&h® -1 and StemScre®&n -2, for
the identification of novel CS@iected compounds. This platform contrasts wididitional drug discovery methods in oncology theaténbeel
designed to identify compounds that target tumdk,mot CSCs. StemScre€n -1 is a technology deeelop discover CSC-targeted
compounds and involves the isolation of CSCs, theodery of potential CSC targets through CSC geqpeession analysis, and the
identification and validation of compounds that anpcandidate CSC targets. StemScfeen -2 utilizessay that uses live cells to track and
follow CSCs in their natural state during high tigbput screening and permits the rapid testingarfyrcompounds on a small scale for
enhanced efficiency. We believe that this appraaphesents a major technological advance in ongaldogg discovery. We have utilized
StemScreefi to discover several of our productidatel. We believe that this robust platform wélibstrumental in the discovery of
additional new therapies targeting a wide rangeaoter types.

StemScreer®-1

StemScreef? -1 is a validated, proprietary drugadisgy platform designed to identify CSC-targetethpounds based on the isolation of
CSCs and evaluation of CSC gene expression pro@8€s are isolated from primary tumor tissue dlirlicees, and then subjected to gene
expression analysis using a variety of technologietuding microarray. A control tissue, such asmal bone marrow is analyzed as a
comparator against the gene expression profilaefdolated CSCs. These data are then interfadédawiinformation base of compounds and
their mechanisms of action (i.e. which gene prosiactd pathways they impact). Compound classefianeidentified as likely to impact CSC-
specific pathways discovered by the gene expressialyses. Select compounds within these classdbem tested in our anti-CSC functional
in vitro andin vivoassays. Compounds that demonstrate anti-CSC gaiatthen considered for further development, tvim@ay include lead
optimization. We have utilized StemScréen -1 teaali®r a number of our preclinical drug candidafé®se include SL-201, SL-301, and SL-
601. In addition, SL-401 demonstrated activity agaiCSCs as determined by bothiraritro colony formation anéh vivoanimal implantation
assay, thereby validating certain StemScfeen {1GS(€ assays.

StemScreel®-2

StemScreefl -2 is a proprietary high throughput diiegovery platform we are developing to discovarei anti-CSC compounds. Traditional
oncology drug discovery screens have largely reljgoh readouts that measure activity against turall, and have not been specifically
designed to identify compounds with activity agai@SCs. StemScreén -2 is based on a key discos@rgred by intellectual property
controlled by Stemline, that immortal cancer deles harbor not only tumor bulk but also CSCs. Tisovery enables compounds to be
screened, in a high throughput manner, for actagginst CSCs in their natural state.

StemScreef? 2-utilizes an assay that uses live cells to tramkfallow CSCs in their natural state during highoughput screening and pernr
the rapid testing of many compounds on a smalksimalenhanced efficiency. In particular, StemSefee2 utilizes a CSC-specific promoter
linked to a reporter as a method for identifyingl dollowing CSCs in their native environment of mumding tumor bulk, as illustrated below.
In this way, StemScreé¢h -2 enables the identificatif compound “hits,” in a high throughput manneith anti-CSC activity.
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Notably, prior to the development of StemScr®-2, screens for anti-CSC compounds had been linditedto 1) reliance on finite sources of
primary tissue specimens rather than immortal cacelelines, and 2) purification of CSCs away fréime rest of the tumor, each thereby
limiting screens to small libraries in relativetyw throughput systems. Moreover, other CSC-focssegens have recently been developed th:
require artificial manipulation to create the CSt@potype from non-CSCs in the context of an imnmaed line. Thus, we believe that
StemScreefl -2, unlike other CSC-focused screenmtgrss, is distinct because it is both high thrqugland accurately represents the CSC
phenotype in its native, unaltered state.

StemScreefl -2 also allows for further optimizatiminiaturization, and screening in a high throughpanner for drug candidates with anti-
CSC activity from large libraries of chemical oolsigic compounds.

An initial screen of a moderately sized chemicahpound library led to the identification of sevefaits,” comprising 2.4% of the library,
which demonstrated activity against CSCs with grnetitan 50% growth inhibition. Several of these poomds were then further validated
using secondary functional assays to confirm aE&ctivity. We plan to further optimize StemScré&e for larger scale screening as wel
expand its applicability for use in a broad ranf®imor types either alone and/or in collaboratigth a strategic partner.

Preclinical Pipeline

Stemline has assembled a pipeline of small molscel monoclonal antibody-based, or mAb-based, oamgs directed to targets on CSCs
and tumor bulk. This pipeline was built throughaaigty of methods, including discovery via our giefary platforms as well as through in-
licensing of certain key intellectual property.

We have also in-licensed certain intellectual propedirected to mAb-based therapeutics to validatecblogy targets including Glypican-3,
Tie-1, CD133, Frizzled, Smoothened and Patched. Sortesé antibody targets are also being pursuedh®gy biopharmaceutical compani
We may develop, or partner with third parties tealep, any or all of these mAbs.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

We strive to protect our product candidates anduskaty rights, as well as both maintain and fiyrour position in the CSC field. We believe
our intellectual property portfolio consists of lgaand broad filings in the area. We have focusegatents and patent applications covering,
where possible, our products and methods of useigproducts in disease treatment. We have alagsézton patents and patent applications
covering, wherever possible, broad facets of CS€etkd therapeutics, diagnostics, including compadiagnostics, and drug discovery. We
have sought and continue to seek the strongesibpmastellectual property protection availableu®in order to prevent others from directly
competing with us, as well as to exclude competiticound our products, their methods of use inadisdéreatment, as well as, more generally,
CSC-directed therapeutics, diagnostics includimpmanion diagnostics, and drug discovery.
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Our intellectual property portfolio contains 13uesl patents and more than 30 pending applicatiotiei U.S. and worldwide of both in-
licensed and Stemline-originated inventions. Thigtfplio includes patents and proprietary rightsuard (i) Stemline’s drug candidates and

(i) CSC-focused intellectual property, which indés early and broad filings in the CSC field covgiCSC therapeutics, diagnostics, including
companion diagnostics, and drug discovery.

Patents and Proprietary Rights Covering Steml's Drug Candidates

We have an exclusive worldwide license to SL-4(iede patent rights consist of an issued U.S. péteSt Patent 7,763,242) covering a
method of treating MDS that expires in 2027 anddomm U.S. and foreign applications directed to mdthof using S1401 to treat MDS, AMI
and other diseases that, if issued, would alsaexpi2027. In addition, we have filed U.S. ancefgn patent applications for the method of
using SL-401 to treat MDS and AML, although thea@ e no assurances that such patents will bedsbuaddition to patent protections, we
also have the exclusivity afforded by the FDA’sltap designation of SL-401 for the treatment of AkHd by the provisions of the Biologics
Price Competition and Innovation Act of 2009. Wanpto seek orphan designation from the FDA for4®l1-for the treatment of BPDCN. See
“Government Regulation — Orphan Drug Designatiomd &— U.S. Patent Term Restoration and Marketingl&sivity—Biologics Price
Competition and Innovation Act of 2009”.

We have an exclusive worldwide license to SL-70thgonent, IL-13R2, and a non-exclusive worldwide license to SL-é¢6tponent,
EphA2. These patent rights consist of an issu&l thmposition of matter patent (U.S. Patent 7 832), directed to an immunogenic mutant
IL-13Ra2 peptide expiring in 2025 and issued U.S. metHagse patent (U.S. Patents 7,297,337 and 8,114¢difE0ted to the use of EphA2
peptides used in SL-701 expiring in 2025 and 202gpectively. We also have pending patent appicatdirected to methods of using 301
to treat certain diseases, which if issued woutd/jole additional protection in the United Stated aartain non-U.S. territories and would
expire in 2025.

We also in-licensed, our own, exclusive patenttdgh the U.S. and abroad to our preclinical progga For example, we in-licensed exclusive
rights to SL-101, an antibody-based compound targetD123.

Patents and Proprietary Rights Covering C-Focused Intellectual Property

We have exclusive worldwide rights to early anddarpatents and patent applications in the CSC ielering CSC therapeutics, diagnostics,
including companion diagnostics, and drug discovery

*  Atherapeutic patent (U.S. Patent 8,038,998) thaers a method to treat cancer through use of nionalcantibodies and other
antibody-based compounds that target CSCs, antdgtending applications that cover methods td traacer through use of
small molecule or oligonucleotide-based compouhdstarget CSCs. Patent protection for these pé&derities extends from
2017 or 2019, as applicable;

« Adiagnostic patent (U.S. Patent 6,004,528), atated pending applications, that covers the diaigmufscancer through detecti
of CSCs. Patent protection extends from 2017 08284 applicable;

*  Four issued patents that cover methods to treaecdhrough use of monoclonal antibodies and aih&body-based compounds
directed to six specific key targets: Frizzled, @tan-3, Tie-1, CD133, Smoothened, and Patchedsel'beS. Patents are:
7,361,336; 7,427,400; 7,504,103; and 7,608,25%®rRatrotection extends from 2017 or 2019, as apiple;

*  Two pending patent applications filed in 2006 dieelcto CSC-directed therapies and regimens, inctu@iSC-directed therapies
and regimens for use in combination with compani@agnostics. Patent protection, to the extensités, would be expected to
extend to 2027;

« A pending patent application that covers oligonatitie-based oncology therapies, including CSC-tadytherapeutics, which
target microRNA. Patent protection, to the exteégsues, would be expected to extend to 2022;
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*  Afamily of intellectual property covering methotdstreat cancer through use of antibody-based comg®directed to IL-3R,
including U.S. Patent 7,651,678; U.S. Patent 6,788,and other pending applications. Patent priatecto the extent it issues,
would be expected to extend to 2021; and

» Pending patent applications covering CSC-focusad discovery, including a novel high throughpuiesar to discover
compounds that target CSCs. Patent protectiomet@xtent it issues, would be expected to exter2Ddb.

Intellectual Property Strateg

We continually assess our intellectual propertgtstyy in order to fortify our position in our matlepace. To that end, we are prepared to file
additional patent applications in any of the abfamilies should our intellectual property strategguire such filings and/or where we seek to
adapt to competition or seize business opportiikarther, we are prepared to file patent apptinatrelating to the other products in our
pipeline soon after the experimental data necegsawy strong application become available andomst-benefit analyses justify filing such
applications.

In addition to filing and prosecuting patent apalions in the United States, we typically file cterpart patent applications in Europe, Canade
Japan, Australia, and additional countries whereghirgk such foreign filing is likely to be benefidi

We do not know if patents will be issued for alltbé patent applications in our portfolio. Furtherm for patent claims now issued and for
claims to be issued in the future, we do not knfosuch claims will provide significant proprietapyotection to our drug candidates and
proprietary technologies or if they will be chaljgrl, circumvented, or invalidated. Our successiwitlart depend on our ability to obtain and
maintain patents protecting our drug candidatehnelogies and inventions, to operate without ingfiing the proprietary rights of third parties,
and to enforce and defend our patents and endoeesaio not infringe on our proprietary rights.

The term of individual patents depends upon thallesgm of the patents in the countries in whickythre obtained. In most countries in which
we file, the patent term is 20 years from the eatldate of filing a non-provisional patent apgima In the United States, a patent’s term may
be shortened if a patent is terminally disclaimedranother patent or as a result of delays inmpa@tie@secution by the patentee, and a patent’s
term may be lengthened by patent term adjustmerichacompensates a patentee for administrativeysddg the U.S. Patent and Trademark
Office in granting a patent.

The term of a patent that covers an FDA-approved dr biologic may also be eligible for patent tesrtension, which permits patent term
restoration as compensation for the patent terirdiasng the FDA regulatory review process. ThedRrice Competition and Patent Term
Restoration Act of 1984, or the Hatch-Waxman Aetnpits a patent term extension of up to five yéewond the expiration of the patent. The
length of the patent term extension is relatedhéléngth of time the drug or biologic is underulagpry review. Patent extension cannot exi
the remaining term of a patent beyond a total ofddrs from the date of product approval and only patent applicable to an approved drug
or biologic may be extended. Similar provisionsarailable in Europe and other foreign jurisdictida extend the term of a patent that cover:
an approved drug or biologic. In the future, if amgen our pharmaceutical products receive FDA amirave expect to apply for patent term
extensions on patents covering those products. Migizate that some of our issued patents mayibékd for patent term extensions. For
more information regarding U.S. patent laws, seesiBess — Government Regulation.”

In addition to the patent term extension rightscdesd above, any of our product candidates tregive FDA approval may also be eligible for
market exclusivity protection under the Federaldsdarug and Cosmetic Act or the Biologics Price @etition and Innovation Act of 2009.
For more information regarding market exclusivayk, see “Business — Government Regulation.”

Many pharmaceutical companies, biotechnology conggaend academic institutions are competing witihube field of oncology and filing
patent applications potentially relevant to ouribess. In order to contend with the inevitable pwty of third party intellectual property
conflicts, from time to time, we review and ass&sthird-party intellectual property landscapedompetitive and other developments that
may inform or impact our intellectual property dieyenent and commercialization strategies.

From time to time, we may find it necessary or pntdo obtain licenses from third party intelledtpioperty holders. Where licenses are
readily available at reasonable cost, such liceasesonsidered a normal cost of doing businessthier
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instances, however, where a third party holds ealeintellectual property and is a direct competitolicense might not be available on
commercially reasonable terms or available attatordingly, we attempt to manage the risk thatsiiird party intellectual property may
pose by conducting, among other measures, freedespérate studies to guide our early-stage reseavely from areas where we are likely to
encounter obstacles in the form of third partyllat@ual property. As our programs advance, weiooetto monitor the intellectual property
landscape in an effort to assess the advisabfliigensing third party intellectual property okiag other appropriate steps to address such
freedom-to-operate or development issues in thenerame deem in the best interests of the Company.

With respect to third party intellectual propeiityis impossible to establish with certainty that product candidates or discovery platform will
be free of claims by third party intellectual prageholders or whether we will require licensesnireuch third parties. Even with modern
databases and on-line search engines, literataretss are imperfect and may fail to identify ral@vpatents and published applications. Evel
when a third party patent is identified, we mayauode upon a thorough analysis, that we do noingé the patent or that the patent is invalid.
If the third party patent owner disagrees with coamclusion and we continue with the business dgtimiquestion, we might have patent
litigation thrust upon us. Alternatively, we migiegcide to initiate litigation in an attempt to haveourt declare the third party patent invalid ol
not infringed by our activity. In either scenanmtent litigation typically is costly and time-camsing, and the outcome is uncertain. The
outcome of patent litigation is subject to uncentias that cannot be quantified in advance, formgla, the credibility of expert withesses who
may disagree on technical interpretation of sciientiata. Ultimately, in the case of an adverseonte in litigation, we could be prevented
from commercializing a product or using certainexdp of our discovery platform as a result of patefingement claims asserted against us.
This could have a material adverse effect on osirlass.

To protect our competitive position, it may be res@gy to enforce our patent rights through litigatagainst infringing third parties. Litigation
to enforce our own patent rights is subject todfwme uncertainties discussed above. In additiomeber, litigation involving our patents
carries the risk that one or more of our patentsheiheld invalid (in whole or in part, on a claimy-claim basis) or held unenforceable. Such
an adverse court ruling could allow third partiesbémmercialize our products or our platform tedbgg, and then compete directly with us,
without payment to us.

License and Research Agreements
Scott and White Memorial Hospite
Research and License Agreement-401)

In June 2006, we entered into a research and Bcagieement with Scott and White Memorial HosfdalSL-401, our biologic targeted
therapy directed to the IL-3R. Under the agreen@ooit and White has granted us an exclusive, typyedaring, worldwide license under
certain patent rights, know-how and materials seagch, develop, make, have made, formulate, abegofer to sell and import SL-401, and
any products containing or comprising such compaduarfthished dosage pharmaceutical form, for tregdosis, prophylaxis and/or treatment
of any disease or condition in humans or animaie Jatent rights exclusively licensed to us underagreement are described in more detalil
above under “Business — Patents and ProprietaftRig

We must pay Scott and White royalties based onséeljugross sales, by us or our sublicensees, diipt® containing the licensed compound
for a period of ten years following the first conmtial sale of each product in each country. Thalyyrates for each product range from the
low- to mid-single digits and are tiered based onannual sales. We have sublicensing rights uthdeagreement, subject to our paying to
Scott and White a percentage of the up-front payswee receive from a sublicensee.

We must exercise commercially reasonable effortietelop and commercialize a licensed product arathieve certain regulatory milestones
within certain periods, subject to extensions basednforeseen technical, scientific, intellectpdperty or regulatory issues. If we fail to
comply with our diligence obligations with respéetat least one licensed product, then Scott andéMiay convert our exclusive license to a
non-exclusive license.

The agreement survives until the later of the extjmin of the last to expire licensed patent ordage on which we owe no further payments to
Scott and White, after which our license becoméyg paid up, irrevocable, perpetual, non-exclusavel royalty-free. We may terminate the
license in whole or on a country-by-country anddorat-by-product basis upon prior
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written notice to Scott and White. If either weSwott and White breach a material obligation unkderagreement, and such obligation is not
cured within a specified period of time followingitten notice from the other party, then the noaawhing party may terminate the agreemen
upon an additional written notice.

In addition, the agreement provides for Scott ardt¥to conduct a research program with&l1t. In March 2010, the agreement was ame

to further the regulatory advancement of SL-401.hafee made certain payments to Scott and Whiteuoln research services pursuant to the
agreement, which to date total approximately $0lifam in the aggregate. Additionally, upon our tesgt, the agreement requires Scott and
White to either assign to us its IND for SL-401goant us the exclusive right to reference its IMDHe event we file our own IND for SL-401.
We may assign the agreement to an affiliate of,aumirchaser of all or substantially all of ousets or in connection with a merger, change il
control or similar transaction by us.

University of Pittsburgh
Exclusive License Agreement t-13Rx2 peptide (SL-701 component)

In September 2009, we entered into an exclusientie agreement with the University of Pittsburghhe University, for the composition of
matter, and use with other components, of a pri@siemmunogenic mutant analog peptide of IL-&2Ran active ingredient of SL-701, our
brain cancer vaccine candidate. Under the agreertmentniversity grants us an exclusive worldwidemse under certain patent rights to
make, have made, use, sell and import brain cqreqaide antigen vaccines (including SL-701, whiek been developed by the University
under a separate vaccine name designated by tlversity). The patent rights exclusively licensedisounder the agreement are described in
more detail above under “Business — Patents anprietary Rights.” The University retains the rigbtpractice the licensed patent rights for
non-commercial education and research purposes. Térskcis also subject to certain retained righth@tnited States government. Our ri
to grant sublicenses to third parties is subjethéoprior written approval of the University, whithe University may not unreasonably
withhold or delay.

We paid the University an initial license fee anitl pay the University annual license maintenareesfuntil the first commercial sale of a
licensed product. To date, we have paid an aggeesfatpproximately $75,000 in fees to the Univgraitder the agreement. We must also pa)
the University a low-single digit royalty as a pemtage of net sales of licensed products by usiosublicensees, with standard provisions for
royalty offsets to the extent we need to obtain rgiyts from third parties to commercialize theshised products. We must also pay a minir
annual royalty following the first commercial saifa licensed product, but only to the extent theimum annual royalty amount is greater
than the annual royalty otherwise due. We also pagtthe University a percentage of non-royaltyeraie we receive from our sublicensees,
which decreases if we enter into the applicabldiceise agreement after a certain clinical milestbas been met. We also must make certair
payments to the University of up to approximatedyl$million upon the achievement of specific regig and commercial milestone events.

We must use our commercially reasonable best sffortievelop or commercialize a licensed produsbas as practicable, and to continue
active, diligent marketing efforts throughout teem of the agreement. We also must adhere to nespacific regulatory milestones with
respect to initiating clinical trials and submitiian application for regulatory approval of a lised product. If we fail to meet any such
milestone through no fault of our own, we may negetwith the University a one-time extension af #pplicable dates, subject to paying the
University a fee. If we do not meet the extendelbstone dates, then the University may terminateatireement.

The agreement survives until the expiration ofl&st to expire licensed patent. The University eayninate the agreement if we default in the
performance of any of our obligations and do needbe default within a specified period of timésafreceiving notice from the University, or
if we challenge the validity, enforceability or oanship of the license patent rights anywhere innthdd. The University may also terminate
the agreement if we cease to carry out our busimelsscome bankrupt or insolvent. We may termitia¢eagreement for any reason upon prio
written notice to the University and payment ofatiounts due to the University through the datewhination. Any sublicense agreement
entered into prior to termination will survive, ekt to certain customary conditions. We may as#igragreement to an affiliate of ours, a
purchaser of all or substantially all of our assets connection with a merger, change in condradimilar transaction by us.
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Nor-Exclusive License Agreement to EphA2 peptide (BLedmponent)

In March 2012, we entered into a non-exclusivenggeagreement with the University for the use diA&pepitopes, another active ingredient
of SL-701. Under the agreement, the University tgais a norexclusive worldwide license under certain pategtts to use the EphA2 pept

in or packaged with the IL-13R peptide, as well as other vaccines we may de\aiojpown or exclusively control, for the diagnogisatmen
or prevention of diseases and tumors of the bralluman patients. The patent rights licensed tonder the agreement are described in more
detail above under “Business — Patents and Prapyi&ights.” The University retains the right t@aptice the licensed patent rights for non-
commercial education and research purposes. Téreskcgrant is also subject to certain retainedgighthe United States government. We
may only grant sublicenses to third parties whopamnitted sublicensees under the exclusive IL¢BBeptide license agreement with the
University.

We must pay the University an initial license fard will pay the University annual license mainterefees until the net sales of a licensed
product exceed a specified amount. To date, we paictan aggregate of approximately $25,000 in feelse University under the agreement.
We must also pay the University a customary lovgigirdigit royalty for the license as a percentafyeed sales of licensed products by us or
our sublicensees, with standard provisions for ltgyafsets to the extent we need to obtain anfitégrom third parties to commercialize the
licensed products. We must also pay a minimum dmoyalty following the first commercial sale ofiaensed product, but only to the extent
the minimum annual royalty amount is greater thenannual royalty otherwise due.

We must use our commercially reasonable best sffortievelop or commercialize a licensed produsbas as practicable, and to continue
active, diligent marketing efforts throughout teem of the agreement. We also must adhere to nespacific regulatory milestones with
respect to initiating clinical trials and submitiian application for regulatory approval of a lised product. If we fail to meet any such
milestone by certain specified dates, then the &lsity may terminate the agreement.

The agreement survives until the expiration ofl#fst to expire licensed patent. The University neayninate the agreement if we default in the
performance of any of our obligations and do naedbe default within a specified time period afaiwing notice from the University. The
University may also terminate the agreement if e@se to carry out our business or become bankrupsalvent. We may terminate the
agreement for any reason upon prior written ndticiene University and payment of all amounts duth&oUniversity through the date of
termination. Any sublicense agreement enteredpntwr to termination will survive, subject to cantaustomary conditions. We may assign
agreement to an affiliate of ours, a purchasetl@raubstantially all of our assets or in conf@twith a merger, change in control or similar
transaction by us.

Nor-Exclusive License Agreement to use and refereetaic data, information and regulatory filings (S101)

In March 2012, we entered into a non-exclusivengzeagreement with the University. Pursuant taatireement, we acquired a non-exclusive,
worldwide license to use and reference certain khow, information and data that is contained inlthBs covering the clinical trials of SL-
701 that were conducted by the University for teeedlopment, manufacture, regulatory approval amdngercialization of pharmaceutical
products. We may grant sublicenses in conjunctiith a/sublicense to a permitted sublicensee urigeexclusive IL-13R2 peptide license
agreement with the University.

We paid the University an initial license fee, aalvas payments following a regulatory milestone.dite, we have paid an aggregate of
approximately $15,000 in fees to the University emithe agreement. We also must pay the Univergigreentage of non-royalty revenue we
receive from our sublicensees. We must use our @wially reasonable best efforts to develop or cenumalize a product derived from the
use of the licensed data or information as soqmasticable. We also must adhere to a specificlaggty milestone with respect to submitting
an application for regulatory approval that incagies the licensed data or information, and if aieth meet the milestone, the University may
terminate the agreement unless we have pre-paithitestone payment listed above.

The term of the license agreement is 20 yearstl@tniversity may terminate the agreement eafiléf we default in the performance of any
of our obligations and do not cure the default with specified time period, (ii) upon the termipatiof the exclusive IL-13&2 peptide license
agreement with the University, or (iii) if we cedsecarry out our business or become bankruptsoli#ent. We may terminate the agreeme!
any time prior to incorporating or referencing ttega or University INDs, after a specified numbdays following written notice. We may
assign the agreement to an affiliate of
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ours, a purchaser of all or substantially all of assets or in connection with a merger, changeitrol or similar transaction by us.
Cambridge University Technical Services Limited

Exclusive Patent and N-Exclusive Know-How License Agreement (Platformhiietogy)

In September 2004, we entered into a license agreewith Cambridge University Technical Servicemlted, or CUTS, relating to our
StemScreeff  platform technology. Under the agregmenacquired an exclusive, royalty-bearing, weitte license under patent rights
owned by CUTS to develop, manufacture, have matwiad, use, sell, offer to sell, market, have mitteimport, have imported, export and
have exported products covered by the patent rigitkiding a platform technology to discover andcegn for compounds that target CSCs.
The patent rights exclusively licensed to us urideragreement are described in more detail abogteriBusiness — Patents and Proprietary
Rights.” The license is subject to certain riglgained by CUTS for academic research and teactiiegalso acquired a non-exclusive,
worldwide license to know-how related to the licethpatent rights. The agreement provides us witls@iblicensing rights. Under the
agreement, we paid an upfront license fee andladigabed to make milestone payments of up to ameagge of $1,700,000 upon specified
regulatory events, as well as pay royalties of thas 1% on sales of licensed products. CUTS mawitate the agreement, including our rig
to the platform technology, for specified causejpon certain events involving our bankruptcy ooimency.

Competition

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industriechagacterized by rapidly advancing technologiet®rise competition and a strong
emphasis on proprietary products. While we belténat our scientific knowledge, technology, and depment experience provide us with
competitive advantages, we face potential compaetitiom many different sources, including major haceutical, specialty pharmaceutical
and biotechnology companies, academic instituteordsgovernmental agencies and public and privatsareh institutions. Any product
candidates that we successfully develop and comatigecwill compete with existing therapies and naerapies that may become availabl
the future.

There are several biopharmaceutical companies wirirsary focus appears to be developing theragiagat CSCs, including Verastem, Ir
OncoMed Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Dainippon Sumitoinarfa Co. Ltd., Bionomics Limited and Stem CentlRg, There are also several
biopharmaceutical companies that do not appeag farimarily focused on CSCs, but may be developingast one CSC-directed compound.
These companies include Astellas Pharma US, ImehBnger Ingelheim GmbH, Dainippon Sumitomo Pha@oaltd., Geron Corp.,
GlaxoSmithKline plc, ImmunoCellular Therapeuticsd | Macrogenics Inc., Micromet, Inc. (an Amgen,.I@ompany), Pfizer Inc., Roche
Holding AG, Sanofi U.S. LLC, and others. Additidigathere are a number of companies working toetigy new treatments for AML, which
may compete with SL-401, including Ambit Biosciead@orporation, Celator Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Gelgeorporation, Clavis Pharma ASA,
Cyclacel Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Eisai Co. Ltd., &yeme Corporation (now a Sanofi company), CSL Lichised Sunesis Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
among others. There are also a number of drugkfos¢he treatment of brain cancer that may compéth SL-701, including, Avastifi
(Roche Holding AG), Gliadél (Eisai Co. Ltd.), admoda® (Merck & Co., Inc.). There are a numifexompanies working to develop
brain cancer therapeutics with programs in clinieating, including Celldex Therapeutics, Inc., ImmaCellular Therapeutics, Ltd.,

Merck & Co. Inc., Novartis AG, Roche Holding AG aathers.

Many of our competitors may have significantly desdinancial resources and expertise in reseandhdavelopment, manufacturing,
preclinical testing, conducting clinical trials,taming regulatory approvals and marketing apprgwediucts than we do. Mergers and
acquisitions in the pharmaceutical, biotechnologg diagnostic industries may result in even moseueces being concentrated among a
smaller number of our competitors. These competiésdso compete with us in recruiting and retairgoglified scientific and management
personnel and establishing clinical trial sites patlent registration for clinical trials, as wa#l in acquiring technologies complementary to, ol
necessary for, our programs. Small or early staggpanies may also prove to be significant compstifearticularly through collaborative
arrangements with large and established companies.

The key competitive factors affecting the succésal®f our product candidates, if approved, dkely to be their efficacy, safety,
convenience, price, the level of generic competitiad the availability of reimbursement from goveemt and other third-party payors.
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Our commercial opportunity could be reduced or &lated if our competitors develop and commerciglimeducts that are safer, more
effective, have fewer or less severe side efferessmore convenient or are less expensive thapm@ducts that we may develop. Our
competitors also may obtain FDA or other regulatguproval for their products more rapidly than waynobtain approval for ours, which
could result in our competitors establishing argjranarket position before we are able to ententheket. In addition, our ability to compete
may be affected in many cases by insurers or d¢iiirel-party payors seeking to encourage the uggoéric products. If our therapeutic
product candidates are approved, we expect thattilebe priced at a significant premium over agmpetitive generic products.

The most common methods of treating patients vaticer are surgery, radiation and drug therapyudhie chemotherapy, hormone therapy
and targeted drug therapy. These therapies arerousand varied in their design, therapeutic appib and mechanism of action. As a re
they may provide significant competition for anyonfr product candidates for which we obtain masdggdroval. In addition to currently
marketed oncology therapies, there are also a nuaflproducts in late stage clinical developmertréat cancer. These products in
development may provide efficacy, safety, convergeand other benefits that are not provided byeritly marketed therapies. As a result,
they may provide significant competition for anyoefr product candidates for which we obtain masgggiroval.

Competition for SL-401

There are a limited number of drugs approved fertthatment of adult AML, and these include thditranal chemotherapies cytarabine,
daunorubicin, and other anthracyclines which haenbmarketed for many years and are both curremdlifable in generic formulations. Thi
are a number of companies working to develop neattnents for AML, including Cyclacel Pharmaceusc#hc., Sunesis

Pharmaceuticals Inc., Genzyme Corporation (nowreffaompany), Clavis Pharma ASA, Ambit Bioscien@egporation, Celgene
Corporation, Eisai Co. Ltd. and Celator Pharmacaisgj Inc., among others.

Unlike many of these drug candidates, SL-401 has lokeveloped to target both tumor bulk and CSCstardhte, has been shown to spare th
bone marrow of toxicity. While SL-401 is currenbging developed as a single agent, its favoraliétysprofile suggests the potential to safely
combine it with other agents.

Competition for SL-701

There are a limited number of drugs used for thattnent of brain cancer, including Temo#lar (Me&&dRo., Inc.), nitrosureas including
Gliadel® (Eisai Co., Inc.), and Avasfin  (Roche tHnfy AG). There are a number of companies workindevelop brain cancer therapeutics
with programs in clinical testing including Rochelting AG, Novartis AG, Merck & Co., Inc., Celld&herapeutics, Inc., ImmunoCellular
Therapeutics, Ltd. and others.

Unlike many of these drug candidates, SL-701 has lbeveloped to target both tumor bulk and CSCsle/@i-701 is currently being
developed as a single agent, its favorable safeffjigp suggests the potential to safely combingith other agents.

Government Regulation

Government authorities in the United States, afederal, state and local level, and in other coestextensively regulate, among other things
the research, development, approval, manufactesgny, quality control, packaging, labeling, sgmarecord-keeping, promotion, advertising,
distribution, post-approval monitoring and repagtimarketing and export and import of products sagthose we are developing. Any
pharmaceutical candidate that we develop must peoaped by the FDA before it may be legally markdtethe United States or by the
appropriate foreign regulatory agency before it inayegally marketed in foreign countries.

United States Drug Development Process

In the United States, the FDA regulates drugs uttteFederal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, or FD&#J implementing regulations. Drugs
are also subject to other federal, state and ktefites and regulations. Biologics are subjeotdgalation by the FDA under the FDCA, the
Public Health Service Act, or the PHSA, and relatglilations, and other federal, state and loedlists and regulations. Biological products
include, among other things, viruses, therapewatiaras, vaccines and
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most protein products. The process of obtainingleggry approvals and the subsequent compliande agipropriate federal, state, local and
foreign statutes and regulations require the exiperedof substantial time and financial resouré&slure to comply with the applicable United
States requirements at any time during the proderetlopment process, approval process or afteoaphmay subject an applicant to
administrative or judicial sanctions. FDA sancti@oesild include a clinical hold refusal to approenging applications, warning letters, proc
recalls, product seizures, total or partial susjpensf production or distribution, injunctions, &g, refusals of government contracts, restitutior
disgorgement of profits, civil or criminal penaftieor withdrawal of an approval. Any administratiaction or judicial enforcement action cc
have a material adverse effect on us.

The process required by the FDA before a drugabobical product may be marketed in the Unitedetatenerally involves the following:

«  Completion of preclinical laboratory tests, anirsaldies and formulation studies according to Goalddratory Practices or other
applicable regulations;

e Submission to the FDA of an Investigational New @Application, or an IND, which must become effeetbefore human
clinical trials may begin;

»  Performance of adequate and well-controlled huntiaical trials according to the FDA'’s current gooléhical practices, or
GCPs, to establish the safety and efficacy of top@sed drug or biologic for its intended use;

»  Submission to the FDA of a New Drug Application,aor NDA, for a new drug product, or a Biologics énise Application, or a
BLA, for a new biological product;

»  Satisfactory completion of an FDA pre-approval econ of the manufacturing facility or facilitieghere the drug or biologic is
to be produced to assess compliance with the FDé@’'eent good manufacturing practice regulationg;@KP, to assure that the
facilities, methods and controls are adequatedsgive the drug’s or biologic’s identity, strengibality and purity;

Potential FDA inspection of the nonclinical anchidal trial sites that generated the data in suppfathe NDA or BLA; and
*  FDA review and approval of the NDA or BLA.

The lengthy process of seeking required approvalstiae continuing need for compliance with applieattatutes and regulations require the
expenditure of substantial resources. There carohlmertainty that approvals will be granted.

Before testing any compounds with potential theutipezalue in humans, the drug or biological caatlidenters the preclinical testing stage.
Preclinical tests include laboratory evaluationprfduct chemistry, toxicity and formulation, aslives animal studies to assess the potential
safety and activity of the drug or biological cadatie. The conduct of the preclinical tests mustgly with federal regulations and
requirements including good laboratory practicEee sponsor must submit the results of the predirtests, together with manufacturing
information, analytical data, any available clididata or literature and a proposed clinical protpm the FDA as part of the IND. The IND
automatically becomes effective 30 days after mdmi the FDA, unless the FDA places the cliniciall ton a clinical hold within that 30-day
time period. In such a case, the IND sponsor had-DA must resolve any outstanding concerns bef@relinical trial can begin. The FDA
may also impose clinical holds on a drug or biatagjcandidate at any time before or during clintcals due to safety concerns or non-
compliance. Accordingly, we cannot assure thatrgsgion of an IND will result in the FDA allowindiwical trials to begin, or that, once
begun, issues will not arise that suspend or teataiguch trial.

Clinical trials involve the administration of theug) or biological candidate to healthy voluntearpatients having the disease being studied
under the supervision of qualified investigatorfein these are physicians not employed by or utidetrial sponsor’s control. Clinical trials
are conducted under protocols detailing, amongrdttiegs, the objectives of the clinical trial, dwog procedures, subject selection and
exclusion criteria, and the parameters to be us@donitor subject safety. Each protocol must @stied to the FDA as part of the IND.
Clinical trials must be conducted in accordancénhie FDA'’s good clinical practices requirementd aith applicable cGMP requirements.
Further, each clinical trial must be reviewed apgraved by an independent institutional review dopar IRB, at or servicing each institution
at which the clinical trial will be conducted. ARB is charged with protecting the welfare and tigbf trial participants and considers
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such items as whether the risks to individualsigigeting in the clinical trials are minimized aack reasonable in relation to anticipated
benefits. The IRB also approves the informed confiem that must be used as part of the infornmtsent process with each clinical trial
subject or his or her legal representative and mstitor the clinical trial until it is completed.

Human clinical trials prior to approval are typigatonducted in three sequential Phases that mestagyor be combined:

» Phase 1.The drug or biologic is initially introduced intealthy human subjects and tested for safety, daségance,
absorption, metabolism, distribution and excretiorthe case of some products for severe or lifeatening diseases, especially
when the product may be too inherently toxic tacetly administer to healthy volunteers, the idiiaman testing is often
conducted in patients having the specific disease.

 Phase 2.The drug or biologic is evaluated in a limited patipopulation to identify possible adverse effetd safety risks, to
preliminarily evaluate the efficacy of the prodimt specific targeted diseases and to determinagto®lerance, optimal dosage
and dosing schedule for patients having the spedifease.

* Phase 3.Clinical trials are undertaken to further evaludwsage, clinical efficacy and safety in an expargident population at
geographically dispersed clinical trial sites. TéeBnical trials, which usually involve more sutiig than earlier trials, are
intended to establish the overall risk/benefitaati the product and provide an adequate basigrémtuct labeling. Generally, at
least two adequate and well-controlled Phase &alitrials are required by the FDA for approvalkaof NDA or BLA.

Post-approval studies, or Phase 4 clinical trialsy be conducted after initial marketing approValese studies are used to gain additional
experience from the treatment of patients in thended therapeutic indication and may be requiyethé FDA as part of the approval process.

Progress reports detailing the results of the cinirials must be submitted at least annualh&oRDA and written IND safety reports must be
submitted to the FDA by the investigators for sesiand unexpected adverse events or any findimg fests in laboratory animals that sugc

a significant risk for human subjects. Phase 1sPt2aand Phase 3 clinical trials may not be coraglsticcessfully within any specified period,
if at all. The FDA or the sponsor or its data safabnitoring board may suspend a clinical triahay time on various grounds, including a
finding that the research subjects or patientdaneg exposed to an unacceptable health risk. &ilpjlan IRB can suspend or terminate
approval of a clinical trial at its institutionftifie clinical trial is not being conducted in acaorde with the IRB’s requirements or if the drug or
biologic has been associated with unexpected sehatm to patients.

Concurrent with clinical trials, companies usuagmplete additional animal studies and developtemtdil information about the chemistry
and physical characteristics of the drug or biatagg well as finalize a process for manufacturirggproduct in commercial quantities in
accordance with cGMP requirements. The manufaguincess must be capable of consistently produpiradjty batches of the drug or
biological candidate. In addition, companies ndestelop and validate analytical methods for testiregidentity, strength, quality and purity
raw materials, in-process material and the finabdsr biologic. Additionally, appropriate packagimust be selected and tested and stability
studies must be conducted to demonstrate thatrtigeat biological candidate does not undergo uratetde deterioration over its shelf life.

U.S. Review and Approval Processes

The results of product development, preclinicatligs and clinical trials, along with descriptiorfdlee manufacturing process, analytical tests
conducted on the chemistry of the drug or biologioposed packaging and labeling and other relemémimation are submitted to the FDA as
part of an NDA or BLA requesting approval to marktet product. The submission of an NDA or BLA idjgat to the payment of substantial
user fees; a waiver of such fees may be obtainddrwertain limited circumstances. We believe wmawill be required to submit BLAs for
SL-401 and SL-701.

In addition, under the Pediatric Research Equity AcPREA, an NDA or a BLA or supplement to an NDAa BLA must contain data to
assess the safety and effectiveness of the drblagic for the claimed indications in all relevgrediatric subpopulations and to support
dosing and administration for each pediatric sulation for which the product is safe and effectiVhe FDA may grant deferrals for
submission of pediatric data or full or partial wexis. Unless otherwise required by regulation, PRIBAs not apply to any drug or biologic for
an indication for which orphan designation has bgamted.
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The FDA reviews all NDAs and BLAs submitted befdraccepts them for filing and may request addalanformation rather than accepting
an NDA or BLA for filing. Once the submission iscapted for filing, the FDA begins an in-depth revief the NDA or BLA. Under the goals
and policies agreed to by the FDA under the PreSon Drug User Fee Act, or PDUFA, the FDA hasreanths in which to complete its init
review of a standard NDA or BLA and respond toapelicant, and six months for a priority NDA or BLAhe FDA does not always meet its
PDUFA goal dates for standard and priority NDAs &hdh\s.

After the NDA or BLA submission is accepted foirfg, the FDA reviews the NDA to determine, amornigeotthings, whether the proposed
product is safe and effective for its intended as&, whether the product is being manufactured¢dom@ance with cGMP to assure and
preserve the product’s identity, strength, quaitgl purity. The FDA reviews a BLA to determine, amgather things, whether the product is
safe, pure and potent and the facility in whicis imanufactured, processed, packaged or held rsegtdards designed to assure the product’s
continued safety, purity and potency. In additionits own review, the FDA may refer applicationsiovel drug or biological products or dr

or biological products which present difficult gtieas of safety or efficacy to an advisory comngtteypically a panel that includes clinicians
and other experts, for review, evaluation and amenendation as to whether the application shoulddmeoved and under what conditions.
The FDA is not bound by the recommendations ofdwisary committee, but it considers such recommgods carefully when making
decisions. During the approval process, the FDA wail determine whether a risk evaluation and gation strategy, or REMS, is necessary tc
assure the safe use of the drug or biologic. IfRBA concludes that a REMS is needed, the sporfsbed\DA or BLA must submit a
proposed REMS; the FDA will not approve the NDABIrA without a REMS, if required.

Before approving an NDA or BLA, the FDA will inspetbe facilities at which the product is to be mi@etured. The FDA will not approve the
product unless it determines that the manufactysmogesses and facilities are in compliance witM&Gequirements and adequate to assure
consistent production of the product within reqdispecifications. Also, in this inspection, FDAeks to determine whether the manufacturing
conforms with application commitments, the auth@tytiand accuracy of data, and the adequacy ofdhgpany’s analytical methodology.
Additionally, before approving an NDA or BLA, thédR will typically inspect one or more clinical sg¢o assure compliance with cGMP. If
the FDA determines the application, manufacturirgcpss or manufacturing facilities are not accdptatwill outline the deficiencies in the
submission and often will request additional tegstin information.

The NDA or BLA review and approval process is ldrygand difficult and the FDA may refuse to appraveNDA or BLA if the applicable
regulatory criteria are not satisfied or the agemgjuires additional clinical data or other datd arfiormation. Even if such data and
information is submitted, the FDA may ultimatelycike that the NDA or BLA does not satisfy the aige€for approval. Data obtained from
clinical trials are not always conclusive and mayshsceptible to varying interpretations, whichldalelay, limit or prevent regulatory
approval. The FDA will issue a “complete respongdter if the agency decides not to approve the NIDBLA. The complete response letter
usually describes all of the specific deficiendirethe NDA or BLA identified by the FDA. The defemcies identified may be minor, for
example, requiring labeling changes, or majorgikample, requiring additional clinical trials. Atidnally, the complete response letter may
include recommended actions that the applicant thiake to place the application in a conditiondpproval. If a complete response letter is
issued, the applicant may either resubmit the NDRIoA, addressing all of the deficiencies identifim the letter, or withdraw the application.

If a product receives regulatory approval, the apal may be limited to specific diseases and dosagéhe indications for use may otherwise
be limited, which could restrict the commercialuabf the product. Further, the FDA may require teatain contraindications, warnings or
precautions be included in the product labelingaddition, the FDA may require Phase 4 testing tviniwolves clinical trials designed to
further assess a product’s safety and effectiveamedsnay require testing and surveillance progranmsonitor the safety of approved products
that have been commercialized.

Orphan Drug Designation

Under the Orphan Drug Act, the FDA may grant orptiasignation to a drug or biological product intedidio treat a rare disease or condition,
which is generally a disease or condition thatcifféewer than 200,000 individuals in the Unitedt&s, or more than 200,000 individuals in
United States and for which there is no reasonakectation that the cost of developing and makidgug or biological product available in
the United States for this type of disease or d@mdivill be recovered from sales of the produatpl@an product designation must be requeste
before submitting an NDA or BLA. After the FDA gttarorphan product designation, the identity ofttterapeutic agent and its potential
orphan use are disclosed
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publicly by the FDA. Orphan product designation sloet convey any advantage in or shorten the durati the regulatory review and
approval process.

If a product that has orphan designation subsetyumteives the first FDA approval for the diseaseondition for which it has such
designation, the product is entitled to orphan pobe@xclusivity, which means that the FDA may nop@ve any other applications to market
the same drug or biological product for the santkécation for seven years, except in limited circtamses, such as a showing of clinical
superiority to the product with orphan exclusivi§ompetitors, however, may receive approval ofedédht products for the indication for wh
the orphan product has exclusivity or obtain apptéer the same product but for a different indisatfor which the orphan product has
exclusivity. Orphan product exclusivity also cobldck the approval of one of our products for seyears if a competitor obtains approval of
the same drug or biological product for the sandgcation as defined by the FDA or if our drug oolbgical candidate is determined to be
contained within the competitor’s product for tleere indication or disease. If a drug or biologmalduct designated as an orphan product
receives marketing approval for an indication beratian what is designated, it may not be entitbeskphan product exclusivity. Orphan drug
status in the European Union has similar but nettidal benefits in the European Union.

In February 2011, we received Orphan Drug Designdtir SL-401 for the treatment of AML in the UrdtStates
Expedited Development and Review Progra

The FDA has a Fast Track program that is intendezkpedite or facilitate the process for reviewiregv drug and biological products that ir
certain criteria. Specifically, new drug and biatad products are eligible for Fast Track desigmaif they are intended to treat a serious or
life-threatening condition and demonstrate the piidéto address unmet medical needs for the cimmdiFast Track designation applies to the
combination of the product and the specific indaafor which it is being studied. Unique to a Fastck product, the FDA may consider for
review sections of the NDA or BLA on a rolling basiefore the complete application is submittethéfsponsor provides a schedule for the
submission of the sections of the NDA or BLA, tHaAragrees to accept sections of the NDA or BLA datermines that the schedule is
acceptable, and the sponsor pays any requiredeesupon submission of the first section of theAND BLA.

Any product submitted to the FDA for marketing apgal, including those submitted to a Fast Traclgpsim, may also be eligible for other
types of FDA programs intended to expedite devekaurand review, such as priority review and acegder approval. Any product is eligible
for priority review if it has the potential to priole safe and effective therapy where no satisfaatiernative therapy exists or a significant
improvement in the treatment, diagnosis or prewentf a disease compared with marketed produces FDA will attempt to direct additional
resources to the evaluation of an application foew drug or biological product designated for ptyoreview in an effort to facilitate the
review. Additionally, a product may be eligible faccelerated approval. Drug or biological prodstislied for their safety and effectiveness ir
treating serious or life-threatening illnesses #rad provide meaningful therapeutic benefit ovastixg treatments may receive accelerated
approval, which means that they may be approvetti®basis of adequate and well-controlled clingtatlies establishing that the product has
an effect on a surrogate endpoint that is reasgridely to predict a clinical benefit, or on thadis of an effect on a clinical endpoint other-
survival or irreversible morbidity. As a conditiofiapproval, the FDA generally requires that a sporf a drug or biological product receiv
accelerated approval perform adequate and welkalbed post-marketing clinical studies to estabBslfiety and efficacy for the approved
indication. Failure to conduct such studies, orduaning such studies that do not establish theiredjsafety and efficacy may result in
revocation of the original approval. In additiohetFDA currently requires as a condition for acakd approval pre-approval of promotional
materials, which could adversely impact the timiighe commercial launch or subsequent marketinh@product. Fast Track designation,
priority review and accelerated approval may exgeettiie development or approval process.

Pos-Approval Requirements

Any drug or biological products for which we receiWDA approvals are subject to continuing regukabig the FDA, including, among other
things, record-keeping requirements, reportingrafniicipated changes in distributed products whiohld require field alert reports (FARS)
for NDAs and biological product deviation repofBPORs) for BLAs reporting of adverse events, prongdhe FDA with updated safety and
efficacy information on an annual basis or as meglimore frequently for specific events, produchgling and distribution requirements,
complying with certain electronic records and stgnarequirements and complying with FDA promot&nd advertising requirements, which
include, among others,
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standards for direct-to-consumer advertising, fotibins against promoting drugs and biologics feesior in patient populations that are not
described in the drug'’s or biologic’s approved ladge(known as “off-label promotion”), rules for sducting industry-sponsored scientific and
educational activities, and promotional activitiegolving the internet. Failure to comply with FDXr&quirements can have negative
consequences, including for cause inspections,ingtatters from the FDA, including demands for iegirate discontinuation of
noncomplying materials, adverse publicity, mandaiuective advertising or communications with @est and civil or criminal penalties.
Although physicians may prescribe legally availadlegs and biologics for off-label uses, manufaatsimay not market or promote such off-
label uses.

We rely, and expect to continue to rely, on thiagtigs for the production of clinical and commekgaantities of our product candidates.
Manufacturers of our product candidates are reduweomply with applicable FDA manufacturing regments contained in the FDA's
cGMP regulations. cGMP regulations require amomgiothings, quality control and quality assuransevell as the corresponding
maintenance of comprehensive records and docunmntétrug and biologic manufacturers and othertiegtinvolved in the manufacture and
distribution of approved drugs and biologics asmakquired to register their establishments atdhy products made there with the FDA anc
comply with related requirements in certain staéesl are subject to periodic unannounced inspextgrihe FDA and certain state agencie
compliance with cGMP and other laws. Accordinglyamafacturers must continue to expend time, moneyeffiort in the area of production
and quality control to maintain cGMP compliancesdaivery of problems with a product after approvaymesult in serious and extensive
restrictions on a product, manufacturer, or holtfean approved NDA or BLA, including suspensioragiroduct until the FDA is assured that
quality standards can be met, continuing oversifimanufacturing by the FDA under a “consent degmabich frequently includes the
imposition of costs and continuing inspections av@eriod of many years, and possible withdrawahefproduct from the market. Major
changes to the manufacturing process and othes tyjpmajor changes, such as adding new indicatregsiire prior FDA approval before
being implemented. Moderate and minor changesne&DA notification but not prior approval.

The FDA also may require post-marketing testingyvkm as Phase 4 testing, risk minimization acti@npland surveillance to monitor the
effects of an approved product or place conditmm&n approval that could otherwise restrict tistritiution or use of the product.

U.S. Patent Term Restoration and Marketing Exclugy
Drug Price Competition and Patent Term Restora#ian of 1984

Depending upon the timing, duration and specificdhe FDA approval of the use of our drug and higds candidates, some of our United
States patents may be eligible for limited paternntextension under the Drug Price CompetitionRaignt Term Restoration Act of 1984,
commonly referred to as the Hatch-Waxman Amendmé@itis HatchwWaxman Amendments permit a patent restoration tfrap to five year
as compensation for patent term lost during fedeglilatory review preceding the FDA regulatoryiegwprocess. However, patent term
restoration cannot extend the remaining term daiternt beyond a total of 14 years from the produmtisroval date. The patent term restoratior
period is generally one-half the time between fifiecéve date of an IND and the submission dataroNDA or a BLA plus the time between
the submission date of an NDA or a BLA and the apakof that application. Only one patent applieatal an approved drug or biologic is
eligible for the extension and the applicationtfue extension must be submitted within 60 daysppfaval and prior to the expiration of the
patent. The United States Patent and Trademark&ffi consultation with the FDA, reviews and amesothe application for any patent term
extension or restoration. In the future, we maylafgr restoration of patent term for one of ourreumtly owned or licensed patents to add
patent life beyond its current expiration date,afebing on the expected length of the clinical $rmhd other factors involved in the filing of the
relevant NDA.

Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic /

Market exclusivity provisions under the FDCA, whiate independent of patent status and any patemtde=xtensions, can also delay the
submission or the approval of certain applicatiohsompanies seeking to reference another compa¥A. If the new drug is a new chemi
entity subject to an NDA, the FDCA provides a fiwear period of non-patent marketing exclusivityhiitthe United States to the first
applicant to obtain approval of an NDA for a neveutical entity. A drug is a new chemical entityietFDA has not previously approved any
other new drug containing the same active moiehjckvis the molecule or ion responsible for thecscof the drug substance. During the
exclusivity period, the FDA may not accept for ewian abbreviated new drug application, or ANDAa&O05(b)(2) NDA submitted by
another company for another version of such drugrevthe applicant does not own or have a legat afreference to all the data required for
approval.
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However, such an application may be submitted &ftar years if it contains a certification of patémvalidity or noninfringement to one of tt
patents listed with the FDA by the innovator NDAder. The FDCA also provides three years of mariggéixclusivity for an NDA, or
supplement to an existing NDA if new clinical intigations, other than bioavailability studies, thegre conducted or sponsored by the
applicant are deemed by the FDA to be essentihlet@pproval of the application, for example nedidations, dosages or strengths of an
existing drug. This three-year exclusivity covendyahe conditions associated with the new cliniogkstigations and does not prohibit the
FDA from approving ANDAs for drugs containing theginal active agent. Five-year and three-year @siuity will not delay the submission
or approval of a full NDA. However, an applicanbsuitting a full NDA would be required to conductaltain a right of reference to all of the
preclinical studies and adequate and well-contadlenical trials necessary to demonstrate safetyeffectiveness.

Pediatric exclusivity is another type of regulatamgrket exclusivity in the United States. Pediagriclusivity, if granted by the FDA, adds six
months to existing exclusivity periods and patents. This six-month exclusivity, which runs fronetend of other exclusivity protection or
patent term, may be granted based on the voluntanpletion of a pediatric trial in accordance vathFDA-issued “Written Request” for such
a trial. Biologic products that are subject to Bt¢SA are not eligible for pediatric exclusivity wardche FDCA.

Biologics Price Competition and Innovation Act 602

The Biologics Price Competition and Innovation AE2009, or BPCIA, amended the PHSA to create alimmsure framework for biosimilar
products, which could ultimately subject our biatad product candidates to competition. Under tiRCBA, a manufacturer may submit an
application for licensure of a biological produaat is “biosimilar to” or “interchangeable with"raferenced, branded biologic product.
Previously, there had been no licensure pathwagudoh biosimilar or interchangeable products. koppses of the BPCIA, a reference pro
is defined as the single biological product licehsader a full BLA against which a biological pradis evaluated in an application submitted
under a follow-on BLA.

The BPCIA also created a 12-year period of refergroduct exclusivity, which can be extended t®}/2ars with pediatric exclusivity. The
12-year exclusivity period begins on the date @t ficensure of the reference product under th8Rlnd during which the licensure of a
follow-on application for a biosimilar or interchg@able product cannot be made effective. Durinditeefour years (or four and one-half
years with pediatric exclusivity) of the -year period, an application for a biosimilar aieithangeable version of the reference productatann
be submitted to the FDA. Under a budget proposadiBent Obama submitted to Congress in 2012, tmeiigtration requested that reference
product exclusivity would decrease from 12 to seyears beginning in 2013. Congress has not yetedacch a change in the BPCIA, but
could move to enact such a decrease in the refeocluct exclusivity period.

The BPCIA includes limits on obtaining 12-year refece product exclusivity for certain changes odifications to the reference product. A
separate 12-year reference product exclusivityopetoes not apply to:

e aBLA supplement for the product that is the refieeeproduct;

e asubsequent BLA filed by the same reference prtoshansor or manufacturer (or a licensor, predecassnterest, or other
related entity) for a change (not including a miedifion to the structure of the biological produtit results in a new indication,
route of administration, dosing schedule, dosaga fdelivery system, delivery device or strength; o

» amoadification to the structure of the biologicabguct that does not result in a change in safetyity or potency.

In February 2012, the FDA issued three draft guidathocuments on biosimilar product development. HDA is soliciting comments on the
draft guidance documents which are described by as follows: (1) Scientific Considerations irMmonstrating Biosimilarity to a
Reference Product, which is intended to assist emnes in demonstrating that a proposed therapprdiein product is biosimilar to a
reference product for the purpose of submittingyaplication, called a “351(k)” application, to tRBA. This draft guidance describes a risk-
based “totality-of-the-evidence” approach that DA intends to use to evaluate the data and infaomaubmitted in support of a
determination of biosimilarity of the proposed puotlto the reference product; (2) Quality Consitlers in Demonstrating Biosimilarity to a
Reference Protein Product, which provides an oeanaf analytical factors to consider when assedsiogimilarity between a proposed
therapeutic protein
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product and a reference product for the purposeibifitting a 351(k) application; and (3) BiosimdaQuestions and Answers Regarding
Implementation of the Biologics Price Competitiarddnnovation Act of 2009, which provides answerséammon questions from people
interested in developing biosimilar products. Weraat predict when or whether these draft guidaremichents will ever be finalized or what
changes the agency may make in its approach temwitation of the BPCIA.

In addition to creating a 12-year period of refeeproduct exclusivity, the BPCIA clarifies thedrdaction of that exclusivity with orphan drug
exclusivity, such that, if a reference product basn designated for a rare disease or conditiolicémesure of a biosimilar or interchangeable

version of a reference product for such diseag®odition may only occur after the later of the iesfion of any applicable seven-year orphan
drug exclusivity or the 12-year reference produxcisivity (or seven and one-half years and 12 & yevith pediatric exclusivity).

Like pediatric exclusivity applicable to drug pratis approved under the FDCA, pediatric exclusigipplicable to biological reference
products is subject to an exception. Pediatriciesteity will not apply to either the 12-year refaoe product or the seven-year orphan drug
exclusivity periods if the FDA has not determinkdttthe study reports a BLA sponsor submitted spoase to a written request for pediatric
studies met the terms of that request before nimetins prior to the expiration of such period .

Our biological product candidates, if approved,lddie considered reference products entitled tgeldt-exclusivity. Even if our products are
considered to be reference products eligible fafestvity, another company could market a competiegsion of any of our biological produ
if the FDA approves a full BLA for such product ¢aiming the sponsor’s own preclinical data and diatan adequate and well-controlled
clinical trials to demonstrate the safety, puritglgotency of their product.

The BPCIA also sets forth a complex mechanismédeoiving patent disputes that involves a step-eighange of information prior to the
initiation of a patent infringement lawsuit agaiadbiosimilar or interchangeable product sponsaiikg the Hatch-Waxman Act, the BPCIA
provides no automatic stay on approval of a bidsingroduct application, except an interchangephdeluct receives the lesser of one year of
exclusivity after the date of first commercial metikg or 18 months of exclusivity after a final codecision or dismissal of a patent challenge
or, if the applicant has not been sued, after aghroThe BPCIA does not prevent a competitor fiemnducting its own clinical trials and
submitting a full BLA on the same or similar protluc

Other U.S. Healthcare Laws and Compliance Requirertse

In the United States, our activities are potentialibject to regulation by various federal, stateé lncal authorities in addition to the FDA,
including the Centers for Medicare and Medicaidvigess (formerly the Health Care Financing Admirasion), other divisions of the United
States Department of Health and Human Services {gegyOffice of Inspector General and the OffiE€wvil Rights), the United States
Department of Justice and individual United St#t#terney offices within the Department of Justistate attorney generals and state and loce
governments. For example, sales, marketing amhific/educational grant programs must comply wfith federal Antikickback Statute, the
federal False Claims Act, the privacy and secypityvisions of the Health Insurance Portability @&wtountability Act, or HIPAA, and similar
state laws, each as amended. Pricing and rebagegons must comply with the Medicaid rebate requoéets of the Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1990, the Veterans HealtheCact of 1992, and the federal Antikickback Statetch as amended. If products are mad
available to authorized users of the Federal Sufphedule (FSS) of the General Services Adminietrabdditional laws and requirements
apply. Under the Veterans Health Care Act, or VH@AIg companies are required to offer certain plaeutical products at a reduced pric
four federal agencies including the United Statepd@tment of Veterans Affairs, the United Statepddenent of Defense, the Coast Guard
Public Health Service and certain private PublialfeService (including the Indian Health Servidesignated entities in order for
reimbursement to be available for our product umdedicare and Medicaid. FSS pricing to these fmencies must be equal to or less than
the federal ceiling price (“FCP”), which is, at animum, 24% off the Non-Federal Average Manufaatufgce for the prior fiscal year.
Participation under the VHCA requires submissiopraéing data and calculation of discounts and tebaursuant to complex statutory
formulas, as well as the entry into government prement contracts governed by the Federal Acqoisiegulations.

In order to distribute products commercially, westncomply with state laws that require the regigiraof manufacturers and wholesale
distributors of pharmaceutical products in a statgluding, in certain states, manufacturers astritiutors
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who ship products into the state even if such magtufers or distributors have no place of busimétsn the state. Some states also impose
requirements on manufacturers and distributorstabéish the pedigree of product in the chain efriiution, including some states that req
manufacturers and others to adopt new technologsida of tracking and tracing product as it moveeugh the distribution chain. Several
states have enacted legislation requiring pharmatgompanies to establish marketing compliamogmms, file periodic reports with the
state, make periodic public disclosures on sal@sketing, pricing, clinical trials and other actigs, and/or register their sales representatives
as well as to prohibit pharmacies and other heatthentities from providing certain physician présng data to pharmaceutical companies
use in sales and marketing, and to prohibit ced#ier sales and marketing practices. All of odivées are potentially subject to federal and
state consumer protection and unfair competitiorsla

Europe and Worldwide Government Regulatis

In addition to regulations in the United States,wibe subject to a variety of regulations in ethurisdictions governing, among other things,
clinical trials and any commercial sales and disition of our products.

Whether or not we obtain FDA approval for a produet must obtain the requisite approvals from ragul/ authorities in foreign countries
prior to the commencement of clinical trials or Reting of the product in those countries. Certaiardries outside of the United States have &
similar process that requires the submission dihécal trial application much like the IND prioo the commencement of human clinical trials.
In the European Union, for example, a clinicalltapplication, or CTA, must be submitted to eachrtoy’s national health authority and an
independent ethics committee, much like the FDA &1, respectively. Once the CTA is approved inaadance with a country’s
requirements, clinical trials may proceed.

The requirements and process governing the cormdwdinical trials, product licensing, pricing aneimbursement vary from country to
country. In all cases, the clinical trials are cocted in accordance with International Conferentéiarmonisation (ICH) / WHO Good Clinic
Practice standards and the applicable regulatopyimrements and the ethical principles that havé tirggin in the Declaration of Helsinki.

To obtain regulatory approval of an investigatiotialg or biological product under European Uniogutatory systems, we must submit a
marketing authorization application to the Europbteticines Agency, or the EMA. The application usefile an NDA or a BLA in the
United States is similar to that required in thedp@an Union, with the exception of, among otharg$, country-specific document
requirements. For example, the EMA has alreadybbisteed a number of guidelines for approval of @asi biosimilars.

For other countries outside of the European Ursoch as countries in Eastern Europe, Latin Amaricasia, the requirements governing the
conduct of clinical trials, product licensing, prig and reimbursement vary from country to counimall cases, again, the clinical trials are
conducted in accordance with GCP and the applicaigielatory requirements and the ethical principies have their origin in the Declaration
of Helsinki.

If we fail to comply with applicable foreign regtbay requirements, we may be subject to, amongradttiegs, fines, suspension or withdrawal
of regulatory approvals, product recalls, seizurproducts, operating restrictions and criminalgaeution.

Pharmaceutical Coverage, Pricing and Reimbursem

Significant uncertainty exists as to the coveragg r@imbursement status of any drug or biologiealdidates for which we obtain regulatory
approval. In the United States and markets in atbantries, sales of any products for which we ikeceegulatory approval for commercial <
will depend in part on the availability of reimbarsent from third-party payors. Third-party payaerslide government health administrative
authorities, managed care providers, private héadtlvers and other organizations. The procesddtarmining whether a payor will provide
coverage for a drug or biological product may bgasate from the process for setting the price ionlsarsement rate that the payor will pay for
the drug or biological product. Third-party payaray limit coverage to specific drug or biologicabgucts on an approved list, or formulary,
which might not include all of the FDA-approved gror biological products for a particular indicatid hird-party payors are increasingly
challenging the price and examining the medicakssity and costffectiveness of medical products and serviceaddtition to their safety ar
efficacy. We may need to conduct expensive phars@mmmic studies in order to demonstrate the medez®ssity and cost-effectiveness of
our products, in addition to the costs requiredhitain the FDA approvals. Our drug or biologicatdi@ates may not be considered medically
necessary or cost-effective. A payor’s decision
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to provide coverage for a drug or biological pradiwes not imply that an adequate reimbursemeatwiltbe approved. Adequate third-party
reimbursement may not be available to enable usdiotain price levels sufficient to realize an aggpiate return on our investment in product
development.

In 2003, the United States government enactedl&gis providing a partial prescription drug benédr Medicare recipients, which became
effective at the beginning of 2006. Government paytrior some of the costs of prescription drugslaintbgics may increase demand for any
products for which we receive marketing approvawsdver, to obtain payments under this program, weldvbe required to sell products to
Medicare recipients through prescription drug plaperating pursuant to this legislation. These plaitl likely negotiate discounted prices for
our products. Federal, state and local governmieritee United States continue to consider legistato limit the growth of healthcare costs,
including the cost of prescription drugs and biadsgFuture legislation could limit payments forgpmaceuticals such as the drug or biologica
candidates that we are developing.

Different pricing and reimbursement schemes erisither countries. In the European Community, govemnts influence the price of
pharmaceutical products through their pricing agithbursement rules and control of national headtle systems that fund a large part of the
cost of those products to consumers. Some jurisdEbperate positive and negative list system&uwthich products may only be marketed
once a reimbursement price has been agreed. Tmobtambursement or pricing approval, some of themetries may require the completion
of clinical trials that compare the cost-effectigen of a particular drug or biological candidateuarently available therapies. Other member
states allow companies to fix their own pricesrf@dicines, but monitor and control company profitse downward pressure on health care
costs in general, particularly prescription drugd hiologics, has become very intense. As a reisulteasingly high barriers are being erected
to the entry of new products. In addition, in saroentries, cross-border imports from low-priced ke#s exert a commercial pressure on
pricing within a country.

The marketability of any drug or biological candi&mfor which we receive regulatory approval fomeoeercial sale may suffer if the
government and third-party payors fail to providieguate coverage and reimbursement. In additiophasis on managed care in the United
States has increased and we expect will continirectease the pressure on pharmaceutical pricingef@age policies and third-party
reimbursement rates may change at any time. Evlandfable coverage and reimbursement statusamatt for one or more products for
which we receive regulatory approval, less favaralnlverage policies and reimbursement rates maypflemented in the future.

Manufacturing

We do not currently own or operate any manufactufatilities for the clinical or commercial prodignt of our drug candidates. To date, all
drug substance and drug product for SL-401 and&L have been manufactured by our academic colitdrsr We plan to work with qualifie
third-party contract manufacturers to produce sifit quantities of SL-401 and SL-701 for our compéated clinical trials and potential
commercialization. Our manufacturing programs aiad developed by our manufacturing team, whiatoimprised of full-time employees
and consultants with experience manufacturing prdi®logics and peptides and developing drug peoélarmulations.

SL-401 Manufacturing and Supply

SL-401 is a recombinant protein generated fromrdibiatic-resistance driven DNA-based plasmid veetod manufactured by bacterial
fermentation in E. Coli. The initial supply of SI0% that was used for the investigator-sponsored@h& clinical trial was manufactured at
Wake Forest University. We have optimized the pldsrector and developed the fermentation and pation steps of our manufacturing
process at third-party contract research orgawiaatiwwe are currently preparing to transfer thitit@logy to a third-party contract
manufacturer with expertise in bacterial fermeotatwhere it will be process optimized and scalpder production. We cannot assure tha:
cGMP manufactured batches will be sufficient inlgyand quantity to enable their use in corporspensored clinical trials and
commercialization.

SL-701 Manufacturing and Supply

SL-701 is a peptide vaccine that is comprised oftstynthetic peptides. SL-701 can be administased peptide emulsion by direct
subcutaneous injection into the patient, oekyivodelivery onto autologous dendritic cells which #ren reinfused into the patient. We plan
to focus largely on developing the direct peptitjedtion delivery method of SEO1 for future clinical trials and commercializatidcach of th
component peptides of SL-701 is manufactured iddiaily by solid-phase synthesis using standard Fehemistry. We plan to mix and
formulate the individual peptides to generate the
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SL-701 drug product. SL-701 used in the investigafmnsored Phase 1/2 trials was manufacturedhatdaparty contract manufacturer. We
plan to select a qualified third-party contract mf@cturer to produce SL-701 supply for our clinité@ls and commercialization.

Sales and Marketing

We believe that the infrastructure required to caruialize oncology products is relatively limitedhich makes it cost-effective for us to
internally develop a marketing and sales forc&L{401 and SL701 are approved by the FDA and other regulatotiyaities, we plan to buil
the infrastructure to commercialize these produrctdorth America and Europe ourselves. Howeverwileremain opportunistic in seeking
strategic partnerships in these and other markieé&advantageous.

The commercial infrastructure of specialty oncolpggducts typically consists of a targeted, spgcidles force that calls on a limited and
focused group of physicians supported by sales geamant, internal sales support, an internal margegroup, and distribution support.
Additional capabilities important to the oncologwrketplace include the management of key accosuats) as managed care organizations,
group-purchasing organizations, specialty pharnsaciecology group networks, and government accodst$SL-401 and SL-701 are being
developed for orphan indications with a relativetyall number of treating physicians, we anticightg a reduced infrastructure, including a
small, targeted sales force, will be sufficienstpport our sales and marketing objectives. Inra@@nplement this infrastructure, we will
have to allocate management resources and makécgighfinancial investments including some priomproduct approval.

We may elect in the future to utilize strategictpars, distributors, or contract sales forces sisaé the commercialization of our products.
Research and Development

Company sponsored research and development expetesles $1,329,509 in 2010, $1,629,026 in 201, $81415,668 in 2012. “Research
and development expenses” consist of costs asedaidth the development of our product candidatesaur platform technology, which
include: clinical trial costs, employee related exges, external research and development expdinsase fees and milestone payments rel
to in-licensed products and technology, and faedlitdepreciation and other allocated expenses.“Ifen 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems—QOverview.”

Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we had eight full-time Eppes, four of whom hold Ph.D. or M.D. degreesndlof our employees is subject to a
collective bargaining agreement or represented tbgde or labor union. We believe that we have@dgelationship with our employees.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following risksdauncertainties. If any of the following occursy dusiness, financial condition and/or
operating results could be materially harmed. Tlias®rs could cause the trading price of our comistock to decline, and you could lose all
or part of your investment.

Risks Related to Development, Clinical Testing anBegulatory Approval of Our Product Candidates

We are heavily dependent on the success of ourlead product candidates, SL-401 and SL-701, andoaenot provide any assurance that
any of our product candidates will be commercialize

To date, we have invested a significant portionwfefforts and financial resources in the acgoisiand development of our lead product
candidates, SL-401 and SL-701, which are in clirdezelopment. Our future success depends heawityuo ability to successfully develop,
obtain regulatory approval for, and commerciallzese product candidates, which may never occurcWiently generate no revenues, and wi
may never be able to develop or commercialize &etable drug.
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Before we generate any revenues from product sakesjust complete preclinical and clinical develemof one or more of our product
candidates, conduct human subject research, sgbnidal and manufacturing data to the FDA, quaéifthird party contract manufacturer,
receive regulatory approval in one or more jurisdits, satisfy the FDA that our contract manufaetus capable of manufacturing the product
in compliance with cGMP, build a commercial orgatian, make substantial investments and underigkéfisant marketing efforts ourselves
or in partnership with others. We are not permittecharket or promote any of our product candidhefsre we receive regulatory approval
from the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory auities, and we may never receive such regulatopy@al for any of our product
candidates.

We have not previously submitted a biologics li@eapplication, or BLA, or a new drug applicationNiDA, to the FDA, or similar drug
approval filings to comparable foreign authoritits,any product candidate. We cannot be certahadhy of our product candidates will be
successful in clinical trials or receive regulatapproval. Further, our product candidates mayexgive regulatory approval even if they are
successful in clinical trials. If we do not receregjulatory approvals for our product candidatessmay not be able to continue our operations
Even if we successfully obtain regulatory approvalmarket one or more of our product candidatesrevenues will be dependent, in part,
upon the size of the markets in the territoriessibich we gain regulatory approval and have comiakrights. If the markets for patient
subsets that we are targeting are not as signif@siwe estimate, we may not generate signifiearegnues from sales of such products, if
approved.

We plan to seek regulatory approval to commeraatiar product candidates in the United Stateskthrepean Union and potentially in
additional foreign countries. While the scope @fulatory approval is similar in other countriesptatain separate regulatory approval in many
other countries we must comply with numerous angling regulatory requirements of such countriesarding safety and efficacy, clinical
trials and commercial sales, pricing and distritmtdf our product candidates, and we cannot predictess in these jurisdictions.

Clinical drug development involves a lengthy andpexsive process with an uncertain outcome.

Clinical testing is expensive and, depending orstage of development, can take a substantialgienied to complete. Its outcome is
inherently uncertain. In addition, failure can ocatiany time during clinical development. We carpredict whether we will encounter
challenges with any of our planned clinical triidat will cause us or regulatory authorities teagesuspend or terminate those clinical trials.

Clinical trials can be delayed or halted for maegsons, including:
* delays or failure reaching agreement on acceptalrnes with prospective contract manufacturing oizgions, or CMOSs,
contract research organizations, or CROs, andceliniial sites, the terms of which can be subjeextensive negotiation and
may vary significantly among different CROs anditsites;

« failure of our third-party contractors, such as GRMd CMOs, or our investigators to comply withulagpry requirements or
otherwise meet their contractual obligations im@ty manner;

» delays or failure in obtaining the necessary apgisofrom regulators or institutional review boards]RBs, in order to
commence a clinical trial at a prospective trigd;si

* ourinability to manufacture, or obtain from thjpdrties, adequate supply of drug product sufficierdomplete our preclinical
studies and clinical trials;

» the FDA requiring alterations to any of our studgigns, our preclinical strategy or our manufaowplans;

« delays in patient enrollment, and variability ire thumber and types of patients available for dihigals, or high drop-out rates
of patients in our clinical trials;

« clinical trial sites deviating from trial protocol dropping out of a trial and our inability to adew clinical trial sites;
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» difficulty in maintaining contact with patients afttreatment, resulting in incomplete data;
»  poor effectiveness of our product candidates duclimical trials;

» safety issues, including serious adverse eventeiased with our product candidates and patienggbsure to unacceptable
health risks;

*  receipt by a competitor of marketing approval f@raduct targeting an indication that one of owdurct candidates targets, such
that we are not “first to market” with our prodwetndidate;

* governmental or regulatory delays and changesginlagory requirements, policy and guidelines; or
* varying interpretations of data by the FDA and &mioreign regulatory agencies.

We could also encounter delays if a clinical tisasuspended or terminated by us, by the IRBsefrthtitutions in which such trial is being
conducted, by the Data Safety Monitoring BoardD8MB, for such trial, or by the FDA or other regaley authorities. Such authorities may
impose such a suspension or termination due tordauof factors, including failure to conduct thimical trial in accordance with regulatory
requirements or our clinical protocols, inspectidithe clinical trial operations or trial site dyet FDA or other regulatory authorities resulting
in the imposition of a clinical hold, unforeseeffetgissues or adverse side effects, failure toatestrate a benefit from using a drug, changes
in governmental regulations or administrative atdior lack of adequate funding to continue theicdirtrial.

We have not previously initiated or completed gooate-sponsored clinical trial. Consequently, vay mot have the necessary capabilities,
including adequate staffing, to successfully marthgeexecution and completion of any clinical siale initiate, including our planned clinical
trials of SL-401 and SL-701, in a way that leadsuio obtaining marketing approval for our produahdidates in a timely manner, or at all.

In the event we are able to conduct a pivotal céihirial of a product candidate, the results afhstiial may not be adequate to support
marketing approval. Because our product candidatitended for use in life-threatening diseaisesiost cases we ultimately intend to seek
marketing approval for each product candidate basetthe results of a single pivotal clinical tridk a result, these trials may receive enha
scrutiny from the FDA. For any such pivotal trifithe FDA disagrees with our choice of primary paiht or the results for the primary
endpoint are not robust or significant relativedmtrol, are subject to confounding factors, orreaeadequately supported by other study
endpoints, including possibly overall survival antplete response rate, the FDA may refuse to appad®LA based on such pivotal trial. The
FDA may require additional clinical trials as a ddion for approving our product candidates.

If we experience delays in the completion of, omi@ation of, any clinical trial of our product adidates, the commercial prospects of our
product candidates will be harmed, and our abititgommence product sales and generate productuesdrom any of our product candide
will be delayed. In addition, any delays in comjplgtour clinical trials will increase our costs asldw down our product candidate
development and approval process. Delays in compgleur clinical trials could also allow our comjpets to obtain marketing approval before
we do or shorten the patent protection period duwhich we may have the exclusive right to comnadize our product candidates. Any of
these occurrences may harm our business, finarmmaition and prospects significantly. In additiamany of the factors that cause, or lead
delay in the commencement or completion of clintdals may also ultimately lead to the denial @julatory approval of our product
candidates.

Results of earlier clinical trials may not be pretdive of the results of late-stage clinical trials.

The results of preclinical studies and early chihitials of product candidates may not be predictf the results of later-stage clinical trials.
Product candidates in later stages of clinicalgnmaay fail to show the desired safety and efficaasults despite having progressed through
preclinical studies and initial clinical trials. My companies in the biopharmaceutical industry Feaféered significant setbacks in advanced
clinical trials due to adverse safety profilesamK of efficacy, notwithstanding promising resutt®arlier studies. Similarly, our future clinical
trial results may not be successful for these beioteasons.
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This drug candidate development risk is heightdmedny changes in the planned clinical trials coragdo the completed clinical trials. As
product candidates are developed through preclitbogarly and late stage clinical trials towarggmval and commercialization, it is
customary that various aspects of the developmegram, such as manufacturing and methods of adtration, are altered along the way in
an effort to optimize processes and results. Wthiégse types of changes are common and are intéodgdimize the product candidates for
late stage clinical trials, approval and commeizadion, such changes do carry the risk that thi#lynat achieve these intended objectives. For
example, the results of our planned clinical triasy be adversely affected by the following antitgal changes:

As we optimize and scale-up production of SL-40d 8h-701, there will be manufacturing, formulatamd other process and
analytical changes that are part of the optimizatiod scale-up typically necessary for producingydrubstance and drug product
of a quality and quantity sufficient for later stagjinical development and commercialization. Psla any of these steps may
delay initiation and completion of clinical trial$Ve will also need to demonstrate comparabilitipieen newly manufactured
drug substance and/or drug product relative toipusly manufactured drug substance and/or drugymtoddemonstrating
comparability may cause us to incur additional €astdelay initiation or completion of our clinidaials including the need to
initiate a dose escalation study and, if unsuco&ssbuld require us to complete additional prechhor clinical studies of our
product candidates.

We plan to change the treatment regimen of SL-8CG1 multi-cycle treatment regimen, in which theigrdtreceives more than
one treatment cycle, rather than a single-cycktinent as used in the completed clinical trialh@ugh we anticipate that
patients receiving multiple cycles of SL-401 widlriie even greater clinical benefit than from aykrcycle, there is always the
risk of an unforeseen toxicity arising from mulégycles.

We plan to develop SL-701 as an injection delivareder the skin, or subcutaneously, in futuregridhe 701 Ped-G Study used
this method of delivery. The 701 Adult-RHGG Studied a different method of delivery, in which deticcells, which are a
type of immune cell, are removed from the patierposed to SL-701, and theningected into or near a lymph node of the pa
(intra/peri-nodally). Thus, our plan continues gesliatric method and represents a change in thié rdthod.

We plan to manufacture and formulate SL-701 asxduré of IL-13Rx2, EphA2 and a helper peptide. In the 701 Ped-d7a1
Adult-RHGG Studies, SL-701 (which is comprised ofli3Ra2 and EphA2) was mixed with additional peptides|uding YKL-
40 and GP-100 peptides in the adult study, andwsngspeptide in the pediatric study. Given thenial anti-tumor activity
observed in both trials, we believe that the IL-&3Rnd EphA2 peptides, the common feature of balstrepresent the active
components. Thus, we believe that SL-701 need@aatixed with any additional peptides for cliniaativity. Accordingly,
while we will continue to evaluate the scientifierit of combining SL-701 with additional peptideg plan to advance SL-701
into future trials without additional peptides.

We plan to change the administration regimen of/8IL-to include a more commercially available arabig adjuvant than the
adjuvant used in the completed clinical trials. &djuvant is a substance administered to a patgmbtentially help enhance the
patient’'s immune response to a vaccine.

In some of our future trials, we may combine SL-40B5L-701 with other therapies such as chemotlyevapnti-angiogenic
therapy. We have not yet tested these combinatiormur planned Phase 2b clinical trial of SL-7@kdult second-line GBM, we
plan to administer SL-701 in combination with thamslard of care in this indication, which currenfijpevacizumab (Avastih ).
Given that there do not appear to be overlappirgitees between SL-701 and bevacizumab, we deewrpéct there to be
unexpected side effects. We plan to conduct eafltyg analyses in our trial to confirm this conaduns

Any of these changes could make the timing, inelgdnitiation, or the results of our planned clalitrials or other future clinical trials we m
initiate less predictable and could cause our prbdandidates to perform differently, including saag toxicities, which could delay
completion of our clinical trials, delay approvdlaur product candidates, and/or jeopardize oditalbd commence product sales and generat

revenues.
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If we experience delays in the enrollment of patterin our clinical trials, our receipt of necessarggulatory approvals could be delayed
prevented

We may not be able to initiate or continue clinicalls for our product candidates if we are unablacate and enroll a sufficient number of
eligible patients to participate in these trialgeguired by the FDA or other regulatory authositiBatient enroliment, a significant factor in the
timing of clinical trials, is affected by many facs including the size and nature of the patiempupation, the proximity of patients to clinical
sites, the eligibility criteria for the trial, thiesign of the clinical trial, competing clinicalais and clinicians’ and patients’ perceptionsathe
potential advantages of the drug being studieelation to other available therapies, including aew drugs that may be approved for the
indications we are investigating. SL-401 and SL-@€4 being developed in hematologic and brain aancespectively, both of which are
orphan indications (i.e., rare diseases). In paldic SL-401 is being developed in BPDCN and SL-isXeing developed in pediatric brain
cancer, both of which represent ultra-orphan irtéhes for which there are very limited independgmédported data on annual incidences. If
the incidences are very low, this could signifitadielay patient accrual to our SL-401 BPDCN progiand SL-701 pediatric brain cancer
program.

If we fail to enroll and maintain the number ofipats for which the clinical trial was designedk statistical power of that clinical trial may be
reduced, which would make it harder to demonstteethe product candidate being tested in suciiceli trial is safe and effective.
Additionally, enrollment delays in our clinicaldis may result in increased development costsdfopmduct candidates, which would cause
the value of our Common Stock to decline and limwit ability to obtain additional financing. Our lnkty to enroll a sufficient number of
patients for any of our current or future clinit@ls would result in significant delays or mayguée us to abandon one or more clinical trials
altogether.

The regulatory approval processes of the FDA andrgmarable foreign authorities are lengthy, time-camsing and inherently
unpredictable, and if we are ultimately unable tbw@in regulatory approval for our product candidageour business will be substantially
harmed.

The time required to obtain approval by the FDA aathparable foreign authorities is unpredictable d@pends upon numerous factors,
including the substantial discretion of the regutatauthorities. In addition, approval policiesguéations, or the type and amount of preclinica
and clinical data necessary to gain approval maygé during the course of a product candidatescdi development and may vary among
jurisdictions. We may be required to undertake emtiplete certain additional preclinical studiegémerate toxicity and other data require:
support the submission of a BLA or an NDA to theABVe have not obtained regulatory approval for prgduct candidate and it is possible
that none of our existing product candidates orfaguct candidates we may seek to develop inuted will ever obtain regulatory approv
Furthermore, approval by the FDA does not ensupecsal by regulatory authorities in other countregurisdictions, and approval by one
foreign regulatory authority does not ensure apglrby regulatory authorities in other foreign coiag or by the FDA.

Our product candidates could fail to receive remujaapproval for many reasons, including the feilog:
« the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authositieay disagree with the design or implementatioounfclinical trials;

* we may be unable to demonstrate to the satisfaofittne FDA or comparable foreign regulatory auities that a product candidate
safe and effective for its proposed indication;

» the results of clinical trials may not meet thedeof statistical significance required by the FDAcomparable foreign regulatory
authorities for approval;

 we may be unable to demonstrate that a productdateds clinical and other benefits outweigh itfesarisks;

« the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authositieay disagree with our interpretation of data frmeclinical studies or clinical
trials;
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» the data collected from clinical trials of our puatl candidates or the adequacy of our right ofregfee to it may not be sufficient to
support the submission of a BLA or an NDA or othebmission or to obtain regulatory approval inltthted States or elsewhere;

» the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authositieay fail to approve the manufacturing processéaailities of third-party
manufacturers with which we contract for clinicadecommercial supplies;

« the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authositieay fail to approve any companion diagnosticsleselop; and

» the approval policies or regulations of the FDAcomparable foreign regulatory authorities may gigantly change in a manner
rendering our clinical data insufficient for appabv

This lengthy and costly approval process as welhasinpredictability of future clinical trial relésimay result in our failing to obtain
regulatory approval to market SL-401 and SL-70licWlwould significantly harm our business.

In addition, even if we were to obtain approvafjuiatory authorities may approve any of our prodizstdidates for fewer or more limited
indications than we request, may grant approvaticgent on the performance of costly post-marketiigjcal trials, or may approve a product
candidate with a label that does not include tbellag claims necessary or desirable for the swfeksommercialization of that product
candidate. In addition, we may not be able to dtaty achieve the price we intend to charge forpgraducts. Moreover, in many foreign
countries, a product candidate must be approveckforbursement before it can be approved for safkdt country. Any of the foregoing
scenarios could materially harm the commercial peots for our product candidates.

Our approach to the discovery and development afqurct candidates that target CSCs is unproven, aveldo not know whether we will be
able to develop any products of commercial value.

Research on CSCs is an emerging field and, cons#guhere is ongoing debate regarding the exéseand importance of CSCs as an
underlying cause of tumor initiation, propagaticecurrence, and metastasis. In addition, thererieesdebate in the scientific community
regarding the defining characteristics of theséscel

Although there is general consensus that some caetie have tumor-initiating capacity, there alssome debate in the scientific community
regarding the defining characteristics and theiomg these cells. Some believe that normal adathscells transform into CSCs. Others bel
that non-CSC cancer cells can transform into CSf@s therefore, a definitive CSC cannot be readifdted or targeted. In addition, some
believe that targeting CSCs should be sufficiengfpositive clinical outcome, while others beliglat, at times or always, targeting CSCs
should be coupled with targeting tumor bulk forasiive clinical outcome.

We believe that SL-401 and SL-701 target both tububk and CSCs. However, it is conceivable that4Bll; SL-701 and any other products
that we develop may not effectively target tumoiklr CSCs or, even if they do, they may not habereficial clinical outcome. In addition,
it is conceivable that our platform technology nétymately fail to identify commercially viable dgs to treat human patients with cancer.

If we are not successful in discovering, developiaigd commercializing additional product candidatesyr ability to expand our busines
and achieve our strategic objectives may be impeire

Although a substantial amount of our efforts watfis on the continued clinical testing and potéag@roval of SL-401 and SL-701, another
key element of our strategy is to identify and teditional compounds that target CSCs in a vaoétifferent types of cancer. A portion of
the research that we are conducting involves nedwaproven drug discovery methods, including ooppietary StemScree¢h  platform
technology, as well as the testing of new compowamdkspotential new uses of existing compounds.drbg discovery that we are conducting
using our StemScreén platform technology may eatuzcessful in identifying compounds that areulseftreating humans with cancer.
Research programs designed to identify productidates require substantial technical, financial aachan resources, whether or not any
product candidates are ultimately identified. Gegearch programs may initially show promise in iifging potential product
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candidates, yet fail to yield product candidatescfmical development or commercialization for gaeasons, including the following:
» the research methodology used may not be succéssfigntifying potential product candidates;
e competitors may develop alternatives that rendepoaduct candidates obsolete;

e aproduct candidate may, on further study, be showrave harmful side effects or other characiegghat indicate it is unlikely to
be effective or otherwise does not meet appliceddelatory criteria;

* aproduct candidate may not be capable of beindymed in commercial quantities at an acceptable oost all; and

* aproduct candidate may not be accepted as safeftentive by regulatory authorities, patients, thedical community or third-party
payors.

If we are unable to identify suitable compoundsfmclinical and clinical development, we may netable to obtain sufficient product
revenues in future periods, which likely would régu significant harm to our financial positionéadversely impact our stock price.

Even if we receive regulatory approval for any afiroproduct candidates, we will be subject to onggiRDA obligations and continues
regulatory review, which may result in significastdditional expense. Additionally, our product camfgites, if approved, could be subject to
labeling and other restrictions and market withdralvand we may be subject to penalties if we faictimply with regulatory requirements
experience unanticipated problems with our products

Any regulatory approvals that we or our potentiedtegic partners receive for our product cand&latay also be subject to limitations on the
approved indicated uses for which the product meaynbrketed or to the conditions of approval, ortamnrequirements for potentially costly
post-marketing testing, including Phase 4 clintdals, and surveillance to monitor the safety affitacy of the product candidate. In addition,
if the FDA approves any of our product candidaties, manufacturing processes, testing, packagibglifey, storage, distribution, field alert or
biological product deviation reporting, adversergweporting, advertising, promotion and recordkegor the product will be subject to
extensive and ongoing regulatory requirements. & heguirements include submissions of safety ahdrgiost-marketing information and
reports, as well as continued compliance with cGbRommercial manufacturing and compliance witivi&and good clinical practices, or
GCP, for any clinical trials that we conduct pogproval. Later discovery of previously unknown geshs with a product, including adverse
events of unanticipated severity or frequency, ibh wur third-party manufacturers or manufactunomgcesses, or failure to comply with
regulatory requirements, may result in, among othiegs:

»  restrictions on the marketing or manufacturinghaf product, withdrawal of the product from the n&dylor voluntary or mandatory
product recalls;

* warning letters or holds on clinical trials;

» refusal by the FDA to approve pending applicationsupplements to approved applications filed bymusur strategic partners, or
suspension or revocation of product license appspva

e product seizure or detention, or refusal to peth@timport or export of products; and

e injunctions, fines or the imposition of other cipiénalties or criminal penalties.
We cannot predict the likelihood, nature or extgfirgovernment regulation that may arise from fulegislation or administrative action, either
in the United States or abroad. If we are slowr@hle to adapt to changes in existing requiremantise adoption of new requirements or
policies, or if we are not able to maintain regoifgtcompliance, we may lose any marketing apprthatl we may have obtained and we may
not achieve or sustain profitability, which wouldvarsely affect our business.
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Risks Related to Our Financial Position and CapitaRequirements

We have incurred net operating losses since ourgption and anticipate that we will continue to incgubstantial operating losses for the
foreseeable future. We may never achieve or susgaiwfitability, which would depress the market pei®f our common stock, and cou
cause you to lose all or a part of your investment.

We have incurred net losses from operations fromrmeption through December 31, 2012 of $19.3iamllWe do not know whether or when
we will become profitable. To date, we have not omrrialized any products or generated any revefiaesproduct sales. Our losses have
resulted principally from costs incurred in devetamt and discovery activities. We anticipate thataperating losses will substantially
increase over the next several years as we exeuaufdan to expand our discovery, research, devedsp and potential commercialization
activities. We believe that our existing cashhcaguivalents and marketable securities, togetlterthhe net proceeds from our initial public
offering, will be sufficient to fund our operatioasd our capital expenditures for at least the Bdxhonths. If our cash is insufficient to meet
future operating requirements, we will have toeaslditional funds. If we are unable to obtain tiddal funds on terms favorable to us or at
all, we may be required to cease or reduce ouratipgractivities or sell or license to third past&ome or all of our intellectual property. If we
raise additional funds by selling additional shasksur capital stock, the ownership interestswfsiockholders will be diluted. If we need to
raise additional funds through the sale or licesfseur intellectual property, we may be unable @osd on terms favorable to us, if at all.

If we do not successfully develop and obtain reguaapproval for our existing and future produahdidates and effectively manufacture,
market and sell any product candidates that areoapg, we may never generate product sales, andibwe do generate product sales, we
may never achieve or sustain profitability on artgréy or annual basis. Our failure to become amdain profitable would depress the market
price of our common stock and could impair ourigibtb raise capital, expand our business, divemsifr product offerings or continue our
operations. A decline in the market price of oumamon stock also could cause you to lose all oragigyour investment.

We will require substantial additional financing tachieve our goals, and a failure to obtain thiseessary capital when needed could force
us to delay, limit, reduce or terminate our produ¢velopment or commercialization efforts. Spegdfily, in the case of our planned
registration-directed randomized Phase 2b trial 8£-401 in third-line AML, we will require additionbfinancing unless this trial is stopped
early at an interim analysis.

Since our inception, most of our resources have bledicated to the discovery, acquisition and el and clinical development of our
product candidates. In particular, we have expérshel believe that we will continue to expend samitsal resources for the foreseeable future
developing our clinical candidates, SL-401 and7$ll; as well as our preclinical product candidated drug discovery and acquisition effor
These expenditures will include costs associatéld ggneral and administrative costs, facilitiessogsearch and development, acquiring ne
technologies, manufacturing product candidatesdgoting preclinical experiments and clinical triatsd obtaining regulatory approvals, as
well as commercializing any products approved fde s Furthermore, we expect to incur additionats@associated with operating as a public
company.

We have no current source of revenue to sustaiprasent activities, and we do not expect to geéaesvenue until, and unless, we obtain
approval from the FDA or other regulatory authestand we successfully commercialize one or momeioEompounds. As the outcome of
our planned and anticipated clinical trials is lyglncertain, we cannot reasonably estimate thgaheimounts necessary to successfully
complete the development and commercializatioruofppoduct candidates. In addition, other unapétgd costs may arise. As a result of
these and other factors currently unknown to usmag need to seek additional funds sooner thamplirthrough public or private equity or
debt financings or other sources, such as strapegtoerships and alliances and licensing arrangtsnén addition, we may seek additional
capital due to favorable market conditions or sgat considerations even if we believe we haved@afft funds for our current or future
operating plans.

Our future capital requirements depend on manyfagctncluding:
» the number and characteristics of the product ciates we pursue;
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» the scope, progress, results and costs of resagrahd developing our product candidates, and adimdupreclinical and clinical
trials;

« the timing of, and the costs involved in, obtainiegulatory approvals for our product candidates;

» the cost of commercialization activities if anyafr product candidates are approved for sale, ditumarketing, sales and
distribution costs;

the cost of manufacturing our product candidatesaary products we successfully commercialize;
» our ability to establish and maintain strategidparships, licensing or other arrangements anfinbacial terms of such agreements;
* our ability to obtain government funding for ouaphed clinical trial of SL-701 in pediatric patient

« the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecgtimaintaining, defending and enforcing patentagiincluding litigation costs and
the outcome of such litigation; and

« the timing, receipt and amount of sales of, or lig®on, our future products, if any.

Additional funds may not be available when we néwin, on terms that are acceptable to us, or.df allequate funds are not available to us
on a timely basis, we may be required to:

* delay, limit, reduce or terminate preclinical segliclinical trials or other research and develagraetivities for one or more of our
product candidates; or

« delay, limit, reduce or terminate our establishnafreales and marketing capabilities or other &/ that may be necessary to
commercialize our product candidates.

We will need to raise additional funds to compléie clinical development of SL-401 and SL-701 ieitlentirety. Specifically, in the case of
our planned registration-directed randomized PRasiial of SL-401 in third-line AML, we will requé additional financing unless this trial is
stopped early at an interim analysis.

Raising additional capital may cause dilution to pexisting stockholders, restrict our operations p¥quire us to relinquish rights to ou
technologies or product candidates.

We may seek additional capital through a combimatibprivate and public equity offerings, debt ficings, strategic partnerships and allial
and licensing arrangements. To the extent thatwee radditional capital through the sale of eqaitgonvertible debt securities, the ownership
interests of existing stockholders will be dilutedd the terms may include liquidation or otheffgnences that adversely affect stockholder
rights. Debt financing, if available, may involvgraements that include covenants limiting or re8trg our ability to take certain actions, such
as incurring debt, making capital expendituresamiaring dividends. If we raise additional fundsotigh strategic partnerships and alliances
and licensing arrangements with third parties, ves mave to relinquish valuable rights to our tedbgi@s or product candidates, or grant
licenses on terms that are not favorable to uselfire unable to raise additional funds throughtequ debt financing when needed, we may
be required to delay, limit, reduce or terminate moduct development or commercialization effartgrant rights to develop and market
product candidates that we would otherwise prefetevelop and market ourselves.

Unstable market and economic conditions may haveaes adverse consequences on our business, finalheondition and stock price.

As has been widely reported, global credit andrfaia markets have been experiencing extreme disngover the past several years,
including severely diminished liquidity and creditailability, declines in consumer confidence, s in economic growth, increases in
unemployment rates, and uncertainty about econetalility. There can be no assurance that furtbegrabration in credit and financial
markets and confidence in economic conditions matl occur. Our general business strategy may beraely affected by the recent economic
downturn and volatile business environment and
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continued unpredictable and unstable market canditilf the current equity and credit markets detate further, or do not improve, it may
make any necessary debt or equity financing mdfiewli to secure, more costly, and/or more diletiailure to secure any necessary
financing in a timely manner and on favorable teomsld have a material adverse effect on our gratrtitegy, financial performance and
stock price and could require us to delay or abarmdo business and clinical development plansdtiten, there is a risk that one or more of
our current service providers, manufacturers ahdrgpartners may not survive these difficult ecoiwatimes, which could directly affect our
ability to attain our operating goals on schedulé an budget. There is a possibility that our stogke may decline, due in part to the volati
of the stock market and the general economic dawntu

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry
We are a clinical-stage company with no approvedqucts, which makes it difficult to assess our futwiability.

We are a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical compaitly a&vlimited operating history. We have not yetaastrated an ability to successfully
overcome many of the risks and uncertainties fretiyencountered by companies in new and rapidbhang fields, particularly in the
biopharmaceutical area. For example, to executdasiness plan, we will need to successfully:

»  execute product candidate development activities;
e obtain required regulatory approvals for the deplent and commercialization of our product candisiat
* maintain, leverage and expand our intellectual eriypportfolio;

e build and maintain robust sales, distribution aradkating capabilities, either on our own or in abbration with strategic
partners;

» gain market acceptance for our products;
* develop and maintain any strategic relationshipeet to enter into; and

* manage our spending as costs and expenses indigase drug discovery, preclinical developmennichl trials, regulatory
approvals and commercialization.

If we are unsuccessful in accomplishing these divjes, we may not be able to develop product catdg] raise capital, expand our busine
continue our operations.

We face substantial competition, which may resuitdthers discovering, developing or commercializipgpducts before, or more
successfully, than we di

Our future success depends on our ability to detratesand maintain a competitive advantage witheesto the design, development and
commercialization of product candidates. Our colibqat may succeed in developing competing prodoetsre we do for the same indications
we are pursuing, obtaining regulatory approvalgiarducts or gaining acceptance for the same mattkatsve are targeting. If we are not “first
to market” with one of our product candidates, campetitive position could be compromised becausey be more difficult for us to obtain
marketing approval for that product candidate aratassfully market that product candidate as argecompetitor.

We expect any product candidate that we commezeialill compete with products from other compariethe biotechnology and
pharmaceutical industries. For example, there amengber of biopharmaceutical companies focusedeseldping therapeutics that target
CSCs, including Verastem, Inc., OncoMed Pharmacaisti Inc., Dainippon Sumitomo PharmaceuticalsnBinics Limited and Stem

CentRx, Inc. There are also several biopharmaautompanies that do not appear to be primarity$éed on CSCs, but may be developing ¢
least one CSC-directed compound. These compariksle Astellas Pharma US, Inc., Boehringer Ingeih@mbH, Dainippon Sumitomo
Pharma Co. Ltd., Geron Corp., GlaxoSmithKline plemunoCellular Therapeutics, Ltd, Macrogenics Iigromet, Inc. (an Amgen, Inc.
Company), Pfizer Inc., Roche Holding AG, Sanofi LLEC, and others. Additionally, there are a numisecompanies working to
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develop new treatments for AML, which may compeit\8L-401, including Ambit Biosciences Corporati@elator Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
Celgene Corporation, Clavis Pharma ASA, CyclacarRiaceuticals, Inc., Eisai Co. Ltd., Genzyme Capon (now a Sanofi company), CSL
Limited and Sunesis Pharmaceuticals, Inc., amohegrst There are also a number of drugs used éarélatment of brain cancer that may
compete with SL-701, including, Avastth  (Roche #loj AG), GliadeP (Eisai Co. Ltd.), and TemodarMefck & Co., Inc.). There are a
number of companies working to develop brain catteerapeutics with programs in clinical testinglirding Celldex

Therapeutics, Inc., ImmunoCellular Therapeutics, LMerck & Co. Inc., Novartis AG, Roche Holding A6®&d others.

Many of our competitors have substantially greatenmercial infrastructures and financial, technaad personnel resources than we have.
We will not be able to compete successfully uniessuccessfully:

» design and develop products that are superiortergiroducts in the market;

e attract qualified scientific, medical, sales andkating and commercial personnel;

«  obtain patent and/or other proprietary protectmmndur processes and product candidates;
»  obtain required regulatory approvals; and

»  collaborate with others in the design, developnagat commercialization of new products.

Established competitors may invest heavily to gyickscover and develop novel compounds that cowdéte our product candidates obsolete.
In addition, any new product that competes wittapproved product must demonstrate compelling adgastin efficacy, convenience,
tolerability and safety in order to overcome preoenpetition and to be commercially successful.dfave not able to compete effectively
against our current and future competitors, ouirass will not grow and our financial condition apypkrations will suffer.

If we fail to attract and keep senior managementdkey scientific personnel, we may be unable tocassfully develop our produs
candidates, conduct our clinical trials and comméaitize our product candidates.

Our success depends in part on our continuedyatmliattract, retain and motivate highly qualifisénagement, clinical and scientific
personnel. We are highly dependent upon our semémragement, particularly lvan Bergstein, M.D., Gairman, Chief Executive Officer al
President, and Eric K. Rowinsky, M.D., our ExecatWice President, Chief Medical Officer and HeadRekearch and Development, as we
other employees, consultants and scientific andeakdollaborators. As of December 31, 2012, we éigtit full-time employees, which may
make us more reliant on our individual employe@stbompanies with a greater number of employedloAgh none of these individuals has
informed us to date that he intends to retire sigrein the near future, the loss of services gfafrthese individuals or one or more of our
other members of senior management could delayemept the successful development of our prodylipie, completion of our planned
clinical trials or the commercialization of our prect candidates.

Although we have not historically experienced umiglifficulties attracting and retaining qualifiechployees, we could experience such
problems in the future. For example, competitiongoalified personnel in the biotechnology and pieceuticals field is intense. We will need
to hire additional personnel as we expand ourcdindevelopment and commercial activities. We matybe able to attract and retain quality
personnel on acceptable terms.

In addition, we rely on consultants and advisarsluding scientific and clinical advisors, to assis in formulating our research and
development and commercialization strategy. Ousultiants and advisors may be employed by emplateer than us and may have
commitments under consulting or advisory contradts other entities that may limit their availabjiito us.

If our employees commit fraud or other misconduatgcluding noncompliance with regulatory standardsid requirements and inside
trading, our business may experience serious adeersnsequences.

We are exposed to the risk of employee fraud ceratiisconduct. Misconduct by employees could inelidentional failures to comply with
FDA regulations, to provide accurate informatiortite FDA, to comply with manufacturing
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standards we have established, to comply with &derd state healthcare fraud and abuse laws gatht®ns, to report financial information
or data accurately or to disclose unauthorizeditiets to us. In particular, sales, marketing andibess arrangements in the healthcare ind
are subject to extensive laws and regulations dedno prevent fraud, kickbacks, self-dealing atmtoabusive practices. These laws and
regulations may restrict or prohibit a wide ran@@ricing, discounting, marketing and promotiongsacommission, customer incentive
programs and other business arrangements. Emphoigeenduct could also involve the improper usenédrimation obtained in the course of
clinical trials, which could result in regulatorgrections and serious harm to our reputation. We laglopted a Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics, but it is not always possible to identifydadeter employee misconduct, and the precauti@enske to detect and prevent this activity
may not be effective in controlling unknown or unrmaged risks or losses or in protecting us from gowental investigations or other actions
or lawsuits stemming from a failure to be in coraptie with such laws or regulations. If any sucloastare instituted against us, and we are
not successful in defending ourselves or asseglimgights, those actions could have a signifiéamact on our business, including the
imposition of significant fines or other sanctions.

We may encounter difficulties in managing our grolwaind expanding our operations successfully.

As we seek to advance our product candidates throligical trials, we will need to expand our dey@hent, regulatory, manufacturing,
marketing and sales capabilities or contract wittdtparties to provide these capabilities forAs.our operations expand, we expect that we
will need to manage additional relationships wisttigus strategic partners, suppliers and othed tharties. Future growth will impose
significant added responsibilities on members ohagement. Our future financial performance andaduility to commercialize our product
candidates and to compete effectively will depémgbart, on our ability to manage any future groetfectively. To that end, we must be able
to manage our development efforts and clinicalgridfectively and hire, train and integrate additil management, administrative and sales
and marketing personnel. The hiring, training artdgration of new employees may be more diffiaedstly and/or time-consuming for us
because we have fewer resources than a largeripagian. We may not be able to accomplish thedestaand our failure to accomplish any of
them could prevent us from successfully growing©@ampany.

If product liability lawsuits are brought againsts} we may incur substantial liabilities and may bequired to limit commercialization of ou
product candidates

We face an inherent risk of product liability aseault of the clinical testing of our product cataties and will face an even greater risk if we
commercialize any products. For example, we maguesl if any product we develop allegedly causesyrgr is found to be otherwise
unsuitable during product testing, manufacturingrkmating or sale. Any such product liability claimay include allegations of defects in
manufacturing, defects in design, a failure to wafrdangers inherent in the product, negligencetdiability, and a breach of warranties.
Claims could also be asserted under state conspnoierction acts. If we cannot successfully defemgelves against product liability claims,
we may incur substantial liabilities or be requitedimit commercialization of our product candiest Even successful defense would require
significant financial and management resourcesaRigss of the merits or eventual outcome, ligbdlaims may result in:

» decreased demand for our product candidates oupt®that we may develop;

e injury to our reputation;

» withdrawal of clinical trial participants;

» costs to defend the related litigation;

» adiversion of management’s time and our resources;

e  substantial monetary awards to trial participamtpatients;

e product recalls, withdrawals or labeling, marketargoromotional restrictions;

. loss of revenue;
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» the inability to commercialize our product candetatand

e adecline in our stock price.

Our inability to obtain and retain sufficient praduiability insurance at an acceptable cost tdgubagainst potential product liability claims
could prevent or inhibit the commercialization obgucts we develop. Although we maintain liabilitgurance, any claim that may be brot
against us could result in a court judgment otesaint in an amount that is not covered, in wholgart, by our insurance or that is in
excess of the limits of our insurance coverage.i@urance policies also have various exclusiond,vee may be subject to a product liability
claim for which we have no coverage. We will hawvgay any amounts awarded by a court or negotiatadettlement that exceed our
coverage limitations or that are not covered byinsurance, and we may not have, or be able targlstafficient capital to pay such amounts.

Our relationships with customers and third-party pars in the United States and elsewhere will bejsabto applicable anti-kickback, fraud
and abuse and other healthcare laws and regulationdich could expose us to criminal sanctions, tipenalties, contractual damages,
reputational harm and diminished profits and futurearnings.

Healthcare providers, physicians and third-partyopsin the United States and elsewhere play agsginole in the recommendation and
prescription of any product candidates for whicholséain marketing approval. Our future arrangemeiits third-party payors and customers
may expose us to broadly applicable fraud and abodeother healthcare laws and regulations thateoagtrain the business or financial
arrangements and relationships through which wekebasell and distribute our products for which etetain marketing approval. Restrictions
under applicable federal, state and foreign healthtaws and regulations include the following:

» the federal healthcare anti-kickback statute pritdyiamong other things, persons from knowingly asitfully soliciting,
offering, receiving or providing remuneration, ditlg or indirectly, in cash or in kind, to induce reward either the referral of an
individual for, or the purchase, order or recomnaginch of, any good or service for which payment rhaymade under federal
and state healthcare programs such as Medicar¥laditaid,;

» the federal False Claims Act imposes criminal and penalties, against individuals or entities farowingly presenting, or
causing to be presented, to the federal governmkits for payment that are false or fraudulenhaking a false statement to
avoid, decrease or conceal an obligation to payayom the federal government and also includesigians allowing for private,
civil whistleblower or “qui tam” actions;

» the federal Health Insurance Portability and Acc¢ahility Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”"), as amended by theeBlth Information
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (THECH”), imposes criminal and civil liability fonecuting a scheme to
defraud any healthcare benefit program. HIPAA ahiB€CH also regulate the use and disclosure of itiable health
information by health care providers, health pland health care clearinghouses, and impose oldigatincluding mandatory
contractual terms, with respect to safeguardingthecy, security and transmission of identifiabalth information as well as
requiring notification of regulatory breaches. Hi®RAnd HITECH violations may prompt civil and crinaiinenforcement actions
as well as enforcement by state attorneys general;

» the federal false statements statute prohibits kmglywand willfully falsifying, concealing or covierg up a material fact or
making any materially false statement in connectiith the delivery of or payment for healthcare &f#s, items or services;

» the federal transparency requirements under thélH€are Reform Law requires manufacturers of drdgsices, biologics and
medical supplies to report to the Department ofltHeend Human Services information related to ptigsi payments and other
transfers of value and physician ownership anddtment interests;

» analogous state laws and regulations, such asastttkickback and false claims laws, may applgates or marketing
arrangements and claims involving healthcare itenservices reimbursed by non-governmental thindygaayors, including
private insurers, and some state laws require phiggatical companies to comply with the pharmacelindustry’s voluntary
compliance guidelines and the relevant compliangdagnce promulgated by the federal government ditiach to requiring drug
manufacturers to report information related to pagta to physicians and other health care providensarketing expenditures;
and
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» analogous anti-kickback, fraud and abuse and hesakthlaws and regulations in foreign countries.

Efforts to ensure that our business arrangemeirtisthird parties will comply with applicable heattire laws and regulations will involve
substantial costs. It is possible that governmemnigiorities will conclude that our business p@gimay not comply with current or future
statutes, regulations or case law involving appliedraud and abuse or other healthcare laws apdagons. If our operations are found to be
in violation of any of these laws or any other gowveental regulations that may apply to us, we magubject to significant civil, criminal and
administrative penalties, damages, fines, excluimm government funded healthcare programs, sadledicare and Medicaid, and the
curtailment or restructuring of our operationsaify of the physicians or other providers or ergitigth whom we expect to do business are
found to be not in compliance with applicable latii®y may be subject to criminal, civil or adminggive sanctions, including exclusions from
government funded healthcare programs.

If we fail to comply with environmental, health anslafety laws and regulations, we could become scitije fines or penalties or incur cos
that could have a material adverse effect on thesess of our business.

We are subject to numerous environmental, healihsafety laws and regulations, including those guwg laboratory procedures and the
handling, use, storage, treatment and disposazdrdous materials and wastes. Our operationsvietbe use of hazardous and flammable
materials, including chemicals and biological mialer Our operations also produce hazardous wasthipts. We generally contract with third
parties for the disposal of these materials andega¥Ve cannot eliminate the risk of contaminatiomjury from these materials. In the event
of contamination or injury resulting from our udehazardous materials, we could be held liableafoy resulting damages, and any liability
could exceed our resources. We also could incmifgignt costs associated with civil or criminaidis and penalties.

Although we maintain workers’ compensation insugatcover us for costs and expenses we may inmutalinjuries to our employees
resulting from the use of hazardous materials,itfsisrance may not provide adequate coverage dagatential liabilities. We do not maintain
insurance for environmental liability or toxic taifims that may be asserted against us in cormmeatith our storage or disposal of biological,
hazardous or radioactive materials.

In addition, we may incur substantial costs in otdecomply with current or future environmentagalth and safety laws and regulations.
These current or future laws and regulations mayaimour research, development or production effdrailure to comply with these laws and
regulations also may result in substantial finesglties or other sanctions.

Risks Related to Commercialization of Our Product @Gndidates

If, in the future, we are unable to establish ounm sales, marketing and distribution capabilities enter into licensing or collaboratior
agreements for these purposes, we may not be sgtulds commercializing our product candidates.

We currently have a relatively small number of esgpes and do not have a sales or marketing infictsie, and we, including our executive
officers, do not have any significant sales, mankgtr distribution experience. We will be oppoiisiit in seeking to either build our own
commercial infrastructure to commercialize SL-481;701 and future products if and when they are@ygd, or enter into licensing or
collaboration agreements to assist in the futuseld@ment and commercialization of such products.

To develop internal sales, distribution and margtiapabilities, we will have to invest significamhounts of financial and management
resources, some of which will be committed prioaty confirmation that SL-401 or SIQ1 will be approved. For product candidates foich
we decide to perform sales, marketing and distidnuiunctions ourselves, we could face a numbexdafitional risks, including:

e our inability to recruit and retain adequate nurskfreffective sales and marketing personnel;

» the inability of sales personnel to obtain accegsysicians or persuade adequate numbers of pysito prescribe any future
products;

» the lack of complementary products to be offereddlgs personnel, which may put us at a competiis@dvantage relative to
companies with more extensive product lines; and
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» unforeseen costs and expenses associated witingreatindependent sales and marketing organization
Where and when appropriate, we may elect to utda®ract sales forces or strategic partners tistaashe commercialization of our product
candidates. If we enter into arrangements withdtparties to perform sales, marketing and distidnuservices for our products, the resulting
revenues or the profitability from these revenuesd are likely to be lower than if we had soldykesed and distributed our products
ourselves. In addition, we may not be successfahiering into arrangements with third partiesath snarket and distribute our product
candidates or may be unable to do so on termsthdtvorable to us. We likely will have little dool over such third parties, and any of these
third parties may fail to devote the necessaryuess and attention to sell, market and distrilouteproducts effectively.

If we do not establish sales, marketing and distiiim capabilities successfully, either on our awrin collaboration with third parties, we will
not be successful in commercializing our producididates.

Our commercial success depends upon attaining digaint market acceptance of our product candidatdsapproved, including SL401 anc
SL-701, among physicians, patients, health care payand, in the cancer market, acceptance by the majoerators of cancer clinics.

Even if SL-401, SL-701 or any other product cantidhat we may develop or acquire in the futureioistregulatory approval, the product
may not gain market acceptance among physiciaasthheare payors, patients and the medical commupir example, current cancer
treatments such as chemotherapy and radiationphera well established in the medical communibg doctors may continue to rely on th
treatments. The degree of market acceptance gbratjucts for which we receive approval for commedrsale depends on a number of fact
including:

« the efficacy and safety of our products, as dennatest in clinical trials, and the degree to whict products represent a
clinically meaningful improvement in care as congghwith other available therapies;

» the clinical indications for which our products agproved,;
* acceptance by physicians, major operators of catlicérs and patients of our products as a safeedfedtive treatment;
» the willingness of the target patient populatiortrjonew therapies and of physicians to presctilese therapies;
» the potential and perceived advantages of our mtscaver alternative treatments;
+ the cost of treatment in relation to alternatieatments;
« the availability of adequate reimbursement andipgiby third parties and government authorities;
» the continued projected growth of oncology drug kets;
» relative convenience and ease of administration;
* the prevalence and severity of adverse side effants
» the effectiveness of our sales and marketing effort
If our approved drugs fail to achieve market acaepé, we would not be able to generate signifioawgnue.

Even if we are able to commercialize any produchdalates, the products may become subject to unfalute pricing regulations, thire
party reimbursement practices or healthcare refoinitiatives, which would harm our busines

The regulations that govern marketing approvaisjmg and reimbursement for new drug products weidely from country to country. In the
United States, recently passed legislation mayifsigntly change the approval requirements in widngd
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could involve additional costs and cause delaysbiaining approvals. Some countries require appmfvdoe sale price of a drug before it can
be marketed. In many countries, the pricing revi@niod begins after marketing or product licensapgroval is granted. In some foreign
markets, prescription pharmaceutical pricing remaimbject to continuing governmental control eviéer anitial approval is granted. As a
result, we might obtain marketing approval for adarct in a particular country, but then be subjegirice regulations that delay our
commercial launch of the product, possibly for krygime periods, and negatively impact the revenue are able to generate from the sale c
the product in that country. Adverse pricing linivds may hinder our ability to recoup our investini@ one or more product candidates, ever
if our product candidates obtain marketing approval

Our ability to commercialize any products succdshlso will depend in part on the extent to whrelimbursement for these products and
related treatments will be available from governtteralth administration authorities, private heafigurers and other organizations.
Government authorities and third-party payors, agprivate health insurers and health maintenargamizations, decide which medications
they will pay for and establish reimbursement levél primary trend in the U.S. healthcare indusing elsewhere is cost containment.
Government authorities and third-party payors trettempted to control costs by limiting coverage relamount of reimbursement for
particular medications. Increasingly, third-pargyprs are requiring that drug companies providentivéth predetermined discounts from list
prices and are challenging the prices charged &atical products. We cannot be sure that reimbursemid be available for any product that
we commercialize and, if reimbursement is availatile level of reimbursement. Reimbursement mayaththe demand for, or the price of,
any product candidate for which we obtain marketipgroval. Obtaining reimbursement for our produets be particularly difficult because
of the higher prices often associated with drugsiatstered under the supervision of a physicianeifihbursement is not available or is
available only to limited levels, we may not beeatdl successfully commercialize any product carndifar which we obtain marketing
approval.

There may be significant delays in obtaining reinslement for newly approved drugs, and coveragebrayore limited than the purposes for
which the drug is approved by the FDA or similagukatory authorities outside the United States. &dwer, eligibility for reimbursement does
not imply that any drug will be paid for in all @ssor at a rate that covers our costs, includiegarch, development, manufacture, sale and
distribution. Interim reimbursement levels for ndmgs, if applicable, may also not be sufficientéwer our costs and may not be made
permanent. Reimbursement rates may vary accordititetuse of the drug and the clinical setting mclv it is used, may be based on
reimbursement levels already set for lower cosgslimnd may be incorporated into existing paymemtsther services. Net prices for drugs
may be reduced by mandatory discounts or rebatgsreel by government healthcare programs or pripat@rs and by any future relaxatior
laws that presently restrict imports of drugs froountries where they may be sold at lower pricas th the United States. Third-party payors
often rely upon Medicare coverage policy and payrtietitations in setting their own reimbursementigies. Our inability to promptly obtain
coverage and profitable payment rates from botleguwent-funded and private payors for any apprg@reducts that we develop could have ¢
material adverse effect on our operating resuiis ability to raise capital needed to commerciapizeducts and our overall financial condition.

Healthcare policy changes may have a material acheeeffect on us

Our business may be affected by the efforts of gowent and third-party payors to contain or rediheecost of healthcare through various
means. For example, the Patient Protection andrédfile Care Act and the Health Care and Educatitordability Reconciliation Act of

2010 (collectively, the Affordable Care Act or ACAnacted in March 2010, substantially changedvidyehealthcare is financed by both
governmental and private insurers, and signifigaintipacted the pharmaceutical industry. With regargdharmaceutical products, among o
things, the ACA is expected to expand and incraadastry rebates for drugs covered under Mediceddjimms and make changes to the
coverage requirements under the Medicare Part Brane. Although the Supreme Court has upheld thé& ACthe main challenge to the
constitutionality of the statute and the 2012 ébest maintained divided government at the fedenatl, Congressional efforts to repeal the
ACA continue. In addition, there may be Congreassi@fforts to expand the Medicaid drug rebate @ogto the Medicare Part D program (or
to provide authority for the government to negetidtug prices under the Medicare Part D prograhijs adds to the uncertainty of the
legislative changes enacted as part of the ACA vemdannot predict the impact that the ACA or atheolegislative or regulatory proposals
will have on our business. Regardless of wheth@obthe ACA is repealed, we expect both governraedtprivate health plans to continue to
require healthcare providers, including healthgaicviders that may one day purchase our produztspnitain costs and demonstrate the value
of the therapies they provide.
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Our therapeutic product candidates for which we émtd to seek approval as biological products mayefaompetition sooner than expected.

With the enactment of the Biologics Price Competitand Innovation Act of 2009, or BPCIA, as parttad Health Care Reform Law, an
abbreviated pathway for the approval of biosimélad interchangeable biological products was credted new abbreviated regulatory
pathway establishes legal authority for the FDAetdew and approve biosimilar biologics, includihg possible designation of a biosimilar as
“interchangeable.” The FDA defines an interchan¢gimsimilar as a product that, in terms of safatgliminished efficacy, presents no
greater risk when switching between the biosindlad its reference product than the risk of usirgréfference product alone. Under the
BPCIA, an application for a biosimilar product cahbe submitted to the FDA until four years, or wed by the FDA until 12 years, after
original brand product identified as the referepoaduct was approved under a BLA. The new law mmex and is only beginning to be
interpreted by the FDA. As a result, its ultimatgact, implementation and meaning are subject temtainty. While it is uncertain when any
such processes may be fully adopted by the FDAsaokh processes could have a material adversd efféhe future commercial prospects
our biological products.

We believe that if any of our product candidateshsas SL-401 or SL-701, were to be approved dedigal products under a BLA, such
approved products should qualify for the 12-yeaiqokof exclusivity. However, there is a risk tlilae U.S. Congress could amend the BPCIA
to significantly shorten this exclusivity period g®posed by President Obama, potentially creatiagopportunity for generic competition
sooner than anticipated. Moreover, the extent twhvh biosimilar, once approved, will be substititer any one of our reference products in :
way that is similar to traditional generic subdtiin for non-biological products is not yet cleand will depend on a nhumber of marketplace
and regulatory factors that are still developimgadidition, a competitor could decide to foregotifesimilar route and submit a full BLA after
completing its own preclinical studies and clinitr@ls. In such cases, any exclusivity to whichmey be eligible under the BPCIA would not
prevent the competitor from marketing its produesaon as it is approved.

Risks Related to Our Dependence on Third Parties

Third parties have conducted all clinical trials @L-401 and SL?01 so far, and our ability to influence the desigmd conduct of such trial
has been limited. Our plans to assume control othe future clinical and regulatory development ofich product candidates will entail

additional expenses and require us to rely on adthl third parties. Any failure by a third partya meet its obligations with respect to the
clinical and regulatory development of our producandidates may delay or impair our ability to ohtaiegulatory approval for our product

To date, we have not sponsored any clinical trigisting to SL-401 or SL-701. Instead, faculty mensbat the Scott and White Cancer
Research Institute, MD Anderson Cancer CenteridBritolumbia Cancer Agency and Duke University hemeducted and sponsored all
clinical trials relating to SL-401 and faculty meenb at the University of Pittsburgh have condueted sponsored all clinical trials relating to
SL-701, in each case under their own INDs. Becthuseompleted SL-401 and SL-701 clinical trials evevestigator-sponsored, we did not
control the design or conduct of the previous dtiahd it is possible that the FDA will not vievesie previous trials as providing adequate
support for future clinical trials, whether conteal by us or third parties, for any one or moresogs, including elements of the design or
execution of the previous trials or safety concenneather trial results.

While we plan to assume control of the overallicikhand regulatory development of SL-401 and SIL-g6ing forward, we have so far been
dependent on contractual arrangements with eadsiigator and their respective academic institstiamd will continue to be until we assume
control. Such arrangements provide us certain in&ion rights with respect to the completed trissluding access to and the ability to use
and reference the data, including for our own ragul filings, resulting from the completed tridisthese obligations are breached by the
investigators or institutions, or if the data prawebe inadequate compared to the first-hand kndgdeve might have gained had the complete
trials been corporate-sponsored trials, then ollityato design and conduct our planned corporgtensored clinical trials may be adversely
affected. Additionally, the FDA may disagree witle tsufficiency of our right of reference to thegircal, manufacturing, or clinical data
generated by these prior investigator-sponsoratsfror our interpretation of preclinical, manutaatg, or clinical data from these clinical
trials. If so, the FDA may require us to obtain @utbmit additional preclinical, manufacturing, éinical data before we may initiate our
planned trials and/or may not accept such additidata as adequate to initiate our planned trials.
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We intend to assume control over the clinical agutatory development of SL-401 by either exergsar right under our agreement with
Scott and White Memorial Hospital to have Scott 8vitite transfer to us the existing IND for SL-401by filing our own IND for SL401. We
expect to either transfer the IND or file our oD in the next twelve months. We intend to assuor@rol over the clinical development of
SL-701 by filing a corporate-sponsored IND, for alnive may exercise our rights of reference undeagteements with the University of
Pittsburgh with respect to the existing INDs for-B01.

We plan to rely on government funding to completar @lanned clinical trial of SL-701 in pediatric patients. If such funding is notailable,
we may be unable to complete this trial, which collarm our commercial prospects for SL-701.

We intend to rely on government funding to fundstahtially all the costs of our planned clinicéitiof SL-701 in pediatric patients with
brainstem and non-brainstem glioma. We have colibd with the Pediatric Brain Tumor ConsortiumP&TC, to apply for funding from the
National Cancer Institute, or NCI, for this tridhe letter of intent that we and the PBTC submiftedhe pediatric trial was approved by

NCI in October 2012. We must still obtain approwhthe full protocol, which we are pursuing nowfdre this pediatric trial may begin. V
anticipate requiring approximately $3 million to 8#llion of funding from the NCI to complete thisal. The actual costs will vary based on a
number of factors, including the degree of cosirsgasthat can be realized by the PBTC, as welliakresults and other factors.

Even if the full protocol for the pediatric trisdgeives approval, all government grants are tylgicaibject to government appropriations.
Government grants often contain provisions thatvallor termination at the convenience of the gowegnt. Further, government grants are
subject to complex federal guidelines and regutetidf federal agencies or regulatory authoritieetmine that we, or our planned pediatric
trial of SL-701, do not qualify for these grantg may be unable to complete this trial, which cchddm our commercial prospects for SL-701
and delay our ability to commence product salesgamrate product revenues from SL-701.

We rely on, and expect to continue to rely on, thiparties to monitor, support, conduct and/or oveesclinical trials of our product
candidates and, in some cases, to maintain regutatiles for our product candidates. If we are nable to maintain or secure agreements
with such third parties on acceptable terms to mimmnj support, conduct and/or oversee these cliniti@ls, if these third parties do not
perform their services as required, or if theserthiparties fail to timely transfer any regulatorynformation held by them to us, we may r
be able to obtain regulatory approval for, or comromlize, our product candidates.

To date, we have relied on academic institutio®OE&, hospitals, clinics and other third-party dotieators who are outside our control to
monitor, support, conduct and/or oversee preclirdod clinical studies of our product candidates.aXesult, we have less control over the
timing and cost of these studies and the abilityetwuit trial subjects than if we conducted thiesds wholly by ourselves. Once we assume
control of the further clinical and regulatory demment of SL-401 and SL-701, we will likely needangage additional third parties. Because
we currently lack and may lack in the future suéfit internal staff to monitor such third partiesido interact with the FDA, we will also be
required to build out our internal staff and/or agg consultants for such purposes. If we are uriabteintain or enter into agreements with
these third parties on acceptable terms, or ifsugh engagement is terminated, we may be unaleglertdl patients on a timely basis or
otherwise conduct our trials in the manner we gdie. In addition, there is no guarantee thatelieisd parties will devote adequate time and
resources to our studies or perform as requirecbbyract or in accordance with regulatory requiretself these third parties fail to meet
expected deadlines, fail to adhere to protocofaibto act in accordance with regulatory requir@tseor our agreements with them, or if they
otherwise perform in a substandard manner or iy tvat compromises the quality or accuracy ofrtheiivities or the data they obtain, then
clinical trials of our product candidates may b&exed, delayed or terminated, and as a result ayenot be able to commercialize our prot
candidates.

We may not be successful in establishing and maiinitag strategic partnerships, which could adversedffect our ability to develop and
commercialize products.

We may seek to enter into strategic partnershipisdriuture, including alliances with other biotaology or pharmaceutical companies, to
enhance and accelerate the development and conatiation of our products in territories outside thnited States. We face significant
competition in seeking appropriate strategic pastaad the negotiation process is time-consumingcamplex. Moreover, we may not be
successful in our efforts to establish a stratpgitnership or other alternative arrangementsrigrfature product candidates and programs
because our research and development pipeline mmsbfficient, our product candidates and programag be deemed to be at too early of a
stage of development for
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collaborative effort and/or third parties may naw our product candidates and programs as halimgequisite potential to demonstrate s
and efficacy. Even if we are successful in ourgfto establish strategic partnerships, the téhaswe agree upon may not be favorable to us
and we may not be able to maintain such stratemimerships if, for example, development or appro¥a product candidate is delayed or
sales of an approved product are disappointing.

If we ultimately determine that entering into séigit partnerships is in our best interest but eithiéto enter into, are delayed in entering into
or fail to maintain such strategic partnerships:

» the development of certain of our current or futpreduct candidates may be terminated or delayed;

» our cash expenditures related to development ¢diceof our current or future product candidatesildancrease significantly
and we may need to seek additional financing;

 we may be required to hire additional employeestierwise develop expertise, such as sales andetaglexpertise, for which
we have not budgeted;

» we will bear all of the risk related to the deveatomt of any such product candidates;
» the competitiveness of any product candidate thabmmercialized could be reduced; and

» with respect to our platform technology, StemScieewe may not realize its potential as a meandeftifying and validating
new cancer therapies.

We intend to rely on third-party manufacturers tagrduce our clinical and preclinical product candide supplies and we intend to rely on
third-party manufacturers to produce commercial spies of any approved product candidates. Any fadiby a third-party manufacturer to
produce supplies for us may delay or impair our Biyi to initiate or complete our clinical trials, ammercialize our product candidates
continue to sell any products we commercialize.

We do not currently own or operate any manufactufatilities, and we lack sufficient internal stadfproduce clinical and preclinical product
candidate supplies ourselves. As a result, we tolavork with third-party contract manufacturergptoduce sufficient quantities of SL-401 and
SL-701 on a timely basis for future clinical trigtgeclinical testing and commercialization. If ene unable to arrange for such a third-party
manufacturing source, or fail to do so on commdyciaasonable terms or on a timely basis, we n@ybe able to successfully produce,
develop, and market SL-401 or SL-701 or may beyadelan doing so.

We also expect to rely upon third parties to preddiug product required for the clinical trials arminmercialization of our other product
candidates. If we are unable to arrange for thadypmanufacturing sources, or to do so on comrallyaieasonable terms or on a timely basis
we may not be able to complete development of stivbr product candidates or market them.

Reliance on thirgsarty manufacturers entails risks to which we wawdtlbe subject if we manufactured product candglaurselves, includir
reliance on the third party for regulatory comptiarand quality assurance, the possibility of brezdhe manufacturing agreement by the thirc
party because of factors beyond our control (inclgc failure to synthesize and manufacture oudpecbcandidates in accordance with our
product specifications) and the possibility of teration or nonrenewal of the agreement by the thady, based on its own business priorities
at a time that is costly or damaging to us. We halldependent on the ability of these third-pargnuofacturers to produce adequate supplies
drug product to support our clinical developmermtgsams and future commercialization of our prodizstdidates. In addition, the FDA and
other regulatory authorities require that our paidiandidates be manufactured according to cGMPsamnithr foreign standards. Any failure
by our third-party manufacturers to comply with cBMr failure to scale up manufacturing processedyding any failure to deliver sufficient
guantities of product candidates in a timely manoeuld lead to a delay in, or failure to obtaegulatory approval for trial initiation or
marketing of any of our product candidates. In iddj such failure could be the basis for actiorths FDA to withdraw approvals for product
candidates previously granted to us and for otbgulatory action, including recall or seizure, finenposition of operating restrictions, total or
partial suspension of production or injunctions.
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We have limited staffing and rely on our manufagetarto purchase from third-party suppliers the ntenecessary to produce our product
candidates for our clinical studies. There are alsnumber of suppliers for certain capital equipitngnd materials that we use to manufacture
our drugs. Such suppliers may not sell these nadgetd our manufacturers at the times we need treom commercially reasonable terms. We
do not have any control over the process or tinoiinpe acquisition of these materials by our mactuficers. Moreover, we currently do not
have any agreements for the commercial productidhese materials. Although we generally do notitv@gclinical trial unless we believe we
have a sufficient supply of a product candidatedmplete the clinical trial, any significant deliaythe supply of a product candidate or the
material components thereof for a clinical triakluding an ongoing clinical trial, due to the néedeplace a third-party manufacturer could
considerably delay completion of our clinical sesliproduct testing and potential regulatory apgro’our product candidates. If our
manufacturers or we are unable to purchase thetiala after regulatory approval has been obtafoedur product candidates, the
commercial launch of our product candidates woeldiblayed or there would be a shortage in supghciwwould impair our ability to
generate revenues from the sale of our productidatec.

We are optimizing the manufacturing processes fed@&l and SL701 drug substance and drug product so that thesei@ candidates may
produced in adequate quantities of adequate quality at an acceptable cost, to support our placingdal trials and ultimate
commercialization. Our manufacturers may not be &bldequately demonstrate that an optimized jgtathndidate is comparable to a
previously manufactured product candidate whicHacoause significant delays and increased costsit@rograms. Our manufacturers may
not be able to manufacture our product candiddtascast or in quantities or in a timely manneressary to develop and commercialize them.
If we successfully commercialize any of our drugs,may be required to establish or access lacgée commercial manufacturing capabilit

In addition, assuming that our drug developmenglpig increases and matures, we will have a grested for clinical trial and commercial
manufacturing capacity. To meet our projected némdsommercial manufacturing, third parties witham we currently work will need to
increase their scale of production or we will néedecure alternate suppliers.

To the extent we elect to enter into licensing @illaboration agreements to partner our product cadddtes, our dependence on such
relationships may adversely affect our business.

Our commercialization strategy for certain of ouwguct candidates may depend on our ability torante agreements with collaborators to
obtain assistance and funding for the developmeahip@tential commercialization of these productdidates. Supporting diligence activities
conducted by potential collaborators and negofigtire financial and other terms of a collaboraigneement are long and complex processe:
with uncertain results. Even if we are successf@ritering into one or more collaboration agreesjartllaborations may involve greater
uncertainty for us, as we have less control oveaieaspects of our collaborative programs thardwever our proprietary development and
commercialization programs. We may determine tbatinuing a collaboration under the terms provitedot in our best interest, and we may
terminate the collaboration. Our collaborators dalglay or terminate their agreements, and ourymtsdsubject to collaborative arrangements
may never be successfully commercialized.

Further, our future collaborators may develop akéwe products or pursue alternative technologittger on their own or in collaboration with
others, including our competitors, and the priestor focus of our collaborators may shift such the programs receive less attention or
resources than we would like, or they may be teateith altogether. Any such actions by our collalmwsamay adversely affect our business
prospects and ability to earn revenues. In additiencould have disputes with our future collabmrgtsuch as the interpretation of terms ir
agreements. Any such disagreements could leaddgsim the development or commercialization of potential products or could result in
time-consuming and expensive litigation or arbitnat which may not be resolved in our favor.

Even with respect to certain other programs thaintend to commercialize ourselves, we may enter digreements with collaborators to st
in the burden of conducting clinical trials, maraifaing and marketing our product candidates odpcts. In addition, our ability to apply our
proprietary technologies to develop proprietary poomds will depend on our ability to establish amgintain licensing arrangements or other
collaborative arrangements with the holders of gatary rights to such compounds. We may not be @bkstablish such arrangements on
favorable terms or at all, and our future collativemarrangements may not be successful.
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Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property Rights
We could be unsuccessful in obtaining adequate paterotection for one or more of our product candites.

We cannot be certain that patents will be issuegtanted with respect to applications that areenily pending, or that issued or granted
patents will not later be found to be invalid andioenforceable. The patent position of biotechgypland pharmaceutical companies is
generally uncertain because it involves complexllegd factual considerations. The standards applighe United States Patent and
Trademark Office and foreign patent offices in girag patents are not always applied uniformly adictably. For example, there is no
uniform worldwide policy regarding patentable subjmatter or the scope of claims allowable in libtelogy and pharmaceutical patents.
Consequently, patents may not issue from our pgnalitent applications. As such, we do not knowdisgree of future protection that we will
have on our proprietary products and technology.

Our patents and patent applications may not bécgerit to protect our products and product canéiglditom commercial competition. For
example, we cannot obtain a composition of matent for SL-401 due to earlier published prior We have obtained a U.S. patent for the
method of using SL-401 to treat MDS. In additior, laave filed U.S. and foreign patent applicatianglie method of using SL-401 to treat
MDS and AML, although there can be no assuranasstich patents will be issued over the priorfaailure to obtain patents directed to the
use of SL-401 to treat AML (or any other indicadievould enable a competitor to market SL-401 fastsunpatented indication(s), which
could lead to price erosion for sales of SL-401dar patented indications through off-label useéhéligh we have an issued U.S. patent
directed to the composition of matter for our mtiiammunogenic IL-13R2 peptide used in SL-701, which has been alteradaice it more
stimulatory to the immune system and thus desigoéacrease a patient’s immune response t&dS$L-we do not have any foreign composi
of matter patent protection. We do not expect weatvill be able to obtain such protection outsige t).S. in the future. Although we have a
non-exclusive license to issued U.S. patents dicetd methods of use for the EphA2 peptide us&Li701, we do not have any composition
of matter patent protection. We do not expect wetvill be able to obtain such protection in thaufe.

Although we have various patent applications pegéirthe U.S. and abroad that we hope will resulidditional protection for both SL-401
and SL-701, there can be no assurance that amesé tapplications will issue into a patent, or thidttey issue, they will provide meaningful
protection for SL-401 and SL-701. Our inabilitydbtain adequate patent protection for our prodantilates or platform technology could
adversely affect our business.

Issued patents covering one or more of our productslld be found invalid or unenforceable if challged in court.

If we were to initiate legal proceedings againgtied party to enforce a patent covering one ofaducts, the defendant could counterclaim
that our patent is invalid and/or unenforceabledtent litigation in the United States, defendantnterclaims alleging invalidity and/or
unenforceability are commonplace. Grounds for @itglchallenge could be an alleged failure to na®gt of several statutory requirements
example, lack of novelty, obviousness or non-emablg. Grounds for an unenforceability assertioridcbe an allegation that someone
connected with prosecution of the patent withheldwvant information from the U.S. Patent and Traalén®Office, or made a misleading
statement, during prosecution. The outcome follgwagal assertions of invalidity and unenforce@piliuring patent litigation is unpredictak
With respect to the validity question, for example, cannot be certain that there is no invalidagirigr art, of which we and the patent
examiner were unaware during prosecution. If arddat were to prevail on a legal assertion of iiltgl and/or unenforceability, we would
lose at least part, and perhaps all, of the paiertection on one or more of our products or ceréaipects of our platform technology,
StemScreen®. Such a loss of patent protection duaNe a material adverse impact on our business.

Claims that StemScreen®, our products or the satause of our products infringe the patent rights ¢ird parties could result in costly
litigation or could require substantial time and nmey to resolve, even if litigation is avoided.

We cannot guarantee that our products, the usargfroducts, or our platform technology, StemSc&eeato not infringe third party patents.
Third parties might allege that we are infringihgit patent rights or that we have misappropri#ited trade secrets. Such third parties might
resort to litigation against us. The basis of ditimation could be existing patents or patents thsue in the future. Our failure to successfully
defend against any claims that our product cane&dat platform technology infringe the rights afdhparties could also adversely affect our
business. For example, we are aware of a thirg lantopean patent directed to one of the peptided in SL-701 as currently formulated. We
may need to seek a license
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with respect to one or more of these third partgpia in order to commercialize SL-701. No assugaram be given that any such licenses will
be available, or that they will be available on coencially acceptable terms. Failure to obtain aguired licenses could restrict our ability to
commercialize our products in certain territoriesobject us to patent infringement litigation, efhcould result in us having to cease
commercialization of our products and subject usitmey damages in such territories.

It is also possible that we failed to identify @t patents or applications. For example, apptinatfiled before November 29, 2000 and
certain applications filed after that date that wit be filed outside the United States remairfidemtial until patents issue. Patent application:s
in the United States and elsewhere are publishpbajmately 18 months after the earliest filing fanich priority is claimed, with such earli
filing date being commonly referred to as the ptyodate. Therefore, patent applications coveringproducts or platform technology could
have been filed by others without our knowledgedifidnally, pending patent applications which h&esn published can, subject to certain
limitations, be later amended in a manner thatatoaler our platform technologies, our producttheruse of our products.

In order to avoid or settle potential claims widispect to any patent rights of third parties, wg of@ose or be required to seek a license fr
third party and be required to pay license fee®wpalties or both. These licenses may not be availan acceptable terms, or at all. Even if we
or any future strategic partners were able to akddicense, the rights may be nonexclusive, whalid result in our competitors gaining
access to the same intellectual property. Ultinyatee could be prevented from commercializing onenore of our products, or be forced to
cease some aspect of our business operations,afresult of actual or threatened patent infring@nelaims, we are unable to enter into
licenses on acceptable terms. This could harm osinbss significantly.

Defending against claims of patent infringementisappropriation of trade secrets could be costtytame consuming, regardless of the
outcome. Thus, even if we were to ultimately prevaito settle at an early stage, such litigatonld burden us with substantial unanticipated
costs. In addition, litigation or threatened litiga could result in significant demands on theetiamd attention of our management team,
distracting them from the pursuit of other Companginess.

Unfavorable outcomes in intellectual property liigion could limit our research and development adties and/or our ability to
commercialize certain products.

If third parties successfully assert intellectuadgerty rights against us, we might be barred ftming certain aspects of our platform
technology, or barred from developing and comméraigy certain products. Prohibitions against usiegtain technologies, or prohibitions
against commercializing certain products, couldniygosed by a court or by a settlement agreementdset us and a plaintiff. In addition, if\
are unsuccessful in defending against allegatibpsient infringement or misappropriation of traerets, we may be forced to pay subste
damage awards to the plaintiff. There is inevitabieertainty in any litigation, including intelletl property litigation. There can be no
assurance that we would prevail in any intellecphraperty litigation, even if the case againstauaeak or flawed. If litigation leads to an
outcome unfavorable to us, we may be required taiola license from the patent owner, in orderdistiiue our research and development
programs or to market our product(s). It is possthht the necessary license will not be availtbles on commercially acceptable terms, or ai
all. This could limit our research and developmattvities, our ability to commercialize certairogucts, or both.

Most of our competitors are larger than we arelzage substantially greater resources. They aregftire, likely to be able to sustain the costs
of complex patent litigation longer than we coutdaddition, the uncertainties associated witlgdition could have a material adverse effect o
our ability to raise the funds necessary to comtiour clinical trials, continue our internal resgraprograms, in-license needed technology, or
enter into strategic partnerships that would halpting our product candidates to market.

In addition, any future patent litigation, intedece or other administrative proceedings will resuadditional expense and distraction of our
personnel. An adverse outcome in such litigatioproceedings may expose us or any future strapegioers to loss of our proprietary
position, expose us to significant liabilities,require us to seek licenses that may not be avai@bcommercially acceptable terms, if at all.
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Intellectual property litigation may lead to unfavable publicity that harms our reputation and caus¢he market price of our common sto
to decline.

During the course of any patent litigation, theoeld be public announcements of the results ofihgsyrulings on motions, and other interim
proceedings in the litigation. If securities an#dysr investors regard these announcements asvesghe perceived value of our products,
programs, or intellectual property could be dintieid. Accordingly, the market price of our commarcktmay decline.

SL-401 and SL-701 are protected by intellectual prageexclusively licensed from academic institutiari§the licensors terminate the
licenses or fail to maintain or enforce the undenhg patents, our competitive position and marketsé will be harmed.

We are a party to several license agreements wviteh certain aspects of our business depend @mn{saand/or patent applications owned by
other institutions. In particular, we hold exclusiicenses from Scott and White Memorial HospitalScott and White, for SL-401 and three
licenses, including an exclusive license, fromUtméversity of Pittsburgh for SL-701. Our license@gment with Scott and White survives,
unless earlier terminated, until the later of thkpimtion of the last to expire licensed patenthar date on which we owe no further payments t
Scott and White. Our exclusive and our non-exckigigtent license agreements with the Universityittéburgh survive, unless earlier
terminated, until the expiration of the last to iegpicensed patent, and our non-exclusive licangdinical trial data and information survives
twenty years unless terminated earlier. We ardyliteenter into additional license agreementsaas @f the development of our business in the
future. Our licensors may not successfully prosecettain patent applications under which we aenked and on which our business depe
Even if patents issue from these applicationsJioansors may fail to maintain these patents, negidk not to pursue litigation against third
party infringers, may fail to prove infringement,may fail to defend against counterclaims of pabevalidity or unenforceability. In addition,
in spite of our best efforts, our licensors migbmclude that we have materially breached our lieamgeements and might therefore terminate
the license agreements, thereby removing our wahdibbtain regulatory approval and to market patslicovered by these license agreements
Our licensors may also terminate the license ageegsrif we fail to meet specified milestones. Hgh in-licenses are terminated, or if the
underlying patents fail to provide the intended keaexclusivity, competitors would have the freedmnseek regulatory approval of, and to
market, products identical to ours. This could haveaterial adverse effect on our competitive kessrposition and our business prospects.

We could be unsuccessful in obtaining patent prdten on one or more components of our platform teaiogy.

We believe that an important factor in our compegiposition relative to other companies in thédfief targeted oncology therapeutics is our
proprietary innovative platform technology, Stemet®. This platform is useful for identifying newtpntial product candidates. We have
pending applications for StemScreen®, however gtieeno guarantee that any of such pending papgiications, in the United States or
elsewhere, will result in issued patents, and, élvpatents eventually issue, there is no certaingt the claims in the eventual patents will h
adequate scope to preserve our competitive posifioind parties might invent alternative technotgthat would substitute for our platform
technology while being outside the scope of thematcovering our platform technology. By succdgsfiesigning around our patented
technology third parties could substantially weakancompetitive position in oncology research dadelopment.

Confidentiality agreements with employees and thpdrties may not prevent unauthorized disclosuretiafde secrets and other proprietary
information.

In addition to patents, we rely on trade secretshitical know-how, and proprietary information ceming our business strategy in order to
protect our competitive position in the field ofamfogy. In the course of our research and developetivities and our business activities, we
often rely on confidentiality agreements to protaet proprietary information. Such confidentialidgreements are used, for example, when w
talk to vendors of laboratory or clinical developrhservices or potential strategic partners. Intaad each of our employees is required to
sign a confidentiality agreement upon joining owngany. We take steps to protect our proprietaigrimation, and our confidentiality
agreements are carefully drafted to protect ouprietary interests. Nevertheless, there can beuacagitee that an employee or an outside |
will not make an unauthorized disclosure of oumpigtary confidential information. This might happi@tentionally or inadvertently. It is
possible that a competitor will make use of sudbrimation, and that our competitive position wid bompromised, in spite of any legal action
we might take against persons making such unauagbdisclosures.
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Trade secrets are difficult to protect. Althoughwee reasonable efforts to protect our trade seavat employees, consultants, contractors, o
outside scientific collaborators might intentiogadlr inadvertently disclose our trade secret infation to competitors. Enforcing a claim that a
third party illegally obtained and is using anyooir trade secrets is expensive and time consuraimdjthe outcome is unpredictable. In
addition, courts outside the United States sometiane less willing than U.S. courts to protecteradcrets. Moreover, our competitors may
independently develop equivalent knowledge, metlaodisknow-how.

Our research and development strategic partnershanag rights to publish data and other informatmwhich we have rights. In addition, we
sometimes engage individuals or entities to conteggarch relevant to our business. The abilithe$e individuals or entities to publish or
otherwise publicly disclose data and other infoioragenerated during the course of their researshilbject to certain contractual limitations.
These contractual provisions may be insufficienhadequate to protect our confidential informatifrwe do not apply for patent protection
prior to such publication, or if we cannot othemvimaintain the confidentiality of our proprietaechnology and other confidential informati
then our ability to obtain patent protection optotect our trade secret information may be jeogart

Intellectual property rights do not necessarily agdgs all potential threats to our competitive advage.

The degree of future protection afforded by ouellettual property rights is uncertain becausdlattial property rights have limitations, and
may not adequately protect our business, or parsiib maintain our competitive advantage. The ¥alhgy examples are illustrative:

e Others may be able to make compounds that areathe as or similar to our product candidates butarenot covered by the
claims of the patents that we own or have excligiMeensed.

We or our licensors or any future strategic pagmeight not have been the first to make the inessticovered by the issued
patent or pending patent application that we owhawe exclusively licensed.

*  We or our licensors or any future strategic pagmeight not have been the first to file patent eggpions covering certain of our
inventions.

»  Others may independently develop similar or altéweaechnologies or duplicate any of our techn@sgvithout infringing our
intellectual property rights.

» ltis possible that our pending patent applicatiafisnot lead to issued patents.

» Issued patents that we own or have exclusivelynfied may not provide us with any competitive adages, or may be held
invalid or unenforceable, as a result of legal lemgjes by our competitors.

*  Our competitors might conduct research and devedopmctivities in countries where we do not havempiarights and then use
the information learned from such activities to elep competitive products for sale in our major aoencial markets.

*  We may not develop additional proprietary techn@eghat are patentable.

The patents of others may have an adverse effeatiohusiness.
Changes in U.S. patent law could diminish the valakpatents in general, thereby impairing our aliilito protect our products.

As is the case with other biopharmaceutical comggraur success is heavily dependent on intelleptogerty, particularly patents. Obtaining
and enforcing patents in the biopharma industrglver both technological complexity and legal comile Therefore, obtaining and enforci
biopharma patents is costly, time-consuming andritily uncertain. In addition, Congress has papaésht reform legislation which provides
new limitations on attaining, maintaining and ewfog intellectual property. Further, the Suprenmai€ has ruled on several patent cases in
recent years, either narrowing the scope of patection available in certain circumstances oakesing the rights of patent owners in
certain
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situations. In addition to increasing uncertainfthwegard to our ability to obtain patents in theure, this combination of events has created
uncertainty with respect to the value of patentgecobtained. Depending on decisions by the U.8g&ss, the federal courts, and the U.S.
Patent and Trademark Office, the laws and reguilatgoverning patents could change in unpredictables that would weaken our ability to
obtain new patents or to enforce our existing gatand patents that we might obtain in the future.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our executive officers, directors and principal stcholders maintain the ability to exert substantigifluence over all matters submitted to
stockholders for approva

Our executive officers, directors and stockholdmmseficially own shares representing approximad@8s of our outstanding capital stock. A
result, if these stockholders were to choose tdaagther, they would be able to exert substamfhlence over all matters submitted to our
stockholders for approval, as well as our managéiaoh affairs. For example, these persons, if dh®pose to act together, would exert
substantial influence over the election of direstand approval of any merger, consolidation or shé#l or substantially all of our assets. This
concentration of voting power could delay or prevemacquisition of our Company on terms that otfteckholders may desire.

Provisions in our corporate charter documents andder Delaware law could make an acquisition of wghich may be beneficial to oL
stockholders, more difficult and may prevent attetajpy our stockholders to replace or remove our et management

Provisions in our corporate charter and our bylevay discourage, delay or prevent a merger, acouigit other change in control of us that
stockholders may consider favorable, includinggeations in which they might otherwise receiveengum for their shares. These provisions
could also limit the price that investors mightiling to pay in the future for shares of our commstock, thereby depressing the market ¢
of our common stock. Among other things, these igioms:

establish a classified board of directors suchmlbagll members of the board are elected at one; ti

» allow the authorized number of our directors tachanged only by resolution of our board of diregtor

limit the manner in which stockholders can remowedors from the board;

establish advance notice requirements for stocldngdcoposals that can be acted on at stockholdetimgs and nominations to
our board of directors;

*  require that stockholder actions must be effectedduly called stockholder meeting and prohibitaaxs by our stockholders by
written consent;

» limit who may call stockholder meetings;

e authorize our board of directors to issue prefestedk without stockholder approval, which couldused to institute a “poison
pill” that would work to dilute the stock ownership a potential hostile acquirer, effectively prating acquisitions that have not
been approved by our board of directors; and

e require the approval of the holders of at least @6%e votes that all our stockholders would bttlex to cast to amend or
repeal certain provisions of our charter or bylaws.

Moreover, because we are incorporated in Delawaeegre governed by the provisions of Section 20B@Delaware General Corporation
Law, which prohibits a person who owns in exces$586 of our outstanding voting stock from mergimgombining with us for a period of
three years after the date of the transaction iiclwtihe person acquired in excess of 15% of oustanting voting stock, unless the merger or
combination is approved in a prescribed manner. gnoyision in our corporate charter or our bylaw®elaware law that has the effect of
delaying or deterring a change in control couldtlittne opportunity for our stockholders to receavpremium for their shares of our common
stock, and could also affect the price that somestors are willing to pay for our common stock.
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We do not know whether a market will develop forrmommon stock or what the market price of our cormmstock will be and as a result it
may be difficult for you to sell your shares of oeommon stock.

Prior to the completion of our initial public offethere was no public market for our common stagkhough our common stock now trades
the NASDAQ Capital Market, an active trading marketour shares may not be sustained. It may fiiewt for you to sell your shares
without depressing the market price for the shares all. As a result of these and other factpos, may not be able to sell your shares of our
common stock at or above the initial public offgriprice or at all. Further, an inactive market raégo impair our ability to raise capital by
selling shares of our common stock and may impairadility to enter into strategic partnershipsoguire companies or products by using ou
shares of common stock as consideration.

We will incur increased costs as a result of opéngtas a public company, and our management will tegjuired to devote substantial time
new compliance initiatives.

As a public company, we will incur significant légaccounting and other expenses that we did rotrias a private company. We will be
subject to the reporting and other requirementi®@fSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendethedExchange Act, the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, or the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, and thedbBdank Wall Street Reform and Protection Act, &l as rules subsequently adopted by
the SEC and the NASDAQ Stock Market, or NASDAQ. 3deules and regulations require, among other $hitiigt we file annual, quarterly
and current reports with respect to our businedgfiaancial condition and establish and maintafeafve disclosure and financial controls anc
corporate governance practices. We expect thess amd regulations to substantially increase @allend financial compliance costs and to
make some activities more tinoensuming and costly. Our management and otheopeel will need to devote a substantial amounineé to
these compliance initiatives.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal control over financial reporting, we may not kable to accurately report our financie
results or prevent fraud. As a result, stockholdesuld lose confidence in our financial and othewuplic reporting, which would harm our
business and the trading price of our common stock.

Effective internal controls over financial repogiare necessary for us to provide reliable findnejports and, together with adequate
disclosure controls and procedures, are designpcet@nt fraud. Any failure to implement requiregnor improved controls, or difficulties
encountered in their implementation could cause digil to meet our reporting obligations. In addlit, any testing by us conducted in
connection with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxlety &r the subsequent testing by our independegdgtered public accounting firm, may
reveal deficiencies in our internal controls oviaahcial reporting that are deemed to be materéggknesses or that may require prospective ¢
retroactive changes to our financial statementdemtify other areas for further attention or impement. Inferior internal controls could also
cause investors to lose confidence in our repditeahcial information, which could have a negatéftect on the trading price of our common
stock.

We will be required to disclose changes made inimternal controls and procedures on a quarterfystend our management will be required
to assess the effectiveness of these controls dpndawever, for as long as we are an “emergingngh company” under the JOBS Act, our
independent registered public accounting firm wit be required to attest to the effectivenesauofirernal controls over financial reporting
pursuant to Section 404. We could be an emergiogthrcompany for up to five years. An independeseasment of the effectiveness of our
internal controls could detect problems that ounaggement’s assessment might not. Undetected matedknesses in our internal controls
could lead to financial statement restatementsragdire us to incur the expense of remediation.

If our stock price is volatile, our stockholders glal incur substantial losses
Our stock price is likely to be volatile. The staularket in general and the market for biopharmacalutompanies in particular have
experienced extreme volatility that has often bemrelated to the operating performance of partictdenpanies. As a result of this volatility,

you may not be able to sell your common stockt dlla The market price for our common stock mayrifkienced by many factors, includir
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*  our ability to commercialize our product candidateapproved,;

« results from or delays of clinical trials of ouopiuct candidates, as well as results of regulatriews relating to the approval
our product candidates;

e our decision to initiate a clinical trial, not taitiate a clinical trial or to terminate an exigginlinical trial;
» the results of our efforts to discover, develomua@ or in-license additional product candidateproducts;

* new products, product candidates or new uses fstimgy products or technologies introduced or ameed by our competitors
and the timing of these introductions or announags)e

» our dependence on third parties, including CRQsicell trial sponsors and clinical investigators;

e regulatory or legal developments in the United &dand other countries;

« developments or disputes concerning patent apjaitatissued patents or other proprietary rights;

« the recruitment or departure of key scientific @magement personnel;

» the level of expenses related to any of our prodantiidates or clinical development programs;

» actual or anticipated changes in estimates as#mdial results, development timelines or recomragads by securities analys
» variations in our financial results or those of gamies that are perceived to be similar to us;

» sales of common stock by us or our stockholdethérfuture, as well as the overall trading volurhew common stock;

e changes in the structure of healthcare paymenessst

« market conditions in the pharmaceutical and biatetdgy sectors;

e general economic, industry and market conditiors@her factors that may be unrelated to our opeyaterformance or the
operating performance of our competitors, includihgnges in market valuations of similar comparaest

» the other factors described in this “Risk Fact@attion.
We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends am capital stock in the foreseeable future.
We have never declared or paid cash dividends ooanital stock. We currently intend to retainadlbour future earnings, if any, to finance
growth and development of our business, and weotlamticipate paying any cash dividends on ourtaapiock in the foreseeable future. In
addition, the terms of any future debt agreemeratg preclude us from paying dividends. As a resalpital appreciation, if any, of our

common stock will be your sole source of gain fa toreseeable future.

A significant portion of our total outstanding shas are restricted from immediate resale but maysb#l into the market in the near future
which could cause the market price of our commongh to drop significantly, even if our businessdsing well.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our camrstock in the public market could occur at ameti These sales, or the perception in the
market that the holders of a large number of shatesd to sell shares, could reduce the marketof
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our common stock. We have outstanding 3,476,50deshad common stock based on the number of shatstaading as of December 31,
2012. Such shares are currently restricted asudt i@ securities laws and lock-up agreements.

If securities or industry analysts do not publiskesearch or publish inaccurate or unfavorable resehrabout our business, our stock pris
and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our common stock will depé@mgart on the research and reports that secaigtiéndustry analysts publish about us or
our business. Securities and industry analystsotleurrently, and may never, publish research arGmmpany. If no or too few securities or
industry analysts commence coverage of our Compaeytrading price for our stock would likely begag¢ively impacted. In the event
securities or industry analysts initiate coverafyene or more of the analysts who cover us dowtigraur stock or publish inaccurate or
unfavorable research about our business, our gidck would likely decline. If one or more of thesmgalysts cease coverage of our Compa
fail to publish reports on us regularly, demanddor stock could decrease, which might cause aaekgtrice and trading volume to decline.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our corporate and executive office is located invNeork, New York. Our New York facility consists tfased space at 750 Lexington Avel
New York, New York 10022

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
We are not a party to, and our property is notstiigect of, any material pending legal proceedings.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
Part Il
Item 5. Market for the Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchased &quity Securities
Market Information
Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Capitalrkés and trades under the symbol “STML” and hasljaéblicly traded since
January 31, 2013. Prior to that time, there waputdic market for our common stock. As a result,have not set forth quarterly information
with respect to the high and low prices for our coon stock for the two most recent fiscal years.

Holders

The number of record holders of our common stoosfddarch 27, 2013 was 48. This number does mude beneficial owners whose she
are held by nominees in street name.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock and do not anticipate payingcash dividends in the foreseeable
future. Any future determination to pay dividendi be at the discretion of our board of directors
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Cpensation Plans

The following table contains information about eguity compensation plans as of December 31, 2012.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of
securities
remaining
available for
Number of future issuance
securities to be under equity
issued upon Weighted-average compensation
exercise of exercise price of plans (excluding
outstanding options outstanding securities reflected
Plan Category and restricted stock options in column (a))
_ _ _ @) (b) ©
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders
Options 1,819,83 $ 2.7¢€ 372,42:
Restricted stoc 34,507 N/A —
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders — — —
Total 1,854,34 — 372,42.

Common Stock Performance Graph
Not applicable
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securit

Set forth below is information regarding securisesd by us during 2010, 2011 and 2012 that weteegistered under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Act. Also dealuis the consideration, if any, received by ugte securities and information relating to
the section of the Securities Act, or rule of tlee@ities and Exchange Commission, under which @xiemfrom registration was claimed.

On March 16, 2010, the Company entered into a Ratehase Agreement with several investment furids“@equot Funds”) that held the
Company’s Series A preferred stock (the “PrefeBldres”) and NB Athyrium LLC. In exchange for 438®utstanding shares of the
Preferred Shares, the Company paid $0.75 milliotesh, issued 411,571 shares of its common stdakdat $1.2 million and issued a
$1.25 million senior unsecured convertible notpresented by the 2.45% Convertible Note. See “Ntt¢he Financial Statements” for
information regarding terms of conversion for thé52 Convertible Note.

On October 1, 2012, the Company agreed to isstieeteepresentative of the underwriters in ourahpiublic offering, warrants to purchase up
to 99,529 shares of the Company’s common stocle Wdrrants are exercisable for cash or on a cashbesis at a price per share equal to
$15.00.

No underwriters were involved in the foregoing salé securities. The securities were issued tostors in reliance upon the exemption fr

the registration requirements of the Securities Astset forth in Section 4(2) under the Securfiets including in some cases, Regulation D
promulgated thereunder, relative to transactionarbissuer not involving any public offering, t@tbxtent an exemption from such registratior
was required. All purchasers of securities desdrétgove represented to us in connection with fhaichase that they were accredited inves
and were acquiring the shares for their own acctarrinvestment purposes only and not with a viewor for sale in connection with, any
distribution thereof. The
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purchasers received disclosures that the secuniiésot been registered under the Securities Adtlzat any resale must be made pursuant t
a registration statement or an available exemgtmm such registration.

Purchase of Equity Securitie
We have not purchase any of our registered eqaiyr#ties during the period covered by this AnrfRaport on Form 10-K.
Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

On January 31, 2013 we completed our IPO, selliB§ 3644 shares at an offering price of $10.00spare. On January 29, 2013, the
underwriters exercised in full their over-allotmemption to purchase an additional 497,647 sharas affering price of $10.00 per share.
Aggregate gross proceeds from the IPO, includiegettercise of the over-allotment option, were $38illon and net proceeds received after
underwriting fees and offering expenses were apprately $32.5 million. Additionally, upon the clogj of the IPO, our convertible debt, plus
accrued interest thereon, was converted into 186sf&res of common stock. The offering commencedanouary 28, 2013 and did not
terminate until the sale of all of the shares @ffer None of the underwriting discounts and comimissor other offering expenses were
incurred or paid to directors or officers of ourglweir associates or to persons owning 10 pemmemore of our common stock or to any
affiliates of ours.

As of March 15, 2013, we have used approximately $dllion of the net proceeds primarily to funetevelopment of SL-401 and SL-
701, to advance and expand the research and devehbf additional product candidates and for wagldapital, capital expenditures and
other general corporate purposes. Following tieriogy, certain bonuses were paid to our officers ather employees in the amount of
$976,323. There has been no material change iplaoned use of the balance of the net proceedsthe offering as described in our final
prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule Bpdfder the Securities Act.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

You should read the following selected financiglad@gether with our financial statements and éiated notes appearing at the end of this
Form 10-K and the “Management’s Discussion and ysialof Financial Condition and Results of Operaiosection of this Form 10-K. We
have derived the statements of operations datdhéoyears ended December 31, 2009, 2010, 2011Gk®] and the balance sheet data as of
December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 from our auditesh€ial statement included in this Form 10-K. Wedderived the statements of
operations data for the years ended December 38, &@d the balance sheet data as of December 38 a2@ 2009 from our financial
statements not included in this Form 10-K. Ourdristl results for any prior period are not necebsandicative of results to be expected in
any future period.

Period from
August 8,
2003
(inception) to
Year Ended December 31 December 31
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2012
(unaudited)

Statement of operations data
Revenue $ — $ — 3 — $ — $ — $ —
Operating expense

Research and developme $ 1,016,70. $ 1,054,444 $ 1,32950° $ 1,629,020 $ 3,376,96. $ 11,445,66

General and administrative 1,179,98. 1,026,67 930,33: 1,088,02 3,090,61. 9,484,79!
Total operating expenses 2,196,68 2,081,12. 2,259,84i 2,717,05 6,467,57. 20,930,46
Loss from operation (2,196,68) (2,081,12) (2,259,84) (2,717,05)  (6,467,57)  (20,930,46)
Other income — 102,25 484,90! 46,67 301,68 935,51t
Other expens — — — (9,670 (35) (9,70
Interest expens — — (69,497 (98,647) (118,76%) (296,95()
Interest income 376,57¢ 201,08 43,04! 24,06¢ 9,907 960,58:
Net loss $ (1,820,10) $ (1,777,77) $ (1,801,38) $ (2,754,62) $ (6,274,78) $ (19,341,01)
Less: accretion of preferred stc

dividends (1,021,20)  (1,100,10) (239,72() — — (2,591,16)
Add: discount on redemption of

preferred stocl — — 12,171,76 — — 12,171,76
Net (loss) / income attributable

common stockholdel $ (2,841,30) $ (2,877,88) $ 10,130,66 $ (2,754,62) $ (6,274,78) $ (9,760,41)
Net (loss) / income attributable

common stockholders per

common share

Basic $ (2.00) $ (1.02) $ 3.07 $ (0.80) $ (1.82)
Diluted $ (100 ¢ (1.02) $ 281 % 0.80 $ (1.82)

Weighted average number of
common share:
Basic 2,824,64 2,824,64 3,298,79. 3,441,99! 3,441,99!
Diluted 2,824,64 2,824,64 3,607,031 3,441,99! 3,441,99
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As of December 31
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
(unaudited)

Balance sheet data
Cash and cash equivalel 2,196,88. $ 9,236,39! $ 7,226,36
Total asset 10,856,47 $ 9,329,34 $ 7,502,91.

$ 5,829,881 $ 2,025,33
$
Long-term liabilities $ — $ — $ 1,017,038
$
$

6,453,090 $ 5,029,61.

1,665,341 $ 2,037,29i

(Deficit)/earnings accumulated during
development stac

Total stockholder (deficit)/equity

(894,47) $ (7,169,25)
3,205,341 $ (2,508,42)

(6,732,45) $ (8,510,22) $ 1,860,15:
(3,355,50) $ (6,162,21) $ 5,851,56

@ & @ H B

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis contains mdvlooking statements about our plans and expentabf what may happen in the future.
Forwardiooking statements are based on a number of asmuma@tnd estimates that are inherently subjeagtuficant risks and uncertaintie
and our results could differ materially from theuks anticipated by our forward-looking statemexrgs result of many known or unknown
factors, including, but not limited to, those fastdiscussed in “ltem 1A. Risk Factors.” See #h&0"Special Cautionary Notice Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements” set forth at the beigigrof this report.

You should read the following discussion and analysconjunction with “ltem 6. Selected Finandidta,” “Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data,” and our financial statemeatgrining on page F-1 of this report.

Overview

We are a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical companyged on discovering, acquiring, developing androercializing proprietary therapeutics
that target both cancer stem cells, or CSCs, amdrtibulk. We believe that we are developing a céity advanced pipeline of anti-CSC
therapeutics and that we hold a broad portfoli€8C-focused intellectual property, establishingsis: leader in the CSC field. We are
currently developing two clinical-stage product diaates, SL-401 and SL-701.

We are a development stage company. We have desobsthntially all of our resources to developing roduct candidates and our platform
technology, building our intellectual property golio, business planning, raising capital, and jtitng general and administrative support for
these operations. We have not generated any resamak to date, have funded our operations prigndgmibugh private sales of common stock
and convertible preferred stock and issuancesmiertible debt to our investors. From inceptiorotigh December 31, 2012, we have rece
net proceeds of $3.8 million from the sale of comrstock, $12.5 million from the sale of convertipleferred stock and $0.9 million from the
issuance of convertible debt. Upon the completibour initial public offering on January 31, 201% received net proceeds of $32.5 million,
net of fees and expenses.

We have never been profitable and, from inceptiwaugh December 31, 2012, our net losses from tipesahave been $19.3 million. Our net
loss from operations was $6.2 million for the yeaded December 31, 2012, $2.8 million for the ymted December 31, 2011, and
$1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2@¥8.expect to incur significant expenses
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and increasing operating losses for the foresedahlee. We expect our expenses to increase inemiiom with our ongoing activities,
particularly as we advance our product candiddterigh preclinical activities and clinical triats seek regulatory approval and, if approved,
commercialize such product candidates. Furthermgoen the closing of the IPO, we recorded non-eaxgense associated with the effect of
the beneficial conversion charge of approximaté@yi$nillion that will be recorded upon the conversof our convertible notes due 2017 and
the recording of approximately $1.4 million of stdzased compensation expense associated with 3¥78ptibns with a weighted average
exercise price of $2.38 that fully vest upon thestanmation of our initial public offering. In adidih, we expect to record approximately
$1.5 million of compensation expense relating tdaie bonuses and salary increases payable updimeged employment and the occurrence
of a specified financing, upon the consummationwofinitial public offering. Further, we expectitecur additional costs associated with
operating as a public company. Accordingly, we wédkd additional financing to support our contiguaperations. We will seek to fund our
operations through public or private equity or daincings or other sources. Adequate additiomalifting may not be available to us on
acceptable terms, or at all. Our failure to ragpital as and when needed would have a negativadhgnm our financial condition and our
ability to pursue our business strategy. We witdhéo generate significant revenues to achievetpbility, and we may never do so.

Financial Operations Overview
Revenue

We have not generated any revenue to date. Iruthesf we may generate revenue from product siesldition, to the extent we enter into
licensing or collaboration arrangements, we mayehadditional sources of revenue. We expect thatewgnue we generate will fluctuate fr
quarter to quarter as a result of the amount anithgj of payments that we may recognize upon the afabur products, to the extent that any
products are successfully commercialized, and theuat and timing of fees, reimbursements, milesamother payments received under
future licensing or collaboration arrangementsvéffail to complete the development of our prodiastdidates in a timely manner or obtain
regulatory approval for them, our ability to gerierfuture revenue, and our results of operatiomsfimancial position, would be materially
adversely affected.

Research and Development Expent

The following table shows our research and devetyraxpenses for the years ended December 31,a20llR011 and 2012:

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
Clinical (SL-401 and S-701) $ 1,226,73 $ 1,566,14 $ 3,292,72:
Preclinical 102,77 62,88t 84,23¢
Total $ 1,329,50¢ $ 1,629,020 $ 3,376,96;

Research and development expenses consist ofasssisiated with the development of our product ickatels and our platform technology,
which include:

»  clinical trial costs;
« employee-related expenses, including salaries fitgneavel and stock-based compensation expemsbconsultant costs;

« external research and development expenses incumdet arrangements with third parties, such agr&ctresearch
organizations, or CROs, contract manufacturing wimgdions, or CMOs, academic institutions, and otasts;

» license fees and milestone payments related tcémsed products and technology; and
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» facilities, depreciation and other allocated expsnsvhich include direct and allocated expensessiurand maintenance of
facilities, depreciation of leasehold improvemeartsl equipment and supplies.

We expense research and development costs to igpsras incurred. We account for nonrefundable mclwg@ayments for goods and services
that will be used in future research and develograetivities as expenses when the services haveeéormed or when the goods have beet
received, rather than when the payments are made.

We use our employee and infrastructure resouraesamultiple research and development projectsdiveot allocate employee-related
expenses or depreciation to any particular projeee. components of our research and developmetd aces described in more detail in
“Results of Operations”.

We anticipate that our research and developmergresgs will increase significantly in future periaiswe seek to complete development of
our most advanced product candidates, SL-401 ard03l.and continue to develop our other productickies and our platform technology.
The clinical development and regulatory stratefpe®ur lead product candidates are as follows:

 SL-401. We plan to complete a pivotal Phase 2b single-aiahdf SL-401 in patients with BPDCN. We alsomplta advance
SL-401 into a registration-directed randomized BHAsclinical trial to treat adult AML patients ashird-line treatment. We plan
to use approximately $9 million for these programs.

e SL-701. We plan to advance SL-701 into a Phase 2b clitizlto treat pediatric patients with malignanaimstem and non-
brainstem glioma. We also plan to initiate a Ptselinical trial of SL-701 in adult second-lineaflastoma multiforme, or
GBM. We plan to use approximately $1 million, tdgatwith funding we are seeking to obtain from KNetional Cancer Institute,
or NClI, for the pediatric trial, for these programs

The successful development of our product candsdathighly uncertain. As of this time, other trendiscussed above, we cannot reasonabl
estimate or know the nature, timing and estimatedscof the efforts that will be necessary to catgtievelopment of our product candidates
or the period, if any, in which material net casfiaws from our product candidates may commencés iBhdue to the numerous risks and
uncertainties associated with developing drugsuding the uncertainty of:

«  the scope, rate of progress and costs of our pthrasewell as any additional, clinical trials arides research and development
activities;

. future clinical trial results;

the potential benefits of our product candidatesr @ther therapies;

» our ability to market and commercialize, eitheroam own or with strategic partners, and achieveketaaicceptance for any of
product candidates that we are developing or magldp in the future;

» the costs, timing and outcome of regulatory appswand

» the costs of preparing, filing, prosecuting, defagdand enforcing patent claims and other intellacproperty rights.
A change in the outcome of any of these or sinvitarables with respect to the development of a pcbdandidate could mean a significant
change in the costs and timing associated witlléwelopment of that product candidate. For exanifllee FDA or other regulatory authority
were to require us to conduct clinical trials beydmose which we currently anticipate will be regdifor the completion of clinical
development of a product candidate or if we expegesignificant delays in enrollment in any clinitéls, we could be required to expend
significant additional financial resources and tiomethe completion of clinical development.
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General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses consist piliynafrsalaries and related costs for personneluifing stock-based compensation expense,
operations, finance, investor relations, and bissimkevelopment functions. Other general and adtratiige expenses include facility costs,
insurance expenses and professional fees for legadulting and accounting services.

We anticipate that our general and administratigeases will increase in future periods to suppameases in our research and development
activities and as a result of increased payrofppaeded infrastructure, increased legal, compliaacepunting and investor and public relations
expenses associated with being a public compangngrather factors.

Interest Income
Interest income consists of interest earned orcash and cash equivalents.
Interest Expenst

Interest expense consists primarily of cash andaash interest costs related to our outstanding ¢tieladdition, we capitalize costs incurred in
connection with the issuance of debt. We amortiese costs over the life of our debt agreementge®st expense in our statement of
operations.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

To understand our financial statements, it is irntgarto understand our critical accounting polices estimates. We prepare our financial
statements in accordance with GAAP. The preparatidimancial statements also requires us to makienates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, costseaqinses and related disclosures. We base ouragssion historical experience and on various
other assumptions that we believe to be reasonalaler the circumstances. Actual results could dgfgnificantly from the estimates made by
our management. To the extent that there are diffars between our estimates and actual resultftowe financial statement presentation,
financial condition, results of operations and clelvs will be affected. We believe that the acciingp policies discussed below are critical to
understanding our historical and future performaasahese policies relate to the more signifieaeas involving managemesjudgments ar
estimates.

Our significant accounting policies are descriliedhiore detail in the notes to our financial statets@ppearing at the end of this Form 10-K.
However, we believe that the following accountiradigies are the most critical to aid you in fullpderstanding and evaluating our financial
condition and results of operations.

Accrued Research and Development Expen

As part of the process of preparing our finandiatesnents, we are required to estimate our acaupenses. This process involves reviewing
guotations and contracts, identifying services Haate been performed on our behalf and estimatiadetvel of service performed and the
associated cost incurred for the service when we hat yet been invoiced or otherwise notifiedref sictual cost. The majority of our service
providers invoice us monthly in arrears for sersiperformed or when contractual milestones are Yietmake estimates of our accrued
expenses as of each balance sheet date in oucifihatatements based on facts and circumstanaesrkto us at that time. We periodically
confirm the accuracy of our estimates with the iserproviders and make adjustments if necessamy significant estimates in our accrued
research and development expenses include feesop@Os and CMOs, consultants and other thirdygaganizations in connection with
research and development activities and adminiggractivities for which we have not yet been iroeal.

We base our expenses related to CROs and CMOsrastinates of the services received and effopperesed pursuant to quotes and
contracts with CROs and CMOs that conduct reseamdhdevelopment on our behalf. The financial teofithese agreements are subject to
negotiation, vary from contract to contract and mesult in uneven payment flows. There may be imsta in which payments made to our
vendors will exceed the level of services provided result in a prepayment of the research andal@went expense. In accruing service fees
we estimate the time period over which serviceshvélperformed and the level of effort to be exphih each period. If the actual timing of
the performance of
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services or the level of effort varies from ourirestte, we may adjust the accrual or prepaid acoghgi There have been no significant
adjustments to date. Although we do not expecestimates to be materially different from amourmttsially incurred, our understanding of 1
status and timing of services performed relativihactual status and timing of services performag vary and could result in us reporting
amounts that are too high or too low in any paféicperiod.

Income Taxes

We use the liability method of accounting for inamtaxes as set forth in the authoritative guiddocencome taxes. Under this method, we
recognize deferred tax liabilities and assetsHerdxpected future tax consequences of temporfeyatices between the respective carrying
amounts and tax bases of our assets and liahilities

We continue to assess the realizability of our defktax assets, which primarily consist of netrafieg loss, or NOL, carry-forwards. In
assessing the realizability of these deferred $aets, management considers whether it is mory liken not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will be realized. We estabtidhation allowances when necessary to reduce réelféax assets to the amounts expected to
be realized. The factors used to assess the ldailof realization include our latest forecastuifife taxable income and available tax plannin
strategies that could be implemented to realizentialeferred tax assets. As of December 31, 20d2611, our deferred tax assets had full
valuation allowances on them as we did not havicgerit positive evidence to recognize such defibtex assets at that time.

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendedCitde”), provides for a limitation of the annualeusf net operating losses and other tax
attributes (such as research and development ¢abit carryforwards) following certain ownership oges (as defined by the Code) that could
limit the Company’s ability to utilize these caryivards. At this time, the Company has not completstudy to assess whether an ownershiy
change under section 382 of the Code has occuradhether there have been multiple ownership césuisgnce the Comparsyformation, du

to the costs and complexities associated with sustiudy. The Company may have experienced varisaemship changes, as defined by the
Code, as a result of past financing transactiossoAdingly, the Company’s ability to utilize theoeémentioned carryforwards may be limited.
Additionally, U.S. tax laws limit the time duringhich these carryforwards may be applied againstéuiaxes. Therefore, the Company may
not be able to take full advantage of these carwdiods for federal or state income tax purposes.

If any of our products are approved for commers#éé and we start to realize profitability, we nt@germine that there is sufficient positive
evidence to support a reversal of, or decreagéénvaluation allowance. If we were to reverseoabome part of our valuation allowance, our
financial statements in the period of reversal wdiklely reflect an increase in assets on our lidaheet and a corresponding tax benefit ti
statement of operations in the amount of the reders

As of December 31, 2012, we had U.S. federal netaimg loss carryforwards of $14.7 million andeash and development credits of
$0.5 million which expire in 2023 through 2032.

We adopted Accounting Standards Codification (A%@)-10,Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — aefptetation of FASB
Statement No. 10%n January 1, 2007. We analyzed our tax positiall jurisdictions where we are required to file income tax return and
concluded that we do not have any material unreizedrtax benefits. We filed a U.S. income tax netas well as returns for any state
jurisdiction in which we are authorized to condiasiness. Our policy is to recognize interest agmhjties accrued on any unrecognized
benefit within the provision for income taxes oe #tatement of operations. We have no interestoalfies accrued for any unrecognized tax
benefits for any periods presented.

Our annual provision for income taxes and the ddteation of the resulting deferred tax assets afillities involve a significant amount of
management judgment. Managemsjtidgments, assumptions and estimates relatitretourrent provision for income taxes take intocamt
current tax laws, our interpretation of current @xs and possible outcomes of current and futuditsi.conducted by foreign and domestic tax
authorities. We operate within federal, state amernational taxing jurisdictions and are subjecauidit in these jurisdictions. These audits car
involve complex issues that may require an extemeeibd of time to resolve.

Stock-Based Compensation

In accordance with ASC 718tock Compensatignve account for stock options issued to employsasy a fair-value-based method, under
which we measure the cost of employee servicesvetén exchange for an award of equity
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instruments, including stock options, based orgtia@t-date fair value of the award. The resultiogtds recognized for the awards expected tc
vest over the period during which an employee dgsiired to provide service in exchange for the awasdally the vesting period.

In accordance with ASC 505-5Bquity-Based Payments to Non-Employe&e account for stock options issued to non-eng#syon a fair-
value-based method as well; however, the fair vafuiibe options granted to non-employees is renredseach reporting period until the
service is complete, and the resulting increasieorease in value, if any, is recognized as incontess during the period the related services
are rendered.

The fair value of the stock options issued to empgés and non-employees was estimated at eachdat@ntising the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. One of the inputs to this modehis &stimate of the fair value of the underlying cwon stock on the date of grant. The other
inputs include an estimate of the expected vaatilf the stock price, an option’s expected tetme, risk-free interest rate over the option’s
expected term, the option’s exercise price, andegpectations regarding dividends. Stock-based eosgtion expense includes stock options
granted to employees and non-employees and hagégered in our statements of operations as falow
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Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
Research and developme $ 50,311 $ 79,95¢ $ 412,53t
General and administrative 30,22¢ 28,45( 148,48t

Total $ 80,53t $ 108,40 $ 561,02:

We do not have a history of market prices for mmmon stock because our stock was not publiclyettabdrough December 31, 2012. We
utilized the observable data for a group of puper companies that grant options with substaptsathilar terms to assist in developing our
volatility assumption. We derived our expectedrt@ssumption based on the simplified method, ifiegiple, which results in an expected
term based on the midpoint between the vestingatadehe contractual term of an option. The sifigalimethod was chosen because we hav
limited historical option exercise experience begaour Company was privately held. The expected ter options issued to non-employees
was determined based on the contractual term aiwlaeds. The weighted-average risk-free interaéstwas based on a zero coupon U.S.
Treasury instrument whose term was consistent thigtexpected life of the stock options. We haviepaid and do not anticipate paying cash
dividends on our shares of common stock; theretbeexpected dividend yield was assumed to be zero

A summary of the significant assumptions used tionege the fair value of employee and non-emplogaeity awards for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2011 and Dec&hpR012 is as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
Expected tern 6.0z 6.2¢€ 6.2t
Risk-free interest rat 2.7¢% 2.6€% 0.95%
Volatility 74.5% 72.% 79.(%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

If factors change and we employ different assunmgtistock-based compensation cost on future awaagdiffer significantly from what we
have recorded in the past. Higher volatility anagler expected terms result in an increase to dtaskd compensation determined at the d:
grant. Future stock-based compensation cost aretagnized stock-based compensation will increasieet@xtent that we grant additional
equity awards to employees or we assume unvestety egvards in connection with acquisitions. If there any modifications of the
underlying unvested securities, we may be requertcelerate any remaining unearned stock-basageasation cost or incur incremental
cost. Stock-based compensation cost affects oaarels and development, and selling, general, antnéstrative expenses.

The aggregate intrinsic value of all outstandingted and unvested options to purchase shares abounon stock as of December 31, 2012
was $13.2 million based on a per share price ofGRLfdr our common stock, the initial public offegi price per share, with a weighted averag
exercise price of $2.76 per share.

We estimate our forfeiture rate based on an arsatfsbur actual forfeitures and will continue takiate the appropriateness of the forfeiture
rate based on actual forfeiture experience, arabtyffstmployee turnover behavior, and other factohanges in the estimated forfeiture rate
have a significant effect on reported stock-basedpensation expense, because the cumulative effacjusting the rate for all expense
amortization is recognized in the period the fdtfied estimate is changed. The effect of forfeingistments during 2012, 2011 and 2010 wa:s
insignificant.

Significant Factors, Assumptions, and Methodologigsed in Estimating Fair Value of Common Stox

On March 26, 2009, our board of directors engageadrieview of the Company’s valuation. The boardicdctors considered the status of the
Company’s product pipeline, the Company’s StemScfeplatform for identifying novel compounds thatget and kill CSCs, the asset value
of the Company (comprised of intellectual propeitfts and current cash on hand), the present \dlfigure cash flows of the Company as a
clinical and development stage company, the Conipamapital structure, and the Company’s acquisipotential. The board of directors also
considered additional factors, including the Comypmexisting licensing and research agreementslléatual property, funding prospects, the
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funding prospects and valuations of similar comesgnihe ability of the management team and the @agip access to financing. Based on
foregoing review, the board of directors determitteat the per share value of the Company’s comrtagksvas equal to $1.11 on March 26,
2009.

We also performed a valuation to estimate theviaine of our common stock for the options grantedrd) the years ended December 31, 2
and December 31, 2012. The per share exercise faicgalue of underlying shares and fair valuetef option awards as of the respective
dates of valuation are as follows:

GAAP Fair Value of GAAP
Measurement Number of Exercise price Underlying Share Measurement
Approval Date(1) Date(2) Shares per share of Common Stock Amount ($)
March 8, 2011 March 8, 2011 224,060 $ 29z % 3.1C $ 2.1C
February 29, 201 May 24, 201z 112,20 $ 33C $ 9.9C $ 8.1¢
March 5, 201 May 24, 201z 81,81 $ 33C $ 9.9C $ 8.1¢
March 9, 201 March 9, 201 180,70: $ 33C $ 33C $ 2.2C
March 9, 201 May 24, 2012 247,10¢ $ 33C $ 9.9C $ 8.1¢

(1) The Approval Date is the date on which the boardiigctors authorized for issuance an option grant.

(2) The GAAP Measurement Date is the first date at tvkie key terms and conditions of the awards wenencunicated to the recipient.
The GAAP Measurement Date occurs subsequent tAgheoval Date due to timing of the notificationtbe award’s approval by the
board of directors to the recipient of the award.

The exercise prices for options granted were setunypoard of directors, the members of which hextensive experience in the life sciences
industry, based on the group’s determination offéiremarket value of our common stock at the tilme grants were authorized. The board of
directors considered the status of the Compangdymt pipeline and the progress since the lastatiain date, the Company’s StemScréen
platform for identifying novel compounds that targnd kill CSCs, the asset value of the Compaomfeised of intellectual property rights
and current cash on hand, which was less thanréwops valuation), the present value of futurehddmws of the Company as a clinical and
development stage company, the Company’s capitadtste (including the repurchase during 2010 bbgits outstanding preferred stock and
the removal of the corresponding liquidation prefee), the valuation of comparable companies am€tdmpany’s acquisition potential. The
board of directors also considered additional fis;tmcluding the Company’s existing licensing aesearch agreements, intellectual property.
funding prospects, the funding prospects and vialngaiof similar companies, the growth prospecthefbiopharmaceutical industry in general
and oncology companies focused on CSC targetsfagadlyi, expected regulatory and commercial hurdeesommercializing or licensing the
Company’s clinical candidates, the ability of tharmagement team and the Company’s access to firgarigésed on the foregoing review, the
board of directors determined that the fair mavedtie of the common stock underlying options tachase 224,067 shares granted on Mar
2011 was determined to be $2.92 per share atrtieedf grant.

However, in connection with the preparation of fihancial statements for a public offering, we penied a retrospective determination of fair
value for accounting purposes of our common stealedying stock options utilizing a combinationvafiuation methods described in the
AICPA Technical Practice Aidyaluation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Secestissued as Compensatioor the Practice Aid, using a
more sophisticated method to determine fair markhte.

Determining the fair value of the common stock giri@ate enterprise requires complex and subjegtilgments. Our retrospective estimatt
enterprise value at March 31, 2010, March 31, 2@rid January 30, 2012 used results from both thmmiecapproach and the market approach

Under the income approach, our enterprise valuebaasd on the present value of our forecasted tipgr&sults. Our revenue forecasts were
based on our estimates of expected annual growdh fallowing the anticipated commercial launctoof lead product candidates SL-401 and
SL-701. Estimated operating expenses were basedranternal assumptions, including continuing eesb, development activities for 101
and SL-701 and other clinical and preclinical prctdzandidates and our platform technology, andamaon and ongoing support for the
commercialization of our lead product candidatdse @ssumptions underlying the estimates are censisith our business plan. The risks
associated with achieving our forecasts were asdéssselecting the appropriate discount rateschviviere approximately 25%.
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Under the market approach, our estimated enterpaite was developed based on a comparison of preeyninitial public offering, or IPO,
values of recent biotechnology and emerging phaguitézal companies at a similar stage of developreatrs.

Once our enterprise value was established, theige value was allocated to the different clasgesgjuity instruments. Our board of direc
engaged in a retrospective review during which seduthe probability weighted expected returns,WER, method to allocate our enterprise
value to our common stock. Under the PWER methaelyalue of common stock is estimated based up@malysis of future values for the
enterprise assuming various future outcomes. Iir@wospective review, the future outcomes inclutihede scenarios: (i) we become a public
company, (i) we merge with or are acquired by haotompany, and (iii) we sell our intellectual pecty and other assets. We used a low
probability assumption for an IPO when valuing 8041 grants, and this percentage was expectedneeise over time as we continue to have
discussions with our investment bankers and preigfarean IPO. An increase in the probability asses# for an IPO increases the value
ascribed to our common stock while a decreaseainptobability has the opposite effect on the vaseribed to our common stock.

Estimated future and present values for the comstmek were calculated using assumptions including:

» our expected pre-IPO valuation;

» arisk-adjusted discount rate associated with B $cenario;

» the liquidation preferences of our redeemable cudible preferred stock;

» the appropriate discount for lack of marketabifissuming we remain a private company;

» the expected probability of completing an IPO venrmaining a private company or completing a meogacquisition; and

» the estimated timing of a potential IPO.
The retrospective fair value of our common stockMarch 31, 2010 was determined based on the fatig¥actors: the outlook of the oncolc
market at such time and the likelihood of complgtam IPO or merger or sale transaction, offsetdnegal market conditions. Relying
primarily on the PWER method, the retrospective ¥aiue of our common stock on March 31, 2010 wetsmnined to be $2.96 per share. The
additional stock-based compensation recognizedtirgdfirom the 2010 retrospective valuation wasrappnately $13,453.
The retrospective fair values of our common stoxkeased throughout 2010 and into 2011. The inesciasthe fair value of the common st
took into account changes in the following factdhe improved outlook in the oncology market in @& and oncology companies focused or
CSC targets specifically, the advancement of oadpet candidates, the increased likelihood of cetiipg an IPO or merger or sale transac
and the improvement in general market conditioredyiRg primarily on the PWER method, the retrospectair value of our common stock
March 31, 2011 was determined to be $3.10 per sfaeadditional stock-based compensation recodmizaulting from the 2011

retrospective valuation was approximately $12,036.

The fair value of our common stock was estimateadrags of January 30, 2012. The fair value of trarmon stock on that date took into
account changes in the following factors:

» the presentation of SL-401 data at the annual AcaarSociety of Hematology (ASH) conference;
» the presentation of SL-701 data at the Americarnie®péor Clinical Oncology (ASCO) conference;
» the improvement of general market conditions, whicheased the probability of an IPO; and

» the advancement of discussions with investment &andnd the drafting of a prospectus for an IPO.
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Based on the foregoing factors, and relying prilpam the PWER method, the fair value of our comratmtk on January 30, 2012 was
determined to be $3.30 per share.

On February 29, 2012, March 5, 2012 and March 2220@e approved for issuance equity awards withxancése price of $3.30 per share,
which our board of directors determined to be etu#he fair market value of our common stock amapproval date. As described in the tabl
above and in further detail below, the GAAP measienat date for certain equity awards approved orcM8r 2012 and all of the awards
approved on February 29, 2012 and March 5, 20les than the award’s approval date due to tinoihthe notification of the award’s
approval by the board of directors to the recipathe award.

At the time these awards were authorized to betgdathere remained substantial uncertainty reggrtie regulatory pathway for our product
candidates and the likelihood of a successfulahgiublic offering. Specifically, at the time thesm#ards were authorized to be granted no
significant events had occurred regarding our pcbdandidates or prospects of completing a suagkisdtial public offering to impact the
contemporaneous valuation that had been set asofdy 30, 2012. In addition, at the time theserdsvevere authorized, our underwriters had
not yet communicated to us the proposed price réorgis initial public offering. Based on thesedaother factors, including concern over
whether the public equity markets would be receptovpre-commercial biotechnology companies suabuas, and in light of the challenges
that similarly situated companies have experiericegdcent months in completing their own proposetail public offerings, our board of
directors determined that the fair market valuewfcommon stock at the time these awards wereanéhl to be granted was equal to $3.30
per share.

On February 29, 2012, March 5, 2012 and March 22206ur board of directors approved for issuantetad of 621,828 option grants. We,
however, did not timely notify all recipients ofetbe option grants. Specifically, we concluded thatong these awards 441,124 awards were
not sufficiently communicated to the recipientsémstitute a measurement date for accounting pespostil May 24, 2012. For accounting
purposes, based on a retrospective assessmehefequity awards measured as of May 24, 2012, derisg the achievement of certain
milestones noted below, we applied a fair valuthefunderlying common stock of $9.90 per sharechvis approximately 90% of the midpc
of the offering range of $10.00 to $12.00, anchoiporate the fair value calculated in this rgisasive assessment into the Black-Scholes
option pricing model when calculating the stockdzthsompensation expense. Of the remaining awamsceounted for a 90,352 share
service-based award issued to our Chief Executifiedd on March 9, 2012 in our financial statemefiatsthe quarter ended March 31, 2012,
because there was a mutual understanding of thes tef this award on March 9, 2012 and the measuredate was determined to be Marcl
2012. We also determined there was a measuremenotiglarch 9, 2012 for a 90,352 share performarased award issued to our Chief
Executive Officer, because there was a mutual waleding of the terms of this award on March 9,201

The following developments increased the valueusfammmon stock in the periods indicated below.
Between March 9 and May 24, 20

Regulatory Developmer On March 26, 2012, certain of our senior repregemes, including our Chief Executive Officer a@tief Medical
Officer, met with FDA representatives to discuss dinical development plans for SL-401. As is aumsary, the minutes of the FDA meeting
were made available to us and our advisors follgwie meeting. We and our advisors regarded theomeé of the FDA meeting as consistent
with our envisioned clinical development plan far-81 and overall expectations at that time. Imatly, the FDA did not require us to
conduct any clinical testing prior to the initiatiof our proposed randomized Phase 2b clinicdlitrithird-line AML, potentially saving us
significant capital and avoiding significant delays such, the results of the FDA meeting allewdaesignificant threshold risk that the FDA
would have a fundamentally different view than @ithe proposed clinical development plan for SL-40that time, which might have made
the development of SL-401 as contemplated at ttmat infeasible or more expensive and/or time-corisgrthan we had envisioned.

Intellectual Property Developmen Two significant intellectual property developmentcurred with respect to SL-701. First, on Matth
2012, we entered into a license agreement witlJtiieersity of Pittsburgh that grants us the rightise, and reference for regulatory
applications, clinical data, information and knoamhgenerated by the University in its prior cliditdals of SL-701. Without this license, we
would not have had the right to use these dataiiroen IND with the FDA. Second, on March 30, 20d2, entered into a license agreement
with the University that grants us the right toqiiee patents claiming the use of EphA2 epitopas, af the two primary active agents in SL-
701. Without this license, we would
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not have the freedom to pursue the developmentaminercialization of SL-701 absent a potentialimfement claim. Both of these
developments significantly improved the value @& 81.-701 program. Please refer to “Business — Ilseeand Research Agreements” for a
more detailed discussion of our license agreemeitlisthe University of Pittsburgh.

Clinical, Operational and Infrastructure Developmgn Several clinical, operational and infrastructdexelopments occurred that further
increased our readiness for the late-stage clidieaélopment of our product candidates and commiéeration.

*  Additional clinical trial results for SL-701 wereleased by the investigator-sponsored researchfgrrih2012. Such results were
presented at the Annual Meeting of the Americano8iggion for Cancer Research (AACR) on April 2, 20These results were
positive and reinforcing of previous results. Tive tlinical trials involving SL-701, administereal both adults and children with
advanced brain cancer, were selected for late-brggdresentations at the AACR. The research teasenting the results
concluded that SL-701 demonstrated both immunoddgind clinical activity in children with malignagtioma, and was well
tolerated and demonstrated immune responses ihatignts with low-grade glioma.

*  We selected a contract manufacturing organizatidnitiate process development, optimization aralesap of SL-401 drug
supply for late-stage clinical trials and commeizéion.

Between May 24, 2012 and July 19, 2!

Intellectual Property Developmen On June 15, 2012, we entered into an assignngeeément with Dr. Bergstein, our Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and President, with respect tellactual property that is significant to us. Runst to this agreement, upon the effectiveness
of the registration statement related to our ihjtizblic offering, Dr. Bergstein transferred torasltiple therapeutic and diagnostic issued
patents, pending patent applications and relatesvkmw and technology in exchange for cash or aldoeation of cash and shares of our
common stock. At such time, our current licensaragement with Dr. Bergstein terminated.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2012 andl201

Research and development expe Research and development expense was $3.4 nfifliche year ended December 31, 2012, compared
with $1.6 million for the year ended December 3112, an increase of $1.8 million. This increase prwarily attributable to increased costs
pertaining to the continued development of our leahpound SL-401, including $1.6 million of consudtfees and $1.5 million of salary and
related costs including stock-based compensation.

General and administrative expens&eneral and administrative expense was $3.0amiftbr the year ended December 31, 2012, compared
with $1.1 million for the year ended December 3112 This increase was primarily attributable to0$aillion of corporate legal fees and
professional fees.

Interest expens:i Interest expense was $118,765 for the year eDdedmber 31, 2012, compared with $98,643 for tlze gaded
December 31, 2011, resulting in a $20,122 increase.

Interest income Interest income was $9,907 for the year endecedeer 31, 2012, compared with $24,068 for the geded December 31,
2011. The $14,161 decrease in interest incomeddR 2s compared to 2011 reflected lower cash betaimc2012.

Other income. Other income was $301,684 for the year ended mkee 31, 2012, compared with $46,673 for the yaded December 31,
2011. The $255,011 increase in other income fo22&xLcompared to 2011 was primarily due to thdiliag in the third quarter of 2012 for a
$203,806 Biotechnology Tax Credit from the CityNs#w York for calendar year 2011 and the $68,815ntmmarket of the put option
liability. There are no continuing performance eiund obligations related to these grants.
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Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2011 andi201

Research and development expe Research and development expense was $1.6 nfiflidhe year ended December 31, 2011, compared
with $1.3 million for the year ended December 311@, an increase of $0.3 million or 23%. This i was primarily attributable to
increased costs pertaining to the continued dewetop of our lead compound SL-401, including $0.Riom of consulting fees and

$0.1 million of salary and related costs includstgck-based compensation, partially offset by aaie of $0.1 million of patent-related costs

General and administrative expens&eneral and administrative expense was $1.1amiftor the year ended December 31, 2011, compared
with $0.9 million for the year ended December 311 @ This increase was primarily attributable ta2&@illion of corporate legal fees and
professional fees.

Interest expens: Interest expense was $98,643 for the year ena@edrbber 31, 2011, compared with $69,493 for the geded December {
2010. The $29,150 increase for 2011 was attribatabthe convertible notes due 2015 that were autistg for the full 2011 calendar year
versus nine months during the calendar year 2010.

Other expense.Other expense was $9,670 for the year ended Desredi, 2011, compared with none for the year efimember 31, 2010.
The $9,670 increase in other expense for 2011 télsuded to the mark to market of the put opti@bility.

Interest income Interest income was $24,068 for the year endezk®Déer 31, 2011, compared with $43,045 for the gaded December 31,
2010. The $18,977 decrease in interest incomeddt 2s compared to 2010 reflected lower cash besaimc2011.

Other income. Other income was $46,673 for the year ended Dbeefil, 2011, compared with $484,905 for the yaded December 31,
2010. The $438,232 decrease in other income fot 28lcompared to 2010 was due to $244,479 of inamweciated with the receipt of the
Qualified Therapeutic Discovery grant program fritte federal government and the receipt of $218ff56 the Biotechnology Tax Credit
from the City of New York received during calengaar 2010. There are no continuing performancefoind obligations related to these
grants.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources of Liquidity

We have financed our operations to date primahifgugh proceeds from sales of common stock andestibie preferred stock and issuances
of convertible debt. To date, we have not generatgdrevenue from the sale of products. We haveriad losses and generated negative cas
flows from operations since inception.

Through December 31, 2012, we received net procefe$3.8 million from the sale of common stock &1i®.5 million from the sale of
convertible preferred stock and $0.9 million frame issuance of convertible notes. Upon the conguledf our initial public offering on
January 31, 2013, we received net proceeds of $8#ibn net of fees and expenses.

As of December 31, 2012, our cash, cash equivatertsnarketable securities totaled $2.0 million. Mdenarily invest our cash and cash
equivalents in commercial savings accounts. Weebelthat our existing cash, cash equivalents anllatable securities, together with the net
proceeds from our initial public offering, will lmfficient to fund our operations and our capitgdenditures for at least the next 24 months.
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Cash Flows

The following table sets forth the primary souraed uses of cash for each of the periods set featthw:

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
Net cash used in operating activit $ (1,862,60)% (1,936,48)% (4,126,54)
Net cash provided by investing activiti — — —
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (147,429 540,00( 322,00(
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis $ (2,010,02)% (1,396,48)% (3,804,54)

Operating activities. The use of cash in all periods resulted primdriyn our net losses adjusted for non-cash chaagddavorable changes
in the components of working capital. The net aasd in operating activities increased in 2010,12&d 2012 mainly due to the timing of
payments to our suppliers in connection with sugigl research agreements associated with the gedtifevelopment of our product
candidates. The cash used for the years ended bec&h, 2010, 2011 and 2012 was also impacted liyycagase in research and developr
expenses as we increased our research and develbpeagicount and from costs associated with theldgment of our lead compound SL-
401.

Financing activities The cash used by financing activities for theryaled December 31, 2010 was due to the paym&@t8fmillion in
connection with the redemption of our Series A pnefd stock offset by the receipt of $0.6 millidrpeoceeds from the private placement of
our common stock. The net cash provided by finapeictivities for the year ended December 31, 201l 2012 were due to the issuance of
$0.5 million and $0.4 million of convertible notesspectively.

Funding Requirements

All of our product candidates are still in clinical preclinical development. We expect to contitmacur significant expenses and increasing
operating losses for the foreseeable future. Wieipate that our expenses will increase substdyiishnd as we:

» continue the ongoing clinical trials, and initigte planned clinical trials, of our lead productdigates, SL-401 and SL-701;
e continue the research and development of our giftetuct candidates and our platform technology;

e seek to identify additional product candidates;

e acquire or in-license other products and technekgi

» seek marketing approvals for our product candiddi@issuccessfully complete clinical trials;

»  establish, either on our own or with strategic pars$, a sales, marketing and distribution infrastme to commercialize any
products for which we may obtain marketing apprpval

* maintain, leverage and expand our intellectual eriypportfolio;

e add operational, financial and management inforonasiystems and personnel, including personnelgpatiour product
development and future commercialization efforts.

The net proceeds from our initial public offeringgether with our existing cash and cash equiva)emitl enable us to fund our operating
expenses and capital expenditure requirementd feast the next 24 months. We have based thimatgion assumptions that may prove to b
wrong, and we could use our available capital resssisooner than we currently expect. Becauseeaitimerous risks and uncertainties
associated with the development and commerciabizadf our product
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candidates, and the extent to which we may entercallaborations with third parties for developrhand commercialization of our product
candidates, we are unable to estimate the amotiitsreased capital outlays and operating expeasssciated with completing the
development of our current product candidates. fGire capital requirements will depend on manydes; including:

» the progress and results of the clinical trialewf lead product candidates;

» the scope, progress, results and costs of compaigndvery, preclinical development, laboratoryitegseaind clinical trials for our
other product candidates;

» the extent to which we acquire or in-license ottreducts and technologies;
» the costs, timing and outcome of regulatory revidwur product candidates;

» the costs of future commercialization activitiegluding product sales, marketing, manufacturing @istribution, for any of our
product candidates for which we receive marketiograval;

e revenue, if any, received from commercial salesurfproduct candidates, should any of our prodantates receive marketi
approval,

* our ability to obtain government funding for ouaphed clinical trial of SL-701 in pediatric patient

» the costs of preparing, filing and prosecuting pa#pplications, maintaining and enforcing our lietetual property rights and
defending intellectual property-related claims; and

e our ability to establish any future collaborationamgements on favorable terms, if at all.

Until such time, if ever, as we can generate sultistigproduct revenues, we expect to finance oshceeeeds through a combination of equity
offerings, debt financings, collaborations, strategliances and licensing arrangements. We ddaeé any committed external source of
funds. To the extent that we raise additional edpiirough the sale of equity or convertible dedmwsities, the ownership interest of our
stockholders will be diluted, and the terms of thescurities may include liquidation or other prefices that adversely affect your rights as a
common stockholder. Debt financing, if availabl@yninvolve agreements that include covenants lirgitr restricting our ability to take
specific actions, such as incurring additional detaking capital expenditures or declaring divideriflwe raise additional funds through
collaborations, strategic alliances or licensingagements with third parties, we may have to geiish valuable rights to our technologies,
future revenue streams, research programs or prodndidates or grant licenses on terms that mapeéavorable to us. If we are unable to
raise additional funds through equity or debt ficiags when needed, we may be required to delayt, lieduce or terminate our product
development or future commercialization effortgaant rights to develop and market product candil#iiat we would otherwise prefer to
develop and market ourselves.

We will also incur costs as a public company thathave not previously incurred, including, but lmited to, costs and expenses for director:
fees, increased personnel costs, increased diseatak officers insurance premiums, audit and I, investor relations fees, expenses for
compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 aunels implemented by the SEC and The NASDAQ StoekKdt, LLC and various other
costs.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual gdgions at December 31, 2012:

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Total 1 year years years 5 years
Long-term debt obligations $ 200688 $ — $ 113396 $ 872,917 $ =
License agreements 692,22! 129,42! 258,90( 197,60( 106,30(
Total $ 2,699,100 $ 129,42! $ 1,39286. $ 1,070,517 $ 106,30(
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1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

()

Included in the “1 to 3 Years” column is all of thetstanding principal amount, as of December 8122of our senior convertible note
due 2015, which equals $1,250,000 in principal am@ius accrued interest. Upon the completion ofinitial public offering, the
holder of the senior convertible note elected tovent $625,000 in principal amount, plus accruedrast thereon, into shares of our
common stock at the initial public offering pridecluded in the “3 to 5 Yeargolumn is all of the currently outstanding prindipaoun
of our convertible notes due 2017, which equals@pmately $862,000 plus accrued interest. See Rdtethe financial statements
appearing at the end of this Form 10-K.

We have executed several license agreements,assésl in Note 10 to the financial statements tdipancial statement and in more
detail in the section titled “Business — License &esearch Agreements.” Other than the paymengsiriotthe table above, milestone
and royalty payments associated with licensing mtéeen included as management cannot reasoestiityate if or when they will
occur. These arrangements include the following:

e Under aresearch and license agreement with Sudtt\thite Memorial Hospital for SL-401, we are raqdito pay royalties on
annual sales of licensed products.

« Under three separate license agreements with theetdity of Pittsburgh, we are required to makeraggte development and
regulatory milestone payments associated with SLaftll pay royalties on net sales of licensed pitsduc

» Under an exclusive patent and non-exclusive know-ltense agreement with the Cambridge Universaghiical Services
Limited, related to our StemScre®n platform tedbgy we are required to make milestone payments gpecified regulatory
events and pay royalties on sales of licensed gtedu

We have several charges to earnings that are gemtiron the successful completion of performancglitions. As such, since it is not
known when the performance condition will be achii\these charges are not included in the tableealidvese conditions include the
following:

» the effect of a beneficial conversion charge ofrapimately $0.1 million that will be recorded uptire conversion of our
convertible notes due 2017;

» the recording of approximately $1.4 million of stdlzased compensation expense associated with 578ptibns with a
weighted average exercise price of $2.84 that fudlsted upon the consummation of our initial pubffering; and

» the recording of approximately $1.5 million of coemsation expense relating to certain bonuses daxy sacreases payable
upon continued employment and the occurrence peeified financing, including the consummation ofiaitial public offering.

Certain contractual payment obligations will extér@yond five years until certain specified milegt®mare achieved. For purposes of
calculation, we have assumed that these paymeigatibhs have only been made in the sixth year dwawthese payments would
continue each subsequent year until the specifiegbtones are achieved.

On June 15, 2012, we entered into an assignmeeéagmt with Dr. Bergstein, our Chairman, Presidewt Chief Executive Officer al
owner of certain proprietary patent rights andtesldechnology. The agreement was amended on NaremR012. The agreement
replaces an existing license agreement. Dr. Bargatgeed to assign sell, transfer and convey @l his right, title and interest in a
to these patent rights and related technology anamxge for $2.0 million in cash or a combinatiorcash and shares of our common
stock. Pursuant to the agreement, as amendedasumints are payable only if, within five yearsiué tlate of transfer, we either (i) h:

a change in control, as defined in the assignmgmeteanent, or (ii) achieve a market capitalizatibatdeast $200 million for a prescribed
period. Under the terms of the agreement, as andeb@86 of such payment shall be paid in cash aaddmaining 50% may be paid in
shares of our common stock, or a combination dfi @&l common stock, as determined by us.
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None of the assigned patent rights and relatecht#oby has alternative future uses, nor have thaghed a stage of technological feasibi
We plan to account for this transaction as an assgiisition because we did not acquire any presessactivities in addition to the assigned
rights and technology. We will record the entireéghase price to acquired in-process research arelagmment expense and will record a
corresponding liability at the present value oftspayments upon resolution of the contingenciey@bbhe agreement does not contain any
vesting or rescission/refund provisions.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We did not have during the periods presented, andawnot currently have, any relationships with arganizations or financial partnerships,
such as structured finance or special purposdegtthat would have been established for the e facilitating off-balance sheet
arrangements or other contractually narrow or Bhipurposes.

Tax Loss Carryforwards

As of December 31, 2012, we had federal net opeyatiss carryforwards of $14.7 million, which araiable to reduce future taxable incor
We also had federal tax credits of $0.5 million,jiehhmay be used to offset future tax liabilitiefi€Thet operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards will expire at various dates thro@ft82. Net operating loss and tax credit carryfodsaare subject to review and possible
adjustment by the Internal Revenue Service and satauthorities and may become subject to anadfimitation in the event of certain
cumulative changes in the ownership interest afigant stockholders over a three-year periodxicess of 50%, as defined under

Sections 382 and 383 of the Internal Revenue Gasleell as similar state provisions. This couldtitne amount of tax attributes that can be
utilized annually to offset future taxable incomraax liabilities. The amount of the annual limitat is determined based on the value of our
Company immediately prior to the ownership char@isequent ownership changes may further affedintiitation in future years. At
December 31, 2012, we recorded a 100% valuatiowatice against our net operating loss and taxtatediyforwards, as we believe it is
more likely than not that the tax benefits will &t fully realized. In the future, if we determittat a portion or all of the tax benefits
associated with our tax carryforwards will be readi, net income would increase in the period odmeination.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk related to changesearest rates. We had cash and cash equivale&s&million as of December 31, 2011
and $2.0 million as of December 31, 2012, congistihcash and money market funds. Our primary exygo® market risk is interest rate
sensitivity, which is affected by changes in theegal level of U.S. interest rates, particularlgdnese our investments are in short-term
securities. Our available for sale securities algext to interest rate risk and will fall in valifenarket interest rates increase. Due to thetshor
term duration of our investment portfolio and therlrisk profile of our investments, an immediat® Hasis point change in interest rates w
not have a material effect on the fair market valtieur portfolio.

We contract with CROs and contract manufacturems.nvély be subject to fluctuations in foreign curserates in connection with these
agreements. Transactions denominated in currenthes than the functional currency are recorde@dasn exchange rates at the time such
transactions arise. As of December 31, 2011 an@,24llLof our liabilities were denominated in oun€tional currency.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

Our financial statements and the notes therettyded in Part 1V, Item 15(a), part 1, are incorpiedaby reference into this Item 8.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountss on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and ProcedurAs of December 31, 2012, management carried odgruhhe supervision and with the
participation of our Chief Executive Officer andi€hAccounting Officer, an evaluation of the eff@eness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineduiedRl3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange @art disclosure controls and
procedures are designed to provide reasonablesssuthat information we are required to disclosthé reports that we file or submit under
the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summaaizedeported within the time periods specifieagpplicable rules and forms. Based upon
that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer andeZiccounting Officer concluded that, as of DecemB1, 2012, our disclosure controls anc
procedures were effective.

Managemer's Annual Report on Internal Control over FinancRéporting. This annual report does not include a report afiagement’s
assessment regarding internal control over findmeorting or an attestation report of the companggistered public accounting firm due 1
transition period established by rules of the Séesrand Exchange Commission for newly public camips.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial RepogtinThere were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting during the quar
ended December 31, 2012, that have materially taffleor are reasonably likely to materially affemir internal control over financial
reporting.
Limitations on the Effectiveness of ContriOur management, including our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Accounting Officer, does not
expect that our disclosure controls and procedoresir internal control over financial reportinglivarevent all errors and all fraud. A control
system, no matter how well conceived and operatea provide only reasonable, not absolute, assertdyat the objectives of the control
system are met. Further, the design of a contigibsy must reflect the fact that there are resotwostraints, and the benefits of controls must
be considered relative to their costs. Becauskeirtherent limitations in all control systems,evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instanciauwd, if any, within our company have been detkcte
Item 9B. Other Information
None.

Part 11l
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporte Governance

The information required by this Item is incorp@éherein by reference from our Proxy Statemenbv@r2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorpediherein by reference from our Proxy Statemend@or2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiaDwners and Management and Related Stockholder Matte

The information required by this Item is incorpaéterein by reference from our Proxy Statemenbv@r2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transdmns and Director Independence.

The information required by this Item is incorp@éterein by reference from our Proxy Statemenbv@r2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this Item is incorpaéherein by reference from our Proxy Statemenbv@r2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.
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Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statements Schedules.

(a) 1.

Financial Statements

The following financial statements of Stemline Tdqggutics, Inc. are filed as part of this report.

Contents Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfding F-2
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and F-3
Statements of Operations for the Years ended Deeefih 2012, 2011 and 2010, and the Period fromusugd, 2003 (Inception)
December 31, 201 F-4
Statements of Preferred Stock and Stockholdersit¥Deficit) for the Period from August 8, 2005@eption) to December 31,

2012 F-5
Statements of Cash Flows for the Years ended Desegih 2012, 2011 and 2010, and the Period fromusug, 2003 (Inception)

to December 31, 201 F-6
Notes to the Financial Stateme F-7

2.

Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted as the information regliis inapplicable or the information is presentethe financial statements or the

related notes.

3. Exhibits

Exhibit No. Description

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Stemlifeefiapeutics, Inc., filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8iKd on February 6,
2013 (File N0.00-35619) and incorporated herein by referel

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Stemline Therapgutic., filed as Exhibit 3.2 to Form 8-K filed &ebruary 6, 2013
(File No. 00:-35619) and incorporated herein by refere:

4.1 Specimen certificate evidencing shares of commaocksfiled as Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-1/A filed onng&u20, 2012 (File
No. 33:-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

4.2 Form of Representative’s Warrant Agreement, filedeahibit 4.2 to Form S-1/A filed on November 1812 (File No. 333-
180515) and incorporated herein by refere

10.1t Research and License Agreement by and among th@&ugmScott and White Memorial Hospital, Scott, i8feeod and
Brindley Foundation and Arthur E. Frankel, M.D.tethJune 15, 2006; as amended by that certainAinshdment to
Research and License Agreement dated Decembef8, @t certain Second Amendment to Research metse
Agreement dated March 17, 2010 and that certairdTAmendment to Research and License Agreemend datg 12,
2011., filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Forn-1/A filed on June 20, 2012 (File No. :-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

10.2t Exclusive License Agreement between the Companytfamt)niversity of Pittsburgh, dated September2B09, filed as

Exhibit 10.2 to Form -1/A filed on June 20, 2012 (File No. --180515) and incorporate
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10.3f

10.4%

10.5t

10.6*

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17

10.18

herein by referenct

Exclusive Patent and Non-Exclusive Know-How LiceAggeement between the Company and Cambridge Wsifyer
Technical Services Limited, commenced Septembe20®4, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Form19A filed on June 20, 2012 (F
No. 33:-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Non-Exclusive License Agreement between the Compadytfaa University of Pittsburgh, dated March 30, 2(filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to Form -1/A filed on June 20, 2012 (File No. --180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Non-Exclusive License Agreement between the Compandytlae University of Pittsburgh, dated March 21, 2(filed as
Exhibit 10.5 to Form -1 filed on April 2, 2012 (File No. 3--180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Employment Agreement, dated November 6, 2011, baiwlee Registrant and Eric K. Rowinsky, M.D., filesl Exhibit 10.6
to Form (-1 filed on April 2, 2012 (File No. 3:-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Employment Agreement, dated March 27, 2012, betwieeiCompany and John T. Cavan, filed as Exhihif 1®Form S-
1/A filed on June 20, 2012 (File No. :-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Employment Agreement, dated June 15, 2012, betéfeeRegistrant and lvan Bergstein, M.D., filed akiBit 10.8 to
Form &-1/A filed on June 20, 2012 (File No. :-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Regig and each director, filed as Exhibit 10.9 ¢orx S-1/A filed on
June 20, 2012 (File No. 3-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Amended and Restated 2004 Employee, Director amd@i@ant Stock Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.10 to F@r filed on
April 2, 2012 (File No. 33-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under Adezhand Restated 2004 Employee, Director and Camsi8tock
Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.11 to Forn-1 filed on April 2, 2012 (File No. 3:-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Form of Nongualified Stock Option Agreement under Amended Redtated 2004 Employee, Director and Consultarak
Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.12 to Forn-1 filed on April 2, 2012 (File No. 3:-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

2012 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit 10tb3orm S-1/A on July 19. 2012 (File No. 333-180pa&d incorporated
herein by referenct

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under 2B#jRity Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.14 torf S-1/A on
July 19. 2012 (File No. 3:-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement und&Er2Equity Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.85Rorm S-1/A on
July 19. 2012 (File No. 3:-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

2011 Employee Cash Bonus Plan, filed as Exhibit@. @0 Form S-1 filed on April 2, 2012 (File No. 3380515) and
incorporated herein by referen:

Senior Unsecured Convertible Note issued by the g2my in favor of NB Athyrium LLC, dated March 18)10, filed as
Exhibit 10.17 to Form -1 filed on April 2, 2012 (File No. 3:-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Exclusive License Agreement between the Companybantlan Bergstein M.D., effective as of Decem
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10.19*

10.20

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24

10.25*

10.26

10.27

10.28*

24.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

1, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10.18 to Form S-1/A filed June 20, 2012 (File No. 333-180515) and ina@teal herein by
reference

Amended and Restated 2011 Employee Cash Bonusfidanas Exhibit 10.19 to Form S-1/A filed on Ma¢, 2012 (File
No. 33:-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Assignment Agreement between the Company and hemgdBein, M.D., effective as of June 15, 2012df#es Exhibit 10.20
to Form ¢-1/A filed on June 20, 2012 (File No. :-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Offer Letter between the Company and Eric L. Dolemedated April 25, 2012, filed as Exhibit 10.21Rorm S-1/A filed on
June 20, 2012 (File No. 3-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Offer Letter between the Company and J. Kevin Bughied March 2, 2012, filed as Exhibit 10.22 torfr&-1/A filed on
June 20, 2012 (File No. 3-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Offer Letter between the Company and Kenneth Zissrithted March 8, 2012, filed as Exhibit 10.2%twm S-1/A filed on
June 20, 2012 (File No. 3-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Amendment, dated July 26, 2012, to Senior UnsecGmt/ertible Note issued by the Company in favoRBf Athyrium
LLC, filed as Exhibit 10.24 to Form-1/A on July 27, 2012 (File No.3-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Letter Agreement between the Company and John arGalated July 26, 2012, filed as Exhibit 10.25¢om S-1/A on
July 27, 2012 (File N0.3:-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Amendment No. 1 to Assignment Agreement betweerCtmapany and Ivan Bergstein, M.D., dated as of Kder 7, 201:
filed as Exhibit 10.26 to Form-1/A on November 14, 2012 (File No. -180515) and incorporated herein by referel

Amendment No. 2 dated November 14, 2012, to Sessecured Convertible Note issued by the Comparfigvior of NB
Athyrium LLC, filed as Exhibit 10.27 to Form S-1&n November 14, 2012 (File No. 333-180515) andripamated herein
by reference

Offer Letter between the Company and Stephen R, theted October 1, 2012, filed as Exhibit 10.2&¢6sm S-1/A on
January 8, 2013 (File No. 3-180515) and incorporated herein by refere

Power of Attorney (included on signature pay

Certificate of principal executive officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted purswaBéttion 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certificate of principal financial officer pursuatot Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted purswaBéttion 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certificate of principal executive officer pursuaotl8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se®@é of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

Certificate of principal financial officer pursuatot18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 3e886 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

t Confidential treatment has been granted witheessip the omitted portions of this exhibit. Cal#intial materials omitted and filed separa
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
* Management contract or compensatory plan, contraagreement.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Stemline Therapeutics, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance she&teofline Therapeutics, Inc. (a development staggany) as of December 31, 2011 and
2012, and the related statements of operationferpee stock and stockholders’ equity (deficit) aagh flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2012 and the period fogust 8, 2003 (Inception) to December 31, 2012sEfinancial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupaasibility is to express an opinion on these foiahstatements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:s
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ai afuithe Company’s internal control over finanaiaporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financigbogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company’s internal contrarofinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesnéxiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlebars significant estimates made by managementeaadating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Stemline
Therapeutics, Inc. at December 31, 2011 and 201®Rttee results of its operations and its cash fllawgach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2012 and the period from AUADO03 (Inception) to December 31, 2012, in camfty with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF
MetroPark, New Jerse

April 1, 2013
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STEMLINE THERAPEUTICS, INC.
(A DEVELOPMENT STAGE COMPANY)
Balance Sheets

December 31

2011 2012
Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 5,829,883 $ 2,025,33
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 223,21( 299,08!
Total current asse 6,053,099 2,324,42
Deferred financing fee 400,00( 2,705,18
Total asset $ 6,453,091 $ 5,029,61
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit)
Current liabilities:
Accrued liabilities $ 1,582,411 $ 5,500,73!
Total current liabilities 1,582,411 5,500,73!
Convertible note 1,566,111 2,006,88
Put option liability 99,23( 30,41!
Total liabilities 3,247,75 7,538,03
Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock $0.0001 par value, 5,000,000 slarg®rized, none issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2011 and 20 — —
Common stock $0.0001 par value, 5,421,150 shatés@zed at December 31, 2011 and 22,500
shares authorized at December 31, 2012, 3,441t888sissued and outstanding at Decembe
2011 and 3,476,501 shares issued and outstandidgcamber 31, 201 344 347
Additional paic-in capital 4,099,46! 4,660,48
Retained (deficit) accumulated during the developinséage (894,47) (7,169,25)
Total stockholder equity/(deficit) 3,205,341 (2,508,421
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity/(deficit) $ 6,453,09 $ 5,029,61

See accompanying notes.
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Operating expense

Research and developmt

General and administrative
Total operating expenses

Loss from operations

Other income

Other expens

Interest expens

Interest income

Net loss from operatior

Less accretion of preferred stock dividends
Add discount on redemption of preferred stock
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhii $

STEMLINE THERAPEUTICS, INC.
(A DEVELOPMENT STAGE COMPANY)

Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31

Period From
August 8, 200z
(Inception) to
December 31

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhigbeer

common share
Basic
Diluted

Weightec-average shares outstandi

Basic
Diluted

2010 2011 2012 2012
$  1,329500 $ 162902 $  3,376,96 $ 1144566
930,33 1,088,02: 3,090,61 9,484,79
2,259,84 2,717,05. 6,467,57. 20,930,46
(2,259,84)) (2,717,05) (6,467,57) (20,930,46)
484,90 46,67: 301,68 935,51
— (9,670 (35) (9,70%)
(69,497 (98,64%) (118,765 (296,95()
43,04 24,06¢ 9,907 960,58:
(1,801,38) (2,754.,62) (6,274,78) (19,341,01)
(239,72() — — (2,591,16)
12,171,76 — — 12,171,76
10,130,66 $  (2,754,62) $  (6,274,78) $ _ (9,760,41)
$ 3.07 $ (80 $ (1.82)
$ 281 $ (80) $ (1.82)
3,298,79: 3,441,99! 3,441,99!
3,607,03! 3,441,99! 3,441,99!

See accompanying notes.
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Balance, August 8, 2003
(Inception)

Issuance of common
stock to founde
Nonemployee stock

based compensatic
Issuance of common
stock
Subscription receivabl
Net loss
Balance, December 31,
2003—
Issuance of common
stock
Nonemployee stock
based compensatic
Payment of subscriptic
receivable
Net loss
Balance, December 31,
2004—
Nonemployee stock
based compensatic
Net loss
Balance, December 31,
2005—
Issuance of common
stock
Stock-based
compensatiol
Net loss
Balance, December 31,
2006—
Issuance of preferred
stock
Issuance of common
stock
Stock-based
compensatiol
Accretion of preferred
stock dividenc
Net loss
Balance, December 31,
2007—
Stock-based
compensatiol
Accretion of preferred
stock dividenc
Net loss
Balance, December 31,
2008—
Stock-based
compensatiol
Accretion of preferred
stock dividenc
Net loss
Balance, December 31,
2009—
Issuance of common

Stemline Therapeutics, Inc.
(A Development Stage Company)
Statements of Preferred Stock and Stockholdersit¢Deficit)
Period From August 8, 2003 (Inception) to Decengigr2012

Additional Earnings (Deficit) Total
Preferred Stock Common Stock Subscription Paid-in Accumulated During Stockholders
Shares Capital Shares Capital Receivable Capital the Development Stac  Equity (Deficit)
— — 1,807,05! 181 $ — $ 11,75¢ $ — 3 11,931
— — — — — 16,67( — 16,67(
— — 451,75¢ 45 — 499,95! — 500,00(
— — — — (25,000 — — (25,000
— — — — — — (166,539 (166,539
— —  2,258,80: 22€ (25,000 528,38: (166,53 337,06¢
— — 489,34¢ 49 — 1,999,95 — 2,000,001
— — — — — 551,82¢ — 551,82¢
_ — — — 25,00( — — 25,00(
— — — — — — (950,44 (950,449
— —  2,748,15 27¢ — 3,080,15: (1,116,98)  1,963,44
— — — — — 286,93 — 286,93:
_ — — — — — (807,62) (807,62:)
— — 2,748,15 27¢ — 3,367,08! (1,924,60) 1,442,775
— — 75,47 7 — 739,70: — 739,71(
— — — — — 403,13. — 403,13:
— — — — — — (1,415,98)  (1,415,98)
— — 2,823,62! 282 — 4,509,92. (3,340,59)) 1,169,61
455,51¢ 12,500,000 — — — — — —
— — 1,01¢ — — 10,04: — 10,04:
— — — — — (35,700 — (35,706
— 230,13 — — —  (230,13) — (230,13)
— — — — — — (1,571,75)  (1,571,75)
455,51¢ 12,730,13 2,824,64 282 —  4,254,12. (4,912,34) (657,939
— — — — — 143,73¢ — 143,73¢
— 1,021,20. — — — (1,021,20) —  (1,021,20)
— — — — — — (1,820,10)  (1,820,10)
455,51¢ 13,751,333 2,824,64 282 — 3,376,66: (6,732,45)  (3,355,51)
— — — — — 71,171 — 71,177
— 1,100,10 — — — (1,100,10) — (1,200,10)
— — — — — — (1,777,77)  (1,777,77)
455,51 14,851,44 2,824,64 282 —  2,347,73 (8,510,22) (6,162,21))



stock
Stock-based
compensatiol

Accretion of preferred

stock dividenc
Redemption of
preferred stocl
Net loss
Balance, December 31,
2010
Stock-based
compensatiol
Net loss
Balance, December 31,
2011
Stock-based
compensatiol
Net loss
Balance, December 31,
2012

— — 617,34 62 1,802,51: —  1,802,58
— — — — 80,53t — 80,53t
— 239,72 — — (239,72() — (239,72()
(455,51f) (15,091,16) — — — 12,171,76  12,171,76
_ _ _ — — (1,801,38)  (1,801,38)
— —  3,441,99 344 3,991,06. 1,860,15  5,851,56.
_ _ — — 108,40! — 108,40
— — _ _ — (2,754,62)  (2,754,62)
— —  3,441,99 344 4,099,46! (894,47)  3,205,34
— — 34,50¢ 3 561,01¢ — 561,02
— — — — — (6,274,78)  (6,274,78)
— 3 — 347650 $ 347 $ $4,660,48; (7,169,25) $ (2,508,42)

See accompanying notes.
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STEMLINE THERAPEUTICS, INC.
(A DEVELOPMENT STAGE COMPANY)
Statements of Cash Flows

Period From
August 8, 2003
(Inception) to

Year Ended December 31 December 31

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating
activities:
Stocl-based compensation expel
Non-cash interest expen
Mark to market of put option liabilit
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other asset
Accrued liabilities

Net cash used in operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of marketable securi
Redemption of marketable securities

Net cash provided by investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock
Redemption of preferred sto

Proceeds from issuance of common st
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

$
Supplemental disclosure of no-cash transactions
Discount on redemption of preferred st $
Issuance of common stock on redemption of prefesteck $
Accretion of preferred stock dividel $

2010 2011 2012 2012
(1,801,38) $  (2,754,62) $  (6,274,78) $ (19,341,01)
80,53 108,40! 561,02 2,199,66
69,49: 98,64: 118,76 296,95(
(21,860 9,67( (68,81%) (81,00%)
(183,601 53,33¢ (75,879 (299,08)
— (400,00() (2,305,18) (2,705,18)
(5,785) 948,09: 3,918,32! 5,500,73!
(1,862,601 (1,936,48)) (4,126,54) ~ (14,428,94)
— — —  (20,545,08)
— — — 20,545,08
— | — 12,500,00
(750,00() — — (750,000
602,57 — — 3,842,28;
— 540,00 322,00 862,00
(147 42) 540,00 322,00 16,454,28
(2,010,02) (1,396,48)) (3,804,54) 2,025,33i
9,236,39! 7,226,361 5,829,88 —
722636 $ 582988 $ 202533 $ _ 2,025,33
12,921,76 $ — % —$ 12,921,76
1,200,000 $ — 3 — $  1,200,00
239,72( $ — 3 —$ 133982

See accompanying notes.
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STEMLINE THERAPEUTICS, INC.
(A DEVELOPMENT STAGE COMPANY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2012

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation
Organization

Stemline Therapeutics, Inc., (the “Company”), dinical-stage biopharmaceutical company focusediscovering, acquiring, developing and
commercializing proprietary therapeutics that talgsh cancer stem cells, (“CSCs”), and tumor blitke Company’s activities to date have
primarily consisted of advancing its two clinicédge programs, expanding and strengthening itBantaal property portfolio, developing its
proprietary drug discovery platform, identifyingdaacquiring additional product and technology réghihd raising capital. Accordingly, the
Company is considered to be in the developmenesiaglefined in Financial Accounting Standards B@arcounting Standards Codification
(“ASC") Topic 915,Development Stage Entitie¥he Company was incorporated in Delaware on Augu2003 (Inception) and has its
principal office in New York, New York.

Stemline Therapeutics, Inc. has incurred losses fiperations since inception of $19.5 million. ®iiits inception, most of its resources have
been dedicated to the discovery, acquisition ardlimical and clinical development of its produahdidates. In particular, it has expended
will continue to expend substantial resourcesltierforeseeable future developing its clinical cdatiés, SL-401 and SL-701, as well as its
preclinical product candidates and drug discovery acquisition efforts. These expenditures witlimle costs associated with general and
administrative costs, facilities costs, researah@development, acquiring new technologies, manufay product candidates, conducting
preclinical experiments and clinical trials andaibing regulatory approvals, as well as commetiadi any products approved for sale.
Furthermore, it expects to incur additional costsoaiated with operating as a public company.

The Company anticipates incurring additional loss®d such time, if ever, that it can generatengigant sales of its products currently in
development. The Company’s success depends prnearithe successful development and regulatoryosapof its product candidates. The
Company estimates that its cash and cash equisaéimtecember 31, 2012, its January 2013 initiblipwffering, of which the net proceeds
from this offering were approximately $32.5 milliane sufficient to fund its anticipated operatirglt requirements for at least 24 months. Th
Company expects its research and development eepémincrease significantly in connection withgtanned Phase 2b clinical trial of SL-
401 in BPDCN and its planned randomized Phasei@lizal trial of SL-401 for the treatment of patientith AML as well as its planned

Phase 2b clinical trials of SL-701 for the treatingfpatients with brain cancer. As a result, @@npany expects to continue to incur
significant and increasing operating losses forftiheseeable future.

The Company may seek additional capital througbnalination of private and public equity offeringgbt financings and collaborations and
strategic and licensing arrangements. If adequaetdsf are not available to the Company on a timasjdh or at all, the Company may be
required to terminate or delay clinical trials dher development activities for SL-401 or SL-704fay one or more indications for which it is
developing SL-401 and SL-701, or delay its esthbfient of sales and marketing capabilities or ottegivities that may be necessary to
commercialize SL-401 or SL-701, if the Company oisanarketing approval.

Common Stock Splits and Amendments to Certificate fdncorporation

In March 2012, the Company amended its certifichi@corporation to increase the number of autteatighares of common stock from
3,000,000 shares to 3,515,000 shares.

On July 16, 2012, the Company filed an amendmeits tGertificate of Incorporation whereby it (i)dreased the number of authorized shares
of common stock from 3,515,000 to 45,000,000 shanekincreased the number of authorized shareetdped stock from 100,000 to
10,000,000 shares and (ii) effectuated a 3.6141-fmrward stock split of its common stock.
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On November 8, 2012, the Company filed an amendtoeig Certificate of Incorporation whereby it ¢icreased the number of authorized
shares of common stock from 45,000,000 to 22,5@0sb@res and decreased the number of authorizeessbigpreferred stock from
10,000,000 to 5,000,000 shares and (ii) effectuatidor 2.0 reverse stock split of its common ktdthe accompanying audited financial
statements and notes to the audited financialmtaits give retroactive effect to the July 16, 2ahd the November 8, 2012 stock splits for all
periods presented.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplequires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the financial statements and accompgnyartes. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

The Company utilizes estimates and assumptionsteriohining the fair value of its common stock. Tmmpany granted stock options at
exercise prices not less than the fair market vafues common stock as determined by the boamirettors, with input from management.
The board of directors has determined the estinfaiegalue of the Company’s common stock based anmber of objective and subjective
factors, including external market conditions affifeg the biotechnology industry sector and thedristprices at which the Company sold
shares of its common stock.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly ligustruments purchased with an original maturityhoée months or less. At December 31,
2012, cash equivalents consist of deposits in fifznstitutions. The Company maintains its caspasits and cash equivalents with well-
known and stable financial institutions.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to significant concentrations of credik gensist primarily of cash equivalents. The
Company invests its excess cash in major U.S. ban#étdinancial institutions, and its deposits,iaes, exceed federally insured limits. The
Company has not experienced any losses from aiski&

Deferred Financing Fees

Deferred financing fees include legal, accountprinting, and other fees directly attributablelie Company’s offering of its equity securities.
These fees are deferred and capitalized on thadmkheet. Costs attributable to equity offerimgscharged against proceeds of the offering
once the offering is completed.

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs are comprised fyirabcosts for personnel, including salaries &edefits; clinical studies performed by
third parties; materials and supplies to supp@tGompany’s clinical programs; contracted researamufacturing; related consulting
arrangements; costs related to upfront and milespayments under license agreements; and othensap@curred to sustain the Company’s
overall research and development programs. Inteesglarch and development costs are expenseduasseithcThird-party research and
development costs are expensed as the contractidsyzerformed.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method. Deferred tax assets and liak@tiare recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to the differences bettheefinancial statement carrying amounts of éxgsassets and liabilities and the respective
tax bases and operating loss and tax credit cawrgiuls. Deferred tax assets and liabilities aresmesl using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which thteseporary differences
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are expected to be recovered or settled. The affedeferred tax assets and liabilities of a changax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date.

The asset and liability method requires that defbtax assets and liabilities be recorded withoasileration as to their realizability. The
deferred tax asset primarily includes net operdtisg and tax credit carryforwards, accrued expmensecurrently deductible and the
cumulative temporary differences related to centagearch and patent costs, which have been chergegbense in the accompanying
statements of operations but have been recordasisess for income tax purposes. The portion oftefigrred tax asset for which it is more
likely than not that a tax benefit will not be rizald must then be offset by recording a valuatitowence. A valuation allowance has been
established against all of the deferred tax agsetsNote 9), as it is more likely than not thasthassets will not be realized given the histé
operating losses.

The Company recognizes the tax benefit from an maicetax position only if it is more likely tharohto be sustained upon examination base
on the technical merits of the position. The amairihe accrual for which an exposure exists issuezd as the largest amount of benefit
determined on a cumulative probability basis that€@ompany believes is more likely than not todsdized upon ultimate settlement of the
position.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company follows the provisions of the ASC Topl&,Compensation — Stock Compensatidrich requires the measurement and
recognition of compensation expense for all stogkeldl payment awards made to employees and nonysepoectors, including employee
stock options. Stock compensation expense bas#teagyrant date fair value estimated in accordaritetive provisions of ASC 718 is
generally recognized as an expense over the régssivice period.

For stock options granted as consideration foriseswendered by non-employees, the Company repegrixpense in accordance with the
requirements of ASC Topic 505-3Bquity Based Payments to Non-Employeden-employee option grants that do not vest imatety upon
grant are recorded as an expense over the vestimagdf the underlying stock options. At the efig¢ach financial reporting period prior to
vesting, the value of these options, as calculasialy the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, Wil re-measured using the fair value of the
Company’s common stock and the non-cash expensgnized during the period will be adjusted accaglinSince the fair market value of
options granted to non-employees is subject togdamthe future, the amount of the future expemtiénclude fair value re-measurements
until the stock options are fully vested.

Prior to becoming a public company, the board oéadors determined the estimated fair value of@bmpany’s common stock based on a
number of objective and subjective factors, inahgdexternal market conditions affecting the biotesthgy industry sector and the prices at
which the Company sold shares of its common stock.

Due to the lack of trading history, the Companysnputation of stock-price volatility is based o tolatility rates of comparable publicly
held companies over a period equal to the estimagetill life of the options granted by the Compaditye Companys computation of expectt
life was determined using the “simplified” methodiieh is the midpoint between the vesting date &edend of the contractual term. The
Company believes that they do not have sufficieliaible exercise data in order to justify the uba method other than the “simplified”
method of estimating the expected exercise teramgfloyee stock option grants. The Company hasrpaiividends to stockholders. The risk-
free interest rate is based on the zero-couponTeasury yield at the date of grant for a termiajent to the expected term of the option.

Stock-based compensation expense includes stodnemgranted to employees and non-employees anbdesreported in the Company’s
statements of operations as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
Research and development $ 50,31 $ 79,95¢ % 412,53t
General and administrative 30,224 28,45( 148,48t
Total $ 80,53t $ 108,40! $ 561,02:
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No tax benefits related to the st-based compensation costs have been recognizedtiim€ompany’s inception. The weighted average fai
value of the options granted during 2010, 20112012 was estimated at $0.84, $1.05 and $6.34, cégply, on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the followjiweighted average assumptions:

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
Risk-free interest rate 2.7¢% 2.6€% 0.95%
Expected volatility 74.4¢% 72.8% 78.95%
Dividend yield — — —
Expected life 6.02 year 6.26 year 6.25 year:

Segment information

The Company reports segment information in accaréavith applicable guidance on segment disclosdiies.Company has one reportable
segment.

Other Income and Expenses

Other income includes funds received from the Ur8asury Department in 2010 for the Qualified Teraic Discovery Projects tax credit
and grant program as well as funds received fraCity of New York for the 2010 and 2011 Biotectow} Tax Credit program. The income
from these programs was reimbursement of expensxdlg related to specific qualifying research gmams in accordance with the guidelines
of the respective grant programs and there areerforpnance or refund obligations. These expenses imeurred in prior periods and theref
the grant income was recorded when the funds vemeived. Other expenses include the marizsoket of a put option liability associated v
the issuance of convertible notes.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsrdassued guidance that changed the requirememprésenting “Comprehensive Income”
in the financial statements. The update requinesndity to present the components of other cormgrsive income either in a single continu
statement of comprehensive income or in two sepdmat consecutive statements. The currently availaption to disclose the components of
other comprehensive income within the statemestadkholders’ equity will no longer be availablEhe update is effective for fiscal years,
and interim periods within those years, beginnifigradecember 15, 2011 and should be applied ne¢icis/ely.

The Company adopted this pronouncement and eléxi@esent a separate statement of comprehensioman The Company did not incur
any components of comprehensive income for thegdsgpresented and therefore did not include arstateof comprehensive income in the
financial statements.

3. Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per commonesisadetermined by dividing net income (loss) aggille to common stockholders by the
weighted average common shares outstanding durangdriod. For the periods where there is a rast ddtributable to common shareholders,
the outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stmkyertible long term debt and common stock ogtioaive been excluded from the
calculation of diluted income (loss) per commonrshalder because their effect would be anti-dikitiiherefore, the weighted average share
used to calculate both basic and diluted loss Ipgreswould be the same.

The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted net income (loss) per share f@p#riods indicated:
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Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
Basic net income (loss) per common share calculz
Net loss $ (1,801,38)% (2,754,62)% (6,274,78)
Less: Preferred dividenc (239,72() — —
Plus: Redemption of preferred stock at a disconettrying value 12,171,76 — —
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharelrslde basic 10,130,66 (2,754,62) (6,274,78)
Basic weighted-average common shares 3,298,79. 3,441,99! 3,441,99
Basic net income (loss) per share $ 3.07 $ (0.80) $ (1.82)
Diluted net income (loss) per common share calmra
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharehis— basic $ 10,130,66 $ (2,754,62)% (6,274,78)
Plus: Preferred dividends 239,72( — —
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharehslde diluted 10,370,38 (2,754,62) (6,274,78)
Basic weighte-average common shar 3,298,79: 3,441,99! 3,441,99
Effect of dilutive securities
Redeemable preferred stc 46,80( — —
Employee stock options 38,48 — —
Weighted-average shares used to compute diluteidcaane (loss) per share 3,607,03 3,441,99 3,441,99!
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ 281 $ (0.80 $ (1.82)

The following potentially dilutive securities hateleen excluded from the computations of diluted Wiid average shares outstanding for the
periods presented, as they would be anti-dilutive:

Year Ended December 3.

2010 2011 2012
Restricted stock — — 34,50¢
Options outstanding 1,009,00 1,233,07. 1,819,83
Total 1,009,00 1,233,07: 1,854,34

4. Deferred Financing Fees

Deferred financing fees include legal fees direatlyibutable to the Company’s offering of its agdecurities and have been reported in the
Company’s balance sheet as follows:

Balance at December 31, 20 $ —
Increase in deferred financing fees 400,00(
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 400,00(
Increase in deferred financing fees 2,305,18.
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 2,705,18.

5. Fair Value Measurements

The Company’s financial instruments consist of casth cash equivalents, accrued liabilities andtedption (as defined in Note 6) for the
2.45% Convertible Note. Fair value estimates o$¢h@struments are made at a specific point in,tased on relevant market information.
These estimates may be subjective in nature arddvi@wncertainties and matters of significant juégitrand therefore cannot be determined
with precision. The carrying amount of cash anchauivalents, and accrued liabilities are gengrahsidered to be representative of their
respective fair values because of the short-tettareaf those instruments.

Fair value is defined as the exchange price thaldvoe received for an asset or paid to transfiatbdity (an exit price) in the principal or mc
advantageous market for the asset or liabilitynmederly transaction between market participahte@measurement date. Assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value areoregdl using a three-level fair value
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hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measair value. This hierarchy maximizes the uselwdervable inputs and minimizes the use of
unobservable inputs. The three levels of inputsl tigeneasure fair value are as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identicaleds or liabilities that the Company has the abibtaccess at the measurement date.
Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices in active markieait are observable for the asset or liabilitjree directly or indirectly.
Level 3 — Inputs that are unobservable for the assesobililiy.

The following fair value hierarchy table presemformation about each major category of the Comjmafigancial assets and liability meast
at fair value on a recurring basis as of Decemitef811 and 2012:

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant
for Identical Significant Other Unobservable
Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

At December 31, 201!

Cash $ 2,025,331 % — $ — $ 2,025,33!
Put Option $ — $ — $ (30,415 $ (30,419
At December 31, 201:

Cash $ 5,829,881 $ — 3 — % 5,829,88!
Put Option $ — $ — 3 (99,230 $ (99,230

The Company measures the put option liability atwfalue based on significant inputs not observabliie market, which causes it to be
classified as a Level 3 measurement within thevialine hierarchy. The valuation of the put opti@bility uses assumptions and estimates the
Company believes would be made by a market paatiti;n making the same valuation. The Company assdbese assumptions and estin
on an ongoing basis as additional data impacting the astiompand estimates are obtained. Changes in thealae of the put option liabilit
related to updated assumptions and estimates @gmieed within the statements of operations.

The put option liability may change significantly additional data is obtained, impacting the Corgsaassumptions regarding probabilities of
outcomes used to estimate the fair value of thmlitip. In evaluating this information, consideraljudgment is required to interpret the data
used to develop the assumptions and estimatesstimeates of fair value may not be indicative @& #mounts that could be realized in a
current market exchange. Accordingly, the use fiédint market assumptions and/or different vabratechniques may have a material effect
on the estimated fair value amounts, and such @saoguld materially impact the Company’s resultepdrations in future periods.

Level 3 Disclosure

The following table provides quantitative infornmatiassociated with the fair value measurementeobmpany’s Level 3 inputs:

Fair Value as of Range
December 31, 201 Valuation Technique Unobservable Input (Weighted Average)
Put option liability Probability-adjusted Probabilities of 25% — 45%
$ 30,41¢ discounted cash flo succes:! (35)%

Periods in which

outcomes are

expected to be

achievec 2013
Discount rate 12%
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Fair Value as of Range
December 31, 201 Valuation Technigue Unobservable Input (Weighted Average)
Put option liability Probability-adjusted Probabilities of 25% — 30%
$ 99,23( discounted cash floy succes:! (45)%

Periods in which

outcomes are

expected to be

achievec 2014
Discount rate 12%

The fair value of the put option liability represethe fair value of the Company’s liability fot abtential payments if the holder of the put
option elected to convert into cash or shares nfraon stock. The significant unobservable inputglusdhe fair value measurement of the
Company’s put option liability are the probabilgief successful outcomes, which would trigger cosiea of the put option liability,
probabilities as to the periods in which the outesrare expected to be achieved and a discounSigtgficant changes in any of the
probabilities of success would result in a sigmifity higher or lower fair value measurement, reipely. Significant changes in the
probabilities as to the periods in which outcomébkhwe achieved would result in a significantly lewor higher fair value measurement,
respectively.

The changes in fair value of the Company’s LevpuBoption liability during the years ended Decentti 2011 and December 31, 2012 wer

as follows:
Level 3
Balance at December 31, 2009 $ —
Fair value adjustment of put option liabil 111,421
Fair value adjustment to put option liability indkd in the other income (21,860
Balance at December 31, 2010 89,56(
Fair value adjustment to put option liability indkd in other expense 9,67(
Balance at December 31, 2011 99,23(
Fair value adjustment to put option liability indked in other income (68,81%)
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 30,41

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the changdks fair value of the put option liability resedt from an adjustment to the remaining
period to the expected outcome and taking intoidenation the July 26, 2012 and November 14, 20t&raiments to the 2.45% convertible
note described under “Convertible Notes” below.dtlver changes in valuation techniques or inputsiwed during the year ended

December 31, 2012. No transfers of assets betweeel [l and Level 2 of the fair value measuremesrtanchy occurred during the year ended

December 31, 2012.
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6. Other Accrued Liabilities

Other accrued liabilities consist of the following:

December 31

2011 2012
Accrued research and development costs $ 26854 $ 972,21t
Accrued compensatic 129,00¢ 100,00(
Accrued lega 1,043,01! 3,289,801
Other accrued liabilities 141,83t 1,138,71
Total $ 1,582,411 $ 5,500,73!

7. Convertible Notes

On March 16, 2010, in connection with the redemptibthe Series A preferred stock, the CompanyeidsuSenior Convertible Note (“the
2.45% Convertible Note'ln the amount of $1.25 million. The 2.45% ConvadgiNote was initially recorded at fair value of $0 million. The
2.45% Convertible Note and the related intereseasp are due on March 16, 2015. Interest is bdiagged at a rate of 2.45% per annum.

The carrying value of the 2.45% Convertible Notasists of $1.3 million of principal and accrueceimst less $0.1 million of unamortized ¢
discount as of December 31, 2012 and $1.3 milligprincipal and accrued interest less $0.3 millidunamortized debt discount as of
December 31, 2011.

Upon the occurrence of a qualified financing evantlefined in the agreement, the 2.45% Convenibte and any accrued interest are
mandatorily convertible into shares of the samesges issued in the qualified financing at thensaprice per share used in the qualified
financing. In addition, upon the occurrence oba-qualified financing event, as defined in the agreetnthe 2.45% Convertible Note and :
accrued interest are convertible at the optiomefttolder into cash or shares (the “Put Option'thefsame securities issued in the non-
qualified financing event at the same price pereshaed in the non-qualified financing event, @ llolder may elect to continue to retain the
note. The Put Option was recorded at approxim&ehyi,000, its fair value on the date of issuamzkis marked to fair value at each report
period. During the years ended December 31, 20011 2nd 2012, changes in the fair value of theQfiiion of approximately $(22,000),
$10,000 and $(69,000), respectively, were recond€ther Income and Other Expense in the Statenfe@perations.

On July 26, 2012, the Company and NB Athyrium LLla& holder of the 2.45% Convertible Notes, entémeéalan amendment to the 2.45%
Convertible Notes pursuant to which NB Athyrium et to accelerate repayment of $625,000 in priheipeunt, plus accrued interest
thereon, of such note in cash, at the time ofnft&l public offering, and convert the remaining2%,000 in principal amount, plus accrued
interest thereon, into shares of our common stothkeainitial public offering price. On Novembet,12012, the Company and NB

Athyrium LLC, entered into an additional amendminthe 2.45% Convertible Notes pursuant to whichAByrium agreed to cancel the
acceleration and defer the repayment of $625,0@@intipal amount, plus accrued interest therebsuoh note in cash until February 28,
2014. The July 2012 amendment was not considesgghiicant amendment from an accounting perspediecause there was no change in
the cash flows resulting from the modification. eTlHovember 2012 amendment was not significant secthe impact on cash flows on a
present value basis is less than 10%.

In January 2012, the Company issued $0.9 milliocosivertible notes (the “1.27% Convertible Noteat"Jace value for cash. Of this amount,
approximately $0.5 million was received on or befBecember 31, 2011 and before the note agreemvergssigned. These amounts were
classified as long term liabilities on the balasbeet, consistent with the terms of the notesvilea¢ signed in January 2012.

The 1.27% Convertible Notes and the related intengzense are due in 5 years if the notes areamerted prior to that date. Interest is being
charged at a rate of 1.27% per annum. The 1.278v&tible Notes and related accrued interest angantible into common stock at a
conversion price equal to 87.5% of the IPO pricegh@are upon the occurrence of an IPO, as defméki 1.27% Convertible Notes
agreement. Additionally, the 1.27% Convertible &oare convertible upon
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the occurrence of a qualified or non-qualified fineng, as defined in the 1.27% Convertible Notegaigpent, at a price equal to 85% of the
price per share used in the each financing.

The 1.27% Convertible Notes also contain a berafanversion option such that immediately upondbeurrence of one of the financings
discussed above, the 1.27% Convertible Notes sballert into shares of newly issued common stotkéncase of an IPO or the same
securities issued in the case of a qualified oreaalified financing. The 1.27% Convertible Notedders shall be entitled to receive a nurr

of shares determined by dividing the applicabl&%2ZConvertible Note balance as of the converside by an amount equal to the share price
as determined above. Upon a triggering eventfdreés conversion where both the price and quaafitiie shares are known, a beneficial
conversion charge will be determined representiegdifference between the conversion price andiain@alue of the new shares multiplied
the number of shares and a beneficial conversiangehwill be recorded to earnings with a correspandredit to additional paid-in capital.

During the years ended December 31, 2010, 2012ah8, the Company recorded interest expense obappately $69,000, $99,000 and
$77,224, respectively, related to the amortizatibthe debt discount.

The following table summarizes the convertible sate of December 31, 2012.

Year Ended December 31, 201

Accrued
interest and
Principal bond discount Total
2.45% Convertible Notes $ 1,250,0¢ $ (116,03¢) $ 1,133,96
1.27% Convertible Notes 862,00( 10,91° 872,91
Total $ 2,112,000 $ (105,119 $ 2,006,88.

8. Capital Structure
Common Stock
As of December 31, 2012, the Company was authotzésbsue 22,500,000 shares of common stock.

Dividends on common stock will be paid when, andiéclared by the board of directors. Each habdd@ommon stock is entitled to vote on
matters and is entitled to one vote for each shal@ Certain of the Company’s stockholders haeeriht to appoint two directors, provided
certain minimum ownership levels are maintainetiese appointment rights terminate upon the closirag IPO. The Company will, at all
times, reserve and keep available, out of its aizbd but unissued shares of common stock, sufficgkares to effect the conversion of the
shares of the convertible notes and stock optiérsof December 31, 2011 and 2012, the Companyvedd 271,818 and 2,226,768 share
common stock, respectively, for future issuancateel to the exercise of the Company’s outstandimckptions, and reserved an adequate
number of shares of common stock for future isseartated to the conversion of the Company’s CdiblerNotes.

Preferred Stock

In October 2007, the Company sold 455,518 shar8%w$eries A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stbekpurchase price of $27.44 per
share, resulting in net proceeds of $12.5 million.

At any time on or after the fourth anniversary daftéhe issuance of the Series A Preferred Staekhblders of the Series A Preferred Stock
could require the Company to redeem the shares fivice per share equal to the original issuanice plus any accumulated but unpaid
dividends. As a result, the carrying value of tleei€s A Preferred Stock was accreted to their rediem value by a charge to additional pa&id-
capital. For the years ended December 31, 2010, a06d 2012 and for the period from inception (Aug2003) to December 31, 2012, the
Company recorded dividends amounting to $239,7Q0$8 and $2,591,165, respectively, related tatweetion of the Series A Preferred
Stock to their redemption value.
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Redemption of Series A Preferred Stock

On March 16, 2010, the Company entered into a Ratehase Agreement with several investment furids“@equot Funds”) that held the
Company’s Series A preferred stock (the “PrefeBhdres”) and NB Athyrium LLC. In exchange for 438®utstanding shares of the
Preferred Shares, with a carrying value of $15lionj including $2.6 million for the accretion dfvidends through the date of redemption,
Company paid $0.75 million of cash, issued 411 &7dres of its common stock valued at $1.2 millind ssued a $1.25 million senior
unsecured convertible note, represented by thé2@énvertible Note. This transaction was accoufiieds an extinguishment of the
Preferred Shares, as it resulted in the surremtécancellation of the Preferred Shares. The 2.@6%vertible Note and common stock
issuances were recorded at their issuance datealaie of $0.90 million and $1.2 million, respeetiy. The note and the common stock given
for the redemption of the Preferred Shares wereddiately transferred from the Pequot Funds to NByAum LLC. The transaction resulted
in a $12.2 million discount from the redemptiortloé Preferred Shares, including the cash paymesttbe carrying value of the Preferred
Shares, and was accounted for in accordance with Fapic 26010, Earnings per share. The $12.2 million discouas based on the ability
the Company to negotiate a favorable redemptichefCompanys preferred stock due to business conditions optaéerred stock holders a
restrictive transfer covenants in the investmertudeents governing the preferred stock. The value@tommon stock issued as part of the
redemption of the Company’s preferred stock wastha® a contemporaneous equity offering occurmngpril 2010 at a value of $1.46 per
share. This offering was comprised of new inves{6786) and existing investors (43%). The discounthe redemption of the Preferred Shi
has been reflected as a reduction of the Accundi2tdicits in the Company’s Statement of Prefei®tack and Stockholders Equity (Deficit)
and also as an offset to the net operating losst®iCompany’s Statement of Operations to arivi&l 8.1 million of net income available to
common stockholders for the year ended Decembe2(B).

Before the redemption of the Series A PreferrediStthe Company, the Pequot Funds and certain fotiféghe Company’s common stock
were party to an investors’ rights agreement thavided the Pequot Funds with demand registraignts, piggyback registration rights,
information rights and rights of first offer witlespect to certain future issuances of the Compa®carities. This agreement also required the
approval of the directors designated by the PeFuntls and certain holders of the Company’s comnmrkgor certain actions proposed to be
taken. The parties to the investotights agreement terminated the agreement in coiomewith the redemption of the Series A Prefergdck

Representative’s Warrants

On October 1, 2012, the Company agreed to isstieeteepresentative of the underwriters in thisrirfie warrants to purchase up to 99,529
shares of the Company’s common stock in the eviemtsaccessful public offering. The warrants atereisable for cash or on a cashless basi
at a price per share equal to $15.00. These warvéh be accounted for as a cost of issuancéénevent of a successful public offering. Tt
are no warrants outstanding as of December 31,.2012

9. Stock-Based Compensation

The Company’s 2004 Stock Option and Grant Plan“@084 Plan”) was adopted by the board of direchorSeptember 2003 and approved by
the stockholders in September 2003. The 2004 Ritally authorized the Company to grant up to 1,818 shares of common stock to
eligible employees, directors, consultants andsaisito the Company in the form of options to pasghcommon stock in the Company at a
price not less than the estimated fair value atidte of grant, or 110% of the estimated fair vauthe date of grant if the optionee is a 10%
owner of the Company. Under the provisions of tB@42Plan, no option will have a term in excess®jéars.

In March 2012, the Company amended its certifichi@corporation to increase the number of autteatighares of common stock from
5,421,150 shares to 6,351,780 shares. In addthenCompany amended its Amended and Restated 20@biee, Director and Consultant
Stock Plan to increase the number of shares redéovéssuance under the plan from 1,271,818 shtargs226,768 shares.

The 2004 Plan is intended to encourage ownerstgpoak by employees and consultants of the Compadyto provide additional incentives
for them to promote the success of the Companysinless. The board of directors is responsible éerdnining the individuals to receive
option grants, the number of options each indiviavuit receive, the option price per share andékercise period of each option. Options
granted pursuant to the 2004 Plan generally vesst fmur years and
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have been granted at the estimated fair valueso€dmpany’s common stock, as determined by thedbafadlirectors, as of each grant date. In
establishing its estimates of fair value of the @amy’s common stock prior to becoming a public camp the Company considered the
guidance set forth in the AICPA Practice Aifluation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Secestissued as Compensaticaind performed

a retrospective determination of the fair valué®tommon stock for the years ended December(@I) 2nd 2011.

The Company performed a retrospective determinatighe fair value of the Comparsytommon stock for the years ended December 3D
and 2011 and granted stock options with exercieepas follows:

Retrospective
Number of Options Exercise Determination Intrinsic
Grant Date Granted Price of Fair Value Value
March 22, 201( 452,66! $ 221 $ 2.9¢ $ 0.37
March 8, 201! 224,06° $ 29z $ 3.1C $ 0.0¢
The following is a summary of stock option activitygder the 2004 Plan through December 31, 2012:
Weighted-
Weightec- Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Options Exercise Price Contractual Life Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2010 556,34 $ 2.5¢
Options grante: 452,66. 2.21
Options exercise — —
Options forfeited — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2010 1,009,000 $ 2.4z
Options grante: 224,06 2.92
Options exercise — —
Options forfeited — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 1,233,07. $ 2.51
Options granted 621,82 3.3(
Options exercise — —
Options forfeited (35,06%) 3.3(C
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 1,819,83' $ 2.7¢€ 6.5¢ $ 13,167,54
Options exercisable at December 31, 2012 600,28: $ 2.52 3.3C $ 4,490,90

As of December 31, 2012, there were 372,422 sludresmmon stock available for future grants untier2004 Plan.

During the first quarter of 2012, the Company gedntarious employees, consultants and service ggoyvioptions to purchase an aggregate o
621,828 shares of common stock. The options weneted at an exercise price of $3.30 per shardathmarket value of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant as determingtidofzompany’s board of directors. The options algext to various vesting conditions.

Intrinsic value in the above table was calculatetha difference between the Company’s estimatek girice on December 31, 2012 and the
exercise price, multiplied by the number of optidfsr any of the Company’s outstanding stock ogtieith an exercise price equal to or
greater than the Company’s estimated stock priceemember 31, 2012, the intrinsic value was comsitléo be zero.

As of December 31, 2012, there was $4.7 millionmfecognized compensation expense related to wd/egick options, which is expected to
be recognized over a weighted average period &f yle@rs. There were no exercises of stock optianiagithe years ended December 31,
2010, 2011 and 2012.
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The Company periodically remeasures fair valugaflsbased awards issued to non-employees anddseapense over the requisite service
period. The Company granted 97,796 options to mopkeyees and has recorded compensation expeng9 @3, $23,883 and $127,461 for
the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 28 atively.

Performance Share Awards

The following information relates to awards of merhance shares and performance share, units, etindthe preceding table, that have beer
granted to employees under the 2004 Plan.

In March 2010, the Company issued 406,131 optiwith,a weighted average exercise price of $2.21share, to consultants and key
employees that fully vest upon the occurrence dPahor a specified financing. Also, in March 20fHe Company issued 112,036 options
with a weighted average grant price of $2.92 paresthat fully vest upon the occurrence of an IP@ specified financing to directors,
consultants, and key employees. Also, in March22@ie Company issued 301,014 options with a wetaverage grant price of $3.30 per
share of which 281,895 options begin to vest antif®options fully vest upon the occurrence of R@ lor a specified financing to directors,
consultants, and key employees.

For awards with performance conditions, such agtaapises, an IPO, a change in control or a gathe company, no expense will be
recognized, and no measurement date can occurthentbiccurrence of the event is probable. As afddeber 31, 2012, it was not probable
one of these performance conditions would be nmet,g& such, there is no accounting for these slaare§December 31, 2012.

10. Income Taxes

The benefit for income taxes consists of the foltayfor the years ended December 31:

2010 2011 2012
Deferred:
Federal $ (582,41) $ (786,28) $ (1,775,74)
State and local (348,416 (470,37) (1,062,15)
(930,82) (1,256,65) (2,837,90)
Increase in valuation allowance 930,82 1,256,65! 2,837,90:
Total tax expense $ — $ — $ —

A reconciliation of the statutory U.S. federal redghe Company'’s effective tax rate is as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012

Percent of pi-tax income
U.S. federal statutory income tax ri (34.0% (34.0% (39)%
State taxes, net of federal ben (13.9) (12.2) (11.9
Permanent item (3.9 0.€ (0.3
Change in valuation allowance 51.7 45.€ 45.€

Effective income tax rate —% —% —%

The tax effects of temporary differences that géseto significant portions of the deferred tagets were as follows:
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December 31

2011 2012
Current deferred tax asst
Accrued expense $ — $ 712,59
Valuation allowance — (712,590
Total noncurrent deferred tax assets $ — % —
Noncurrent deferred tax ass
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 491397 $ 6,682,81!
Research credi 378,35¢ 473,38(
Convertible debt interest exper 44,16 81,08
Nonqualified stock compensatir 600,37 824,89t
Valuation allowance 5,936,87: 8,062,18.
Total noncurrent deferred tax assets (5,936,87) (8,062,18)
$ — $ =

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax ssdbhe Company considers whether it is more litein not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The altenrealization of deferred tax assets is depengwoni the generation of future taxable income
during the periods in which the temporary diffeescepresenting net future deductible amounts beawductible. Due to the Company’s
history of losses, the deferred tax assets ang ééilbet by a valuation allowance at December 31,02 2011 and 2012.

The following table summarizes carryforwards of opé¢rating losses and tax credits as of Decemhe2@R:

Amount Expiration
Federal net operating losses $ 14,707,00 2023— 2032
State net operating loss $ 15,085,00 2023— 2032
Research and development cre $ 473,00( 2023— 2032

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendedCitdde”) provides for a limitation of the annual usfenet operating losses and other tax
attributes (such as research and development ¢abit carryforwards) following certain ownership olges (as defined by the Code) that could
limit the Company’s ability to utilize these camyivards. At this time, the Company has not comgletstudy to assess whether an ownershiy
change under section 382 of the Code has occuradhether there have been multiple ownership césuisgnce the Comparsyformation, du

to the costs and complexities associated with saustiudy. The Company may have experienced varisagmship changes, as defined by the
Code, as a result of past financing transactiossoAdingly, the Company’s ability to utilize theoeémentioned carryforwards may be limited.
Additionally, U.S. tax laws limit the time duringhich these carryforwards may be applied againstréutaxes. Therefore, the Company may
not be able to take full advantage of these carwdiods for federal or state income tax purposes.

The Company did not have unrecognized tax beraditsf December 31, 2012 and does not expect tleisaioge significantly over the next
twelve months. As of December 31, 2012, the Compesynot accrued interest or penalties relatedi¢ertain tax positions. The Company’s
tax returns for the years ended December 31, 2808¢h December 31, 2012 are still subject to eration by major tax jurisdictions.

11. Commitments and Contingencies
License Agreements

The Company has entered into research and devetd@geements with third parties for the developnoémmncology products. These
agreements require the Company to fund the devedapof such products and potentially make milesymmgnents and royalties on net sales
in the future based on the Company’s successfiéldpment of the products. The timing and the amoéintilestone payments in the future
are not certain.

Under the Company’s license agreements, the Comgauiyg be required to pay up to a total of $29.0iom upon achieving certain
milestones, such as the initiation of clinicallgiar the granting of patents. From inception tigtoDecember 31, 2012, the Company has paic
or accrued $1.7 million in payments resulting frtima execution of certain agreements, patent apfsavee initiation of sponsor research
agreements, and compound development agreemenstdtie payments will also be due upon the issuahcertain patents, the initiation of
certain clinical trials, the
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submission of regulatory applications and certagufatory approvals, in addition to sales milessoaed royalties payable on commercial sale
if any occur.

Scott and White

In June 2006, the Company entered into a reseathiGense agreement, as amended in December R208h 2010 and July 2011
(collectively the “S&W Agreement”), with Scott aMdhite Memorial Hospital and Scott, Sherwood andh8ley Foundation, and its affiliate
Scott and White Clinic (collectively “S&W?") to funthe activities of S&W to conduct research invoty@L-401, a clinical-stage compound
that the Company has exclusively licensed. Thispmumd is being developed to treat patients with ABPDCN, and other hematologic
cancers. The Company is required to pay custoniagyesdigit royalties on sales, if any, of new puots approved utilizing the licensed
compounds, and a percentage of up-front paymeat€tmpany receives from a sublicensee. The S&W ékgent will expire in its entirety
upon the later of (i) the 10th anniversary of tinstfcommercial sale of a product, or (ii) the eation of the last issued patent claiming or
covering a product. The Company may terminate &/ $\greement at its sole discretion at any timeaé specified number of days
following written notice and either party may tenaie for a material breach of the agreement thadticured within a specified number of
days.

University of Pittsburgh

In September 2009, the Company entered into amugixel license agreement with the University ofsitirgh (“UP”) that covers patent rights
claiming an analog peptide of IL-13R, an active ingredient of SL-701, a vaccine thdiaing developed to treat patients with advancethb
cancer (the “UP Agreement”). The Company paid URafmont license fee that was expensed to researdlievelopment cost for the year
ended December 31, 2009. In addition to the upfpagiment, the Company will be required to pay ahfees, milestones (which are
contingent upon achievement of pre-defined clinicadulatory and commercial events), single-digjtadties on net sales, if any, of new
products approved utilizing the licensed compouads, a percentage of non-royalty revenue from seb$iees, which decreases if the
applicable sublicense agreement is entered ingp aftertain clinical milestone has been met. TReAlgreement will expire in its entirety up
the expiration of the last issued patent claimingavering the product. The Company may termina¢eldP Agreement at its sole discretion at
any time after a specified number of days followmitten notice and UP may terminate for a matdsialach of the agreement by the Comg
that is not cured within a specified number of days

In March 2012, the Company entered into a hon-axetulicense agreement with UP that covers paights claiming a peptide of EphA2,
another active ingredient of SL-701, which the Campmay use in or packaged with proprietary vagiimeluding SL-701, for the diagnosis,
treatment or prevention of diseases and tumorseobtain. The Company paid UP an initial licensedad will be required to pay UP annual
license maintenance fees until the first commewsadg of a licensed product, a customary singli digalty on sales, and a minimum annual
royalty following the first commercial sale of adinsed product. The UP Agreement will expire ireitirety upon the expiration of the last
issued patent claiming or covering the product. Tbenpany may terminate the UP Agreement at itsdisleretion at any time after a specif
number of days following written notice and UP ntesminate for a material breach of the agreemenh&yCompany that is not cured within a
specified number of days.

In March 2012, the Company also entered into aeatdsive license agreement with UP for the rightise certain information and data
contained in the INDs for the clinical trials of 101 that were conducted by UP. The Company mayhesamformation and data for the
development, manufacture, regulatory approval amdnaercialization of pharmaceutical products, andhd® granted the Company a right of
reference to such INDs for its planned SL-701 chhirial of pediatric patients with glioma. Ther@pany paid UP an initial license fee, part of
which is deferred until March 2013, and will be uggd to make a payment following a specified ratudy milestone, and a percentage of nor
royalty revenue received from any sublicensees.URé\greement will expire in its entirety in Mar2B32 unless earlier terminated by a p:
The Company may terminate the UP Agreement ablesdiscretion at any time prior to incorporatingeferencing the data or UP INDs, after
a specified number of days following written notieed UP may terminate for a material breach ofreement by the Company that is not
cured within a specified number of days or if thelBRa2 license agreement is terminated.
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The Company has also licensed rights to certaimi@ogies or intellectual property in the fieldafcology. The Company is generally
required to make upfront payments as well as giagments upon successful completion of preclinidaijcal, regulatory or sales milestones.
In addition, these agreements generally requir€€thrapany to pay royalties on sales of the prodaiissng from these agreements. These
agreements generally permit the Company to termithet agreement with no significant continuing géiion.

As part of the agreements discussed above, the @oyripas committed to make potential future milestpayments to third parties as part of
its licensing agreements. Payments generally bechraeand payable only upon the achievement ofioaftevelopmental, regulatory and/or
commercial milestones. Because the achievemehesEtmilestones is neither probable nor reasomsiyable, the Company has not
recorded a liability on its balance sheet for amghscontingencies.

Compensation Arrangements

Certain bonuses and salary increases in the anod®it 034,948 are contingent and payable upon appod the board of directors, continued
employment, and the occurrence of a specified Gimay; including the consummation of an initial poldffering, with an additional $509,052
subject to the same contingencies and payable esreafter the occurrence of a specified finandigamounts have been recorded in respec
of either the bonuses or salary increases as paymeat considered probable as of December 312.201

In June 2008, the Company entered into an offiegisfh agreement relating to its corporate headgqrgith New York, New York. Expense
incurred under the office sharing agreement was0f&0for each of the years ended December 31, @0d@2011. The Company subsequently
terminated the office sharing agreement as of Déeer2011. In February 2012, the Company entereda¢asing agreement with respect to
its current corporate offices at 750 Lexington AwenNew York, New York, for a monthly rent of $2104 he term of this lease agreement
six months. The Company is currently leasing theesaffice space on a month-to-month basis.

12. Related Party Transactions

Since January 1, 2009, the Company has engaghd foltowing transactions with its directors, exeeg officers, holders of more than 5% of
voting securities, and affiliates or immediate fgnmhembers of the directors, executive officers holtlers of more than 5% of voting
securities. The Company believes that all of thiesmesactions were on terms as favorable as cowle been obtained from unrelated third
parties.

License Agreement and Assignment Agreement with thEompany’s Chief Executive Officer

The Company is party to a license agreement wittBBrgstein, dated December 1, 2003, pursuant tchabr. Bergstein licensed to the
Company his interest in the oncology-related patighits, and all technology and know-how relateduoh patent rights, as well as
improvements thereto. These patent rights do nateréo the Company’s product candidates SL-401Sin@01. The Company is required to
pay Dr. Bergstein $2.0 million in cash or commaucktthe first time the Company obtains regulatqrgraval of each licensed product in the
United States for certain major cancer indicati@sswell as a royalty in the low single digits gseacentage of net sales. As part of this licens
agreement, the Company granted Dr. Bergstein ogpiggyback registration rights with respect to aoynmon stock the Company issues him
in connection with a milestone payment.

On June 15, 2012, the Company entered into anrassigt agreement with Dr. Bergstein, the Companyiaitnan, President and Chief
Executive Officer and owner of certain proprietpatent rights and related technology. Pursuartdé@ssignment agreement, as amended on
November 7, 2012, effective immediately prior te tlgistration statement for the Comg's initial public offering being declared effectilsg
the Securities and Exchange Commission, Dr. Bargatgrees to assign, sell, transfer and convelggdCompany all of his right, title and
interest in and to these patent rights and relegeldnology in exchange for $2.0 million in caslraa@ombination of cash and shares of Com
common stock, payable only if, within five yearstloé date of transfer, the Company either (i) helsange in control, as defined in the
assignment agreement, or (ii) achieves a markétatiaption of at least $200 million for a presebperiod. Under the terms of the
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assignment agreement, as amended, 50% of such paghatl be paid in cash and the remaining 50% beagaid in shares of Company
common stock, or a combination of cash and comnmoksas determined by the Company. If the Compaegts to settle payment in shares,
the Company will value the shares at the datesofasce. None of the assigned patent rights angtdelachnology has alternative future uses,
nor have they reached a stage of technologicaliiéis The Company plans to account for this saation as an asset acquisition when the
company achieves a market capitalization of at %280 million for a prescribed period becausedtribt acquire any processes or activities ir
addition to the assigned rights and technology. Chmpany will record the entire purchase pricedguired in-process research and
development expense. The assignment agreemenhdbesntain any vesting or rescission/refund prions.

13. Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated events that occurred subsetguBecember 31, 2012 through April 1, 2013,dhte the financial statements were
available to be issued.

Initial Public Offering

On January 31, 2013 the Company completed its $e{ing 3,317,644 shares at an offering price &.8Q per share. On January 29, 2013
underwriters exercised in full their over-allotmemption to purchase an additional 497,647 sharas affering price of $10.00 per share.
Aggregate gross proceeds from the IPO, includiegettercise of the over-allotment option, were $38il#on and net proceeds received after
underwriting fees and offering expenses were apprately $32.5 million. Additionally, upon the clogj of the IPO, our convertible debt, plus
accrued interest thereon, was converted into 186sf@res of common stock.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company’s 2012 Stock Equity Incentive Plan (@12 Plan”) was adopted by the board of directord approved by the stockholders in
July 2012 effective immediately prior to the clagiof the Company’s initial public offering. In adidn, the 2004 Plan was terminated effective
immediately prior to the closing of the Companyigial public offering. Provided that the 1,819,888ions to purchase common stock and
34,507 restricted stock awards executed prioréceffective date of such termination shall remaifuil force and effect pursuant to their ter
and the terms of the 2004 Plan. The 2012 Plarallyitauthorized the Company to grant up to 1,663 3t2ares of common stock to eligible
employees, directors, consultants and advisotse@obmpany in the form of options to purchase comstock in the Company at a price not
less than the estimated fair value at the dateasftgUnder the provisions of the 2004 Plan, néooptvill have a term in excess of 10 years.

Performance Share Awards

Subsequent to the closing of the IPO, certain optnd restricted stock begin to vest and fullyt t@slirectors, consultants and key employ
The Company will record approximately $1.4 milliohstock-based compensation expense associated¥8td24 options with a weighted
average exercise price of $2.38 and 8,625 shanessticted stock that fully vest upon consummatban IPO. In addition, 281,895 options
will commence vesting based upon the consummatfiam PO and the Company will record $1.4 milliamtbe vesting of these options.
Compensation Arrangement

Subsequent to the closing of the IPO, the Compeogrded approximately $1.5 million of compensaggpense related to certain bonuses
salary increases payable upon continued employar@hthe occurrence of a specified financing, iniclgdhe consummation of an initial
public offering.

Contractual Agreement

In February 2013, the Company entered into a bigssing services agreement with a vendor for afpadrly $2.9 million if all services are
performed under the contract. Services under thrisract are expected to be performed during 2083281 4.
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14. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarters Ended

March June September
31 30 30 December 31

2012

Net loss attributable to common stockholc $ (1,170,38) $ (1,844,83) $ (1,965,46) $ (1,294,09))
Basic and diluted net loss per common sl $ 039 $ (059 $ (057 $ (0.39)
2011

Net loss attributable to common stockholc $ (376,109 $ (628,55) $ (710,249 $ (1,039,71)
Basic and diluted net loss per common sl $ 011 $ (0.1 $ 0.2)) $ (0.30
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Act of 2002.

32.2 Certificate of principal financial officer pursuatot 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 3e806 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amentiedregistrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtteereunto duly authorized.

Date: April 1, 201z STEMLINE THERAPEUTICS, INC
By: /s/ Ilvan Bergstein, M.C

Ivan Bergstein, M.D
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Offi

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each personoat signature appears below constitutes and agfdear Bergstein, his true
and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with fullvper of substitution and resubstitution, for him drisiname, place and stead, in any and all
capacities, to sign any or all amendments to thimial report on Form 10-K, and to file the samehwll exhibits thereto and other documents
in connection therewith, with the SEC, grantingausdid attorney-in-fact and agent, full power aatharity to do and perform each and every
act and thing requisite and necessary to be doardrabout the premises, as fully to all intents purposes as he might or could do in person
hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attey-in-fact and agent or any of his substitutesy faafully do or cause to be done by virtue
hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, as amended, this Form 10-K haa bgned by the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant on April 1, 2013, andhe tapacities indicated:

Signatures Title

/sl lvan Bergstein, M.C
Ivan Bergstein, M.D. Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officem(@pal Executive
Officer)

/sl Stephen P. Hs
Stephen P. Hall Vice President of Finance and Chief Accounting €#i(Principal
Financial and Accounting Office

/s/ J. Kevin Buch
J. Kevin Buchi Director

/s/ Kenneth Zuerbli
Kenneth Zuerblis Director

/s/ Ron Bentsu
Ron Bentsu Director

/s/ Eric L. Dobmeie
Eric L. Dobmeiel Director




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, lIvan Bergstein, M.D., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-IStemline Therapeutics, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))5¢r the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutas tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldgire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; anc

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrastnos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofimancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 1, 201z
/s/lvan Bergstein, M.D
Ivan Bergstein, M.D
Chief Executive Office
Principal Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTIO N 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Stephen P. Hall, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-ISt&#mline Therapeutics, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disaie controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))5¢r the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldgire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; anc

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrastnos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationtexhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofimancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 1, 201z

/sl Stephen P. Ha

Stephen P. Ha

Chief Accounting Office

Principal Financial and Accounting Offic




Exhibit 32.1

STATEMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF
STEMLINE THERAPEUTICS, INC.
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of Stemlineefpeutics, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K foe period ended December 31,
2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cwsion (the “Report”), |, Ivan Bergstein, Chief Exgive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursu&#d6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, tasemy knowledge:

1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934, as amended; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: April 1, 201z

/sl lvan Bergstein, M.D
Ivan Bergstein, M.D
Chief Executive Office
Principal Executive Office




Exhibit 32.2

STATEMENT OF CHIEF ACCOUNTING OFFICER OF
STEMLINE THERAPEUTICS, INC.
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of StemlineefEpeutics, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K foe fperiod ended December 31,
2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cwsion (the “Report”), |, Stephen P. Hall, Chiefodanting Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, as adoptedyant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20i6&t, tbased on my knowledge:

1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934, as amended; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: April 1, 201z

/sl Stephen P. Ha

Stephen P. Ha

Chief Accounting Office

Principal Financial and Accounting Offic




